PORT OF BROOKINGS HARBOR
Special Commission Meeting
Friday, May 6, 2022  10:00am

Teleconference / Meeting Room (timited capacity)
16350 Lower Harbor Road Suite 202, Harbor OR, 97415

Teleconference Call-In Number: 1 (253) 215-8782

Meeting ID: 771 205 4017 Passcode: 76242022 (to mute/anmute: * 6)
TENTATIVE AGENDA
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER PAGE
e Roll Call

e Modifications, Additions, and Changes to the Agenda
o Declaration of Potential Conflicts of Interest

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - (Limited to a maximum of three minutes per person, Please email your comments
to danielle@portofbrockingsharbor.com prior to the meeting if you are calling in.

4, ACTION ITEMS

A. RV Park Change Orders and Payment Request..........coooiiiii v ie e s eenan v er e e 2
B. Crab Dock 0n RIver Jelly. .. .o vt iii e e et et e e et aa e 29
C. SDAQ Insurance Claim — Replacement of Broken Dock Pile.........coociviniiiiiiiiiiiicn e 178

5. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. Commissioner and Staff Communications and Relations. . oo v ier st ire s e teeniereesrasnneeesssnnneesens 191

6. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS
7. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE - Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at 2:00pm

8. ADJOURNMENT

A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, for those who want to participate but do not have access to a telephone, or for
other accommaodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the mecting to Port of Brookings
Harbor Office at 541-469-2218.

This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider



ACTION ITEM — A

DATE: May 8, 2022

RE:

TO:

RV Park Change Order and Payment Request

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

Since the pre-construction meeting took place on February 9, 2022, the Port has asked
for Change Orders from the coniractor for the delays and understanding of the change of
power supply.

The Port and Crow/Clay Associates have requested from Coos Curry Electric a written
explanation on the change of power supply at this late stage of our project. We were told
verbally the change came from Coos Curry Electric upper management that would even
out the power supply load to the RV Park. This upgrade would provide the ability for
better service for future site improvements. The Port provides the conduit and Coos
Curry Electric is providing the wiring.

McLennan Excavation, Inc. provided a request for the extension of contract and change
of construction start date. The contract has liquidated damages set at $200 for each
calendar day of delay until the work is substantially completed.

McLennan Excavation, Inc. provided Change Order No. 1 for the installation of the
conduit from the existing Kite Field transformer to the RV Park transformer. This also
requires a permit to cross Boat Basin Road from Curry County Road Department.

Port Legal Counsel has reviewed this situation and has provided their recommendations.
Acceptance of the change order is ultimately a business call, but a legal fight over
responsibility for the delay may cost more than the change order itself. If the Board
agrees to proceed with the change order, then the Port should get updated insurance
certificates from Crow/Clay and McLennan evidencing that insurance will remain in
place. Also request an updated performance bond that shows a penal sum equal to the
increased contract price. Not sure if Crow/Clay will be seeking any additional
compensation for construction administrafion services under the proposed new
schedule, but the Port will want to know that as well.

Crow/Clay Associates received a payment request from MclLennan Excavation for
permanent materials purchased and received. Travis and | took pictures of the materials
received and stored at McLennan’s construction yard. Electrical materials were ordered
but have not been received. Payment reflects materials received only.

DOCUMENTS

March 7, 2022 Crow/Clay & Associates, Inc. Letter to Coos Curry Electric, 1 page
March 7, 2022 Crow/Clay & Associates, Inc. Letter to Port of Brookings Harbor, 1 page
April 4, 2022 McLennan Excavation, Inc. request for the extension of contract and
change of work start date, 2 pages

April 4, 2022 McLennan Excavation, Inc. Change Order No. 1, 1 page



McLennan Excavation, Inc. Construction Schedule, 1 page
Crow/Clay & Associates, Inc. Submittal Log, 1 page

Curry County Road Department Permit, 4 pages
McLennan Excavation Payment Request No. 1, 14 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION — there are three motions to be considered:

Recommended Motion 1:

Motion to approve the time extension and new completion date of December 7, 2022 for
the RV Park Project without applying liquated damages to McLennan Excavation and
authorize the Port Manager to sign the document.

Recommended Motion 2:

Motion to approve Change Order No. 1 to install new electrical conduit from the Kite
Field (Basin 2) to the RV Park as directed by Coos Curry Electric for $28,972.56 and
authorize the Port Manager to sign the document.

Recommended Motion 3:
Motion to approve McLennan Excavation progress Payment No. 1 for $87,517.76 for the
purchase and received materials for the RV Park Project.



ARCHITTECTURE AN PLANNING
LA UUSE AND INTERIORS

=-i= (ROW/CLAY & DSSDCIATES TN

March 7, 2022

Mr. Walt Jurczenko
Coos-Curry Electric Cooperative, Inc
walt.jurczenko@cooscurryelectric.com

RE: Port of Brookings-Harbor - Beachfront RV Park

Dear Mr. Jurczenko,

We are concerned that the change to three phase power occurred after the sign off by

Coos-Curry Electric of the plans that were already forwarded to the County and other
agencies involved.

This late maodification is impacting the project and its construction schedule.
Our engineer has indicated that this modification was discussed earlier in the planning

process but was not approved by the utility at that time. This late change is affecting
our services to the Port District, as well as construction cost.

Can you please prepare a letter to the Port to explain this modification and why this
occurred.

Sincerely,

CROW/CLAY & ASSOCIATES INC.

Michael R. Crow
Principal

Coos Bay, Oregon
125 W. Central Ave., Suite 400 « Coos Bay, OR 97420 (541) 269-9388
MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS
Www. crowclay.com L ‘



BEE (ROW/CLAY & ASSDCIATES INC

- ARCHITECTURE ANER PLAMNNING
LAMNMD LUESE AaND INTERIORS

March 7, 2022

Mr. Gary Dehlinger, Manager
Port of Brookings Harbor
portmanager@portofbrogkingsharbor.com

RE: Delay in Work - Beachfront RV Park

Dear Mr. Dehlinger,

The delay in the arrival of materials to allow the work on the RV park to proceed is not
unusual during this construction period. Most of our ongoing projecis are experiencing
delay in material arrivals, even though the materials may have been available when the
projects were bid, due to COVID and shipping delays.

These delays are beyond the contractor's control even if they have already ordered
materials. Material suppliers have quoted delivery times to contractors based on
manufacturing and shipping schedules, both of which have been affected by the above-

mentioned issues.

We have requested a revised schedule from McLennan and they are working on other
ways to progress the work, such as, tempararily reusing the existing RV pedestals. This
will involve some review of the existing pedestals, but it is possible.

I will keep you apprised of progress on this front.

Sincerely,

CROW/CLAY & ASSOCIATES INC.

-M,Q,v@?. o

Michael R. Crow
Principal

Coaos Bay, Oregon
125 W. Cenlral Ave., Suite 400 - Coos Bay, OR 97420 (541) 269-9386
MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS
www.crowclay.com



MCLENNAN EXCAVATION, INC.
COB# 195758 CSLE#982104

B.O. BOX 6837

BROOKINGS, OR 97413

Date: April 4, 2022
Attention: Mike Crow
Project: Port of Brookings Harbor Beachfront RV Park

REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF CONTRACT AND CHANGE OF WORK START DATE

This project was bid oh September 30, 2021. The bid was awarded fo McLennan Excavation on October
22, 2021 and the cantract agreement sighed on October 28, 2021.

The submittals for the project and for the pipe and special equiprent to be ordered were started on
Navember 3, 2021, and were being sent back and forth between the contractor and Architect until
February 8", when final approval was received on those submittals.

At the pre-construction meeting held on February 9, 2022 it was determined that Coos Curry Electric
decided it was best to upgrade the electrical to the area and that Coos Curry could not get the work
done for us to start the project on February 21, 2022 as scheduled and the completion date set for May
1, 2022. It was further found out that week that the Power Pedestals would not be available until July
even though they were ordered, as the lead time was so long from the one vendor that has the
pedestals called out for in the plans. There are no other vendors or manufactures for the specific
pedestal called out for in the plans.

At the precanstruction meeting it was again told to Mclennan that we were not allowed to do the work
of the contract during the busy season for the RV Park as sites have fo be shut down. All parties at the
meeting agreed that the project start date would be delayed to October 1, 2022 with a completion date
of December 7, 2022,

The materials for the project were ordered on February 7, 2022 and will be delivered to Mclennan
Excavation on April 7, 2022 for them to store until the project starts. We have a Connex on our shop site
that all materials will be stored in until utilized. The price for the pedestals was locked in on the date of
order and paid for in half by the pipe supplier to insure the order. There will be no price increase for the
materials from the date of order on February 7, 2022 until they project starts on Qctaher 1, 2022, as the
orders are already placed and coming. And pursuant to the Port request to us, we will submit a

materials bill for materials on hand this month for consideration by the Architect and the Board.

Therefare, all parties hereby agree that the project start date is hereby moved to: OCTOBER 1, 2022
Therefore, all parties hereby agree that the project completion date is hereby moved to December 7,

2022. An Updated construction schedule is attached for all parties reference.

There is no change on the contract price for this contract extension.



Request for Contract Extension
Brookings RV Park Expansion

Page 2 of 2
Submitted this 4th day of April, 2022.
BY: V//Dl-. | A gp\'
Case‘l McLennan, President
Mclennan Excavation Inc
General Contractor
Accepted and Approved Accepted and Approved
This day of April, 2022 “This day of April, 2022
BY: BY:
Printed Name: Michae! Crow, Architect Printed Name: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

Entity: Crow/Clay & Associates, Inc. Entity: Port of Brookings Harbor - Oregon




MCLENNAN EXCAVATION, INC,
CCB# 195758 CSLB#9S2104

P.0. BOX 6887

BROOKINGS, OR 97415

Date: 4-4-2022
Attention: Mike Crow
Project: Port of Brookings Harbor Beachfront RV Park

REVISED CHANGE ORDER 1
Proposal & request for change order for additional work performed outside of contract:

Installation of electrical conduit from transformer located in The Kite Field to the Junction Box
located by the Beachfront RV Park bathrooms, crossing Boat Basin Road. Approximately 252 lineal
feet. Utilizing Type IIl backfill inside Beachfront RV, Type IV backfill for Boat Basin Road, and native
backfill when possible. Port will take care of removing and replacing the fence.

Mobilization/Demobilization 3 Fach $750.00 each S 750.00
Labor 1 80 hours $ 5728 prhr S 4,58240
Operator 4 40 hours § 7274 prhr $ 2,909.60
Flaggers 10 hours $ 5239 prhr & 523.90
3 -2 1/2" Electrical Condit 252 LF $ 53.08 prlF 513,376.16
Trench Patch 1lumpsum  $2,190.00LS S 2,190.00
Additional conduit provided 252 LF $  0.00prLF $ 0.00
by Coos Curry Electric
EESSSEECSSERERSEES Sl S S SS S S S S NS
Subtotal $24,332.06
Labor Burden on § 8,015.90 @21.84% $ 1,750.67
Plus 12% Overhead & Profit on Work $24,332.06 $ 2,889.83
Total Estimated Increase for MclLennan Excavation Contract  $ 28,972.56
Submitted this 4th day of April, 2022
BY: AJ\M\ : é
Casey McLennan, President
McLennan Excavation Inc
Accepted and Approved Accepted and Approved
This day of , 2022 This day of 2022
BY: BY:
printed Name: Michael Crow, Architect Printed Name: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager
Entity: Crow/Clay & Associates, Inc Port of Brookings Harbor




PORT OF BROVKINGS HERBOR RY PARK REVISED CONSTRUGCTION SCHEDULE

Projact 18005
Submittal 23
Genoral Gonlratior, Mol anman Evcarvaian tna.
Engingef. CrowiGlay & Aseecialea Inc,
Dwner: Porl of Brookings Harbr
Waek One Vs Twa Yook Thieo Woaek Four Weak Fiva Weaek Blx Week Soven ‘Week Elghl Wack Ninw Week Ten Week Efeven
Mom
na, Work ams Otdober 2- 8 Qatobar 3 15 Oclaber {6- 22 Oclober23- 22 Crfobor 30 §- 12 13- 19 ber 20 - 26 Hayeber27-Di ber 3 - 30
T [w|TH M| T|w|TH F|s|8[m|T|witH M| T|w|m| F n| T|wiTH] S1m| 1 |w|m M| T|w|TH| F | T|wiTH| F| s T|wlrH F 8 T|w|TH M| T|wW[TH
1 |contrattsigned tctaberad, 2031 X
i  [ContraciSlart Dela Octobord, 2022
3 |Prex ginstruction Mty -On Site 800 am
A |wotice to Proceed nied
5 |Mobllize o lob slia %
6 __|Chunge Order Candult trenchin; FE| XA
7 |Chengs Order Trench Patch Eod
& _|Phase One Demo and Grding Sltes & - 15 REX % | o)
?__|Phase Dne Plumblng - Sltes 1 - 15 X | xx|
B _ |Phase One Walar Sites 1 -15
S |Phase One Elecirical Sites1-15 Xix
10_|Phase One Cancrete Siles 1 - 15 LAR AR
11 _[Phase Two Demo and Grading SHes 36 - 22 X[x|x|x
12 |Phase Twa Plumbling Sites 16- 22 XK
13 |Phase Two Water Slles $6-22 XA
14 |Phese Two Electrical Siles 36 -22 4
15 _|Phase Twa Cancrelo Siles 16-22 LR RS
16 [Phase Two Eleclrical Sltes 23-32 e B
17 |Phase Two Plumblng Sites 23 - 32 XK| RE
18 _|Phare Three Domo and Grading - Hew Eltes 35 - 34 - ] FIFEEIED
19 |Phiste Threa Plumbing -New Skas Eﬂ b f- .
20 {Phare Three Watc? - Now STled 33 L RX :
21 [Phara Thres Binctrical - Ne b ] I
22 |phara Three Conaetn - Hew Xld
23 |Demoblliraton and Ceanup X
#4_|Punchijst lfems x| %
24 [End of Contract Decetmber 7, 2022 - 68 diys from October, 2002 .t |




April 5, 2022

Port of Brookings-Harbor Beachfront RV Park

Submittal Log

AJTCHITTEC TLIRE AMND FPLANMPMING
Larl LISE A

mam (ROW/(LAV & ASSDCIATES INC.
I

INTERIOR S

SUBMITTAL DATE DATE RETURNED
SUBMITTED

Required Post Bid Info. 10/29/2021 11/3/2021

Pipe Materials 11/3/2021 11/3/2021

Pipe Materials 21212022 214/2022

Revised & returned to us

Construction Schedule 11/3{2021 11/73/2021

Clean-out cover 21212022 21412022

Pipe Material Add’| Details 21212022 2{4[2022

Water Piping and Spring- 21272022 21412022

Operated Sewer Caps

Electrical 2/15/2022 2{16/2022

Coos Bay, Oregon

125 W. Central Ave., Suite 400 - Coos Bay, OR 97420 (541) 269-0388
MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

www. crowclay.com

IQ®



.

APPLICATION FOR FACILITY PERMIT
{Subject to Conditions; Revocable)

COUNTY CURRY COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT

Road Department 28425 Hunter Creek Road
Gold Beach, OR 97444

PERMIT NO. PERMIT TYPE AND FEE COLLECTED:
Driveway/Road Approach $130
DATE: 3-3p-~2022 = Road Encroachment $250
Road Improvement
Major

Taxmar HU3- 08A ~p|You-00 2X.____Minor

TAX LOT |Mo0 Special 450
X Uity

I, hmm&-_&_lﬂ_mok__hereby make application for a facility permit upon the right-of-way of

{Applicant's Name)

_&a._AT_B&\Q&u& Milepost (s) _SYEE ATTALMWEN in strict conformity to the

(Road Name-County Road Number)

exhibits attached hereto, subject to all terms, conditions, agreerment stipulations, and provisions contained in the appllcation and
permit, and the rules and regulations regarding roads and rights-of-way, as set forth by the Curry County Code Article Three, and any
other applicable regulations, law or ordinance.

DESCRIPTIONOFFACILITY: Ty STAUMC, A8 BLECTAMAL, (ONAUT To WUPAMIEL coos-CuMN
_Gurerane. Powel FEEA T REACHSorST AN FMK Foom TH2 KTE FUAA A
TRA ' AL, ,
G wWils? Pu, Box 8Yg
Signature Malling Address
S$Y1-254~41lb2 _Baoukiabs ok 92914
Phone Number City State Zip
PoATmAnA (O fanTo P Rhusal il S HARRMA. . COM

£mail Address

FACILITY PERMIT

SPECIAL PROVISIONS: The terms and specifications which apply to this permit are as shown on the attachmant
herewith and the permit conditions listed on the reverse side of this application. Noncompliance with these
terms, specifications and conditlons will result in revocation of this permit.

ATTACHMENTS FOR:
Driveway/Road Approach Road Improvement Utility
Road Encroachment Special
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS:
This permit shall be void uness the werk herein contemplated shall have been completed before , 20
APPROVED: INSPECTED:
Approved Date Approved
Issue Date
Denled By Denled

Richard N. Christensen, Roadmaster

e
-



RETURN completed Permit Application to:
Curry County Road Department, 28425 Hunter Creek Road, Gold Beach, OR 97444

A

B.

This permit covers public right-of-way and/or County property only.

It is the responsibility of the permit holder to re-establish any survey monument,
moved, destroyed, etc. while working within County right-of-way. Re-establishment
of survey monuments must be done by an approved registered surveyor and all
costs will be borne by the permit holder.

Notification to the Curry County Road Department is required 24 hours before
beginning work under this permit - (541) 247-7097. Prior approval for modifications
to permit specifications is required.

Failure of the permit holder to ensure strict conformance with all permit conditions
shall be considered good and sufficient cause for revocation of the permit allowing
work within the County road rights-of-way. Permits may be terminated or suspended
when the permit holder is found to have obtained a permit through misrepresentation
of the facts or when, in the judgment of the Roadmaster, terms of the permit are
being violated or public safety is threatened. Permits shall remain in effect until a
change in land use occurs. The permit holder shall be responsible for the cost of
design, installation or construction of additional roadway improvements and traffic
control devices at any time in the future when the traffic generated by the use for
which the access permit is authorized necessitate such installation in the interest of
the public safety.

HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE - The permit holder agrees that their performance
under this permit is at their own sole risk and that they shall indemnify Curry County,
its agents and employees and hold them harmless from any and all liability for
damages, costs, losses and expenses resulting from, arising out of, or in any way
connected with this permit, or from the permit holder's failure to perform fully
hereunder, and the permit holder further agrees to defend Curry County, its agents,
and employees, against all suits, actions or proceedings brought by any third party
against them for which the permit holder would be liable hereunder.

The permit holder guarantees all restoration work for a period of one year from the
date of completing the installation, except non-cement/sand slurry backfills under
pavements shall be warranted for two years from the date of completing the
installation.

Any sight posts, sign posts, or mailboxes that are removed will be replaced
immediately in like condition in the same location and the area around them will be
restored to a like or better condition.

As provided in O.R.S. 758.010 the Road Department, acting on behalf of the County
Board of Commissioners, may designate where utilities may be located within a

County road right-of-way and may order the location of such facility changed if
deemed expedient.

V2



w

i

ra

i,

ﬂ‘r
|
i

4 PPROXI mATE Routg
OF Exeatarion &
“Boat gasin [2OATS
L Rpss IN g







Sl

Contractor's Application for Payment No. _1_

APELICATION FERIOD:  Febrowry 1, 2022 10 April 14,2022 APPLICATION DATE:  April 14, 2022
TO: Pan of Brookingt Harbor FROM: _Melennan Excavatlon lng. Contatior) VA Michacl Crow - Croy/Clay & Avsochtes fite Archiietture ang Planring
PROJECT: Beachfront RV ifark Improvements (CONTRACT:
OWNERS CONTRACT NO, 19008 CONTRA R'S PROJECT NO. 2022 - Poriof Rrooki ENGINEER'S PROICCT NO.:
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 1, ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE .
Approved Chanpe Crders 2. Net changs by Change Osders
Nuniber Addittonx Dedueti 3. Cowenl Contruct Prica (Lino 1 &2)..
1 522,971.56 4. TOTAL COMILETED AND STORED TO DATR
= {Calum F rotsl on Progr i )
3 5. RETAINAGE:
4 n % X $Work Complowed ...
-] b 3% X $0  Siored Matorioly ...
(] ¢ Towul Rewinnge (Lina 34+ Line )
T 6. AMOUNT ELIGIULE TQ DATE (Lins 4« Linw 3.C)...
TOTALS NET] . Sl
CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDERS 528 972 36| 7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line & from prior app -
, B. AMOUNT BUR THIS APPLICATION........ ...
$28972.56 9. DALANCE TO FIMISH, PLUS RETAINAGE
{Colin G total on Progress Uslimates + Line 3.0 nbova) £ 43T, HLTT
Conlratfor's Certifization ;
The undersiyned Contrmetor centlRes, to e best of it inowledge, the following: [{}] . B —s L, A , by 7
All pravious progress pay ived fram Cwrier on oot of Work dona under the Coniract hove bean npplied on account to discharga Paymenl OF {‘ !'f? ’ﬁﬁ _— - 2L } 7. &
C ’s legitimata obligations i 1 it with the Work covered by prior Applications for Payment; (2) Title loatl {lne 8 o athet - afiash oxplanation of the ollter amouni) i
Work, ials and equi | d [ anid Wark, o otharwiso listed in or coverod by this Applieation For Paytent, will pass to Owsiee at ’
Uimo of payment fres and cloar ofall Ligms, security interests, and encumbrances (except sisch as ara covered by n bond acceplable to Owner
|Indennlfying Oiwnar agaltiat any such Liens; sécurity intenesy, or encumbrsces); and {3} All the work covered by Is recommended byr — j ) 2
ihis Application for Payment i n accsrdence yah tho Cortrct Documents and b not defeotive 2 Z
ﬁ ﬂ &I )2‘-:“ %—L h |
Pay | OF:
jara 1A s
ik i H aitach d 1
Cantractor Blgutres L ftinc B or other of the oiboy )
By: Casey M, Mel.erman, President of MeLonnan Excavation, Ine. Date; Ananu Is spproved by:
fownor) {Datey

Alrrte > BresE Fri e sp 87ty
LB oin o T AT AL AL,

EICDC® C-620 Contractar's Applicatlon for Payment
©20t3 National Saciely of Professionnl Engl far EICDC. Al righus reserved,
Pagelof}




Progress Breakdown for Contractor's Application for Payment No. 1

APTLICATION PERIOD:  February 1,2022 1 Apsil 14, 3023 ANFLICATION DATE:  April 14, 2023
T0:_Vortof {ieshinged ibor____ (Ghawes) FROM: Mol sopwn Beguation Joc, _(Contractor} ¢ Mistd Cpom - CromClay & Ans annl
PROFCT: Bunchiiond [V Park Iipovements CONTRACT:
|OWHLR: CONTRALT NO, 12005 CONTRACTOR'S PROJICT HO. JHHCUNEIIES PROMET HO 4
fictm e CONMRSE Indormution = atimaied | Ve of Work ) Total Completad ity | Quoni i
— Deseripion et | e | nicpcoegsy | T Vitie | Qi Inaateg| it i “‘"“_;:"::f‘"““ m Slm:u?l?l.i: m‘f« cmqﬂuzm V"“.;;L:‘::“‘“ — ] ::‘:;‘:::;;‘1
Guantity ol liene () fhid IMeriad Perbind Perind Taxiond e - »
' Bisklitzaton/DemebilEzation .
Fonls and [natrancs | 14 | & 1642500 [ 8 16.425.00 10086 S 1643500 S 1642500 0ove [ & 1682500 [ B
| vormstruction Adninlayaticon D 15 [ ¢ 1300000(s 1500000 $ . $ - H . G | § 15,000 (0
Mabilization [ 15 |5 $00000 (32 5.000.00 5 3 s . s . 5 SO0
Demotilizatio t 15 18 scoomnfs 500000 3 . s 5 T 5 5 3500000}
i Temparary Facillties ) LS 15 Booooo[s 500000 § 5 I's - 3 - [1oook |5 .
| Sigm 1 15 [§ 2oo0n|s 2000.00
7 Sateriala v Ondar
;L',:“‘:;flm’ ‘;','i:f Sﬁlm‘al'nﬂﬂmyl’wkh ] Ly |5 921025 | s u1.210.25 8% 712,76 S TG W O[S G| M |S 007178
3 ;ﬁ-TIurr
| ffta Cloaring 1 13 |5 si66000 % $,266.00 3 5 s . s - [ tooon |5 5256 )
Los=cle and Fence Remeval i 15 | § 1560520 | 3 15,605.20 5 . 5 . B - 1006 | 8 15,605.20
Chemelings ard Povoling | 15 |5 nswass nswas
hlml'mu 1 15 |5 nostw s nosw [ - 5 - 5  [awowrs (3 n057m
4 Esner
= 1 R - s E s . [ B s - | rooon |8 3
1 Trenching/Shoriag 1 15 |5 048325 |5 2038328 3 s 5 T - oes [sT 20a0n
llmlor ! FEENEICTE SINTE 3 - 5 - 3 - | s |3 PRI
Plaocmmi i Fipa 1 IS [ 5 1461630 | 8 111.616.50 s - [ . 5 - T |3 mainse
ekl & Comyaction ¢ iX |S M0IRB0) & 20050 s 5 s 5 s < e s momw
5 Waker [}
leeste [ 15 |§ - |5 5 s 5 s S 5 - oo [ .
[ FrcrechlsfShuoring ] 15 13 1zovee |5 1200660 3 - 5 - [ - weon |[s 12w
I sl OIF 1 15 |5 1356008 1356.00 s - $ - $ - | looow s 135600
El‘fmmuuﬂ'lm ] 15 |'s wsinls 4.361.70 s . $ 5 3 - looms | € 4,361 70
il_kkﬁ&'-‘wmnm [ 18 s sasam|s 5,132,680 5 5 $ - £ - looeks [ s 5,152 80
& Eleriries]
Liscaka 1 15 s - | 3 s . s - s BT .
1 Inemching 1 15 |5 23748400 s 23,4848 5 . - H - W0oLns | § 1.75440
| + Rt Dloeirid - (rbrilling mwAcrials onderol & o ] LS | S 2anrp4azs5 ]S 20089238 § “ £122,221,73 1220775 | §1znnnys ] s | s T4,514.50
Tl & Compection 1 s Ts 3s0000[s  ano00 s 5 . S . s s eannm
T Coscrele
Mricrals [ 15 |5 4705000 | & a7130m0 3 5 s - s - oo [5 arisom
[ [ 18 ['s xmsons 2,795.60 $ . [] - 5 . wooe% [ s FA9500
Fﬁmsﬂ%mm: 1 Ly |8 dz21437 [ wmadar s 5 3 - 5 - | oo [£ a7
| Feuring mnd Finishing 1 15 1S n3essfs 33238 s . [ 5 - e [§ 133255
4 [Clexn up
[Ec Claan by mnd Purehlia ' 15 |5 so0006]s 5.000.00 5 5 s 5 3 .| o |5 50010
Change Onder | | Additional Hloclrio Upgrade « Coos Cuny 1 Ls |5 zsvnaso|s  am9i2se 5 -t 3 - s < [ wome s e
Change Onder2 ! 13 ] . ! s . s - | tooon |5 -
_Charge Onlerd ! 1 LY 5 - s - $ - toave | s
|_Change Order 4 . [ 15 s . 5 - 3 3 . s | 5 -
] I L
Tolsk 1 S GARATLER S VGAIROD ] SIOINI0S1 | € dUpgans ¥ | 8 VGIaNAIA | GOA¥ (5 695HL0E |

'3



@ Insurance Group

A Washington Federa] Coinpany

WAFD Insurance Group, Inc. Invoice # 13009 Page 1of1
Accoumt Number Bate
CAL/OR Insuranca Agency MCLEEXC-01 2712022 |
B Bkrim 27(235R 9741 21282022 : |
Brookings 6 !
Phone ¥ 541-469-3510 “iuli FRap T
one ) $16,425.00
Mclennan Excavatlon Inc, OR#195758 CA#982104
PO Box 6837
Brookings, OR 97415
Bonds HAI0103488 Elective: 2472022 o 204/2023
Ttem # Trans Eff Date Du= DateTrans Description Amount
404184 2/4/2022 2/28/2022 NEWB New BOND Effective 2/4/2022 $16,425.00
Total Involca Balance: $16,425.00
2/7/2022 McLennan Excavation Inc, OR#195758 CA#982104 Paga Lof1l

7



@

AlA Type Documant
Application and Certification for Payment

Page 2 of 2
TO (OWNER): MCLENNAN EXCAVATION INC PROJECT: BROOKINGS HARBOR RV PARK APPLICATION NO: 1 DISTRIBUTION
P.O. BOX 6637 J22010 T
BROOKINGS, OR 87415 16024 BOAT BASIN ROAD PERIOD TO: 4/30/2022 _ OWNER
BROOKINGS, OR 87415 _ ARCHITECT
_CONTRACTOR
FROM (CONTRACTORY): g.b. Reese Elaciig, Inc. VIA {ARCHITECT): ARCHITECT'S
1750 Shetman Avenue : PROJECT NO:
P.O, Box 1068
North Bend, OR 97459
CONTRACT FOR: CONTRACT DATE:
SCHEDULE PREVIOUS COMPLETED STORED COMPLETED
_ITEM DESCRIPTION VALUE  APPLICATIONS THISPERIOD  MATERIAL STORED N BALANCE RETAINAGE
1 MOBILIZATION 18,613.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,613.00 0.00
2 GENERAL MATERIALS 44, 563,00 0.00 0.00 44,563.00 44,563.00 100.00 0,00 2,228.15
3 GEAR 94,435,00 .00 0.00 94,435.00 94,435.00 100.00 0.00 4,721.75
4 LABOR 34,620.00 0.00 0,00 D.00 0.00 0.00 34,620,00 0.00
Ccoo1 €O #01- DEDUCT RV -32,713.00 0.00 -32,713.00 0.00 -32,713.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
PEDESTALS
REPORT TOTALS §159,518.00 $0.00 $-32,743.00 $138,098.00 $106,285.00 66.83 $63,233.00 $6.949.90




__J H.D. FOWLER

; COMPANY
PO Box 160 * Bellevue, WA * 98009-0160

To: JULIE From: Matt Frodge
Julis@plpeandrock.com Phene: (541) 326-0005 x2010
MCLENNAN EXCAVATION INC (134220)

04/04/22 08:55;46am

Order Acknowledgement

Non-Stocks, Speclal Orders or Englneared lfems may not be returnable. Those that are retumable are subject to a minlmum
25% restock fea. Some orders may also have applicable freight charges not shown on this Order Acknowledgemant,

Your PO: RV PARK Project: BEACHFRONT RV PARK
Ordered By: LILY RAMIREZ Order Date:  02/08/22
Est. Ship Date:  04/07/22 Order#: 07306142
Shipping From: Medfard Warehouse Ship A: OUR TRUCK
Freight Terms:
Line# Item Unit Gty Price Ext. Price Tax
1 4" SDR35 3034 GASKETED PVC SEWER PIPE 20’ FT 320 2.41 771.20 N
LENGTH
2 4" PSM WYE GASKETED FOR SEWER OR DRAIN EA 7 268.81 187.67 N
3 4" PSM 45 ELBEOW GASKETED FCR SEWER OR DRAIN EA 25 15.56 389.00 N
4 4" PSM 45 ELBOW GASKETED X SPIGOT FOR SEWER OR EA 1 13.99 1399 N
DRAIN
5 4" PSM 22-1/2 ELBOW GASKETED FOR SEWER OR EA 1 15,52 15.52 N
DRAIN
6 4" PSM CLEAN QUT ADAPTER FIPT X SW FOR SEWER EA 2 7.99 1598 N
OR DRAIN
7 4" PSM PLUG THREADED FOR SEWER OR DRAIN EA 2 4.86 072 N
9 GOS5TBOX 11" ROUND CONCRETE VALVE BOX 10004156  EA 2 42.38 8472 N
CHRISTY
10  GO5CT 11" ROUND Cl VALVE BOX COVER MARKED EA 2 31.82 8364 N
"SEWER" 3001070 CHRISTY
11 4"ENVIRO DESIGN ORANGE FEMALE FOOTLOOSE SEWEREA 7 31.85 22385 N
CAP FF1040
Total 1,775.08
Freight 0.00
Tax 0.00
Grand Total 1,775.09

9




COMPANY
PO Box 160 * Bellevue, WA * 98009-0160
To: JULIE From:
Julie@plpeandrock.com
MCLENNAN EXCAVATION INC (134220)
04/04/22 08:55:08am
Order Acknowledgement

H.D. FOWLER

Matt Frodge
Phone: (541) 326-0095 x2010

Non-Stocks, Special Orders or Engineered items may not be relurnable. Those that are retumable are subject to a minimum
26% restock fea. Some orders may also have applicable freight charges not shown on this Order Acknowledgement.

Your PO: RV PARK Project: BEACHFRONT RV PARK
Ordered By: LILY RAMIREZ Order Date:  02/08/22
Est. Ship Date:  04/07/22 ; Order#: 07305143
Shipping From: Medford Warehouse Ship VIA: OUR TRUCK
Freight Terms:
Line# Hem Unit Qty Price Ext. Price Tax
1 4" SDR36 3034 GASKETED PVC SEWER PIPE 20' FT 1280 241 3,084.80 N
LENGTH
2 4" PSM WYE GASKETED FOR SEWER OR DRAIN EA 29 26.81 77749 N
3 4" PSM 45 ELBOW GASKETED FOR SEWER OR DRAIN EA 57 15.66 886.92 N
4 4" PSM 22-1/2 ELBOW GASKETED FOR SEWER OR EA 7 15.52 108.64 N
DRAIN
5 4" PSM CLEAN OUT ADAPTER FIPT X 8W FOR SEWER EA 9 7.99 7181 N
OR DRAIN
6 4" PSM PLUG THREADED FOR SEWER OR DRAIN EA 9 4.86 43.74 N
7 GO5TBOX 11" ROUND CONCRETE VALVE BOX 1000416  EA 9 42,36 381.24 N
CHRISTY
8 GO5CT 11" ROUND €I VALVE BOX COVER MARKED EA g 31.82 286.38 N
*SEWER" 3001070 CHRISTY
10 4" ENVIRO DESIGN ORANGE FEMALE FOOTLOOSE SEWEREA 22 31.85 702.90 N
CAP FF1040
Total 6,344.02
Freight 0.00
Tax 0.00
Grand Total 6,344,02




H.D. FOWLER
COMPANY
PO Box 160 * Bellevus, WA * 88009-0160

To: JULIE From: Matt Frodge
julis@plpeandrock.com Phone: (541) 326-0085 x2010
MCLENNAN EXCAVATION INC (134220)

04/04/22 08:55:0fam

Order Acknowledgement

This order requires confirmed receipt of this acknowledgement because it contains special order items which are indicated
by two asterisks: (**). Please approve lhis order by simply replying to this email message, or by printing the atlachment,
signing and retuming it back to us.

Non-Stacks, Speclal Orders or Enginesred ltems may not be returnable, Those that are retumable are subject to a minimum
25% restock fes. Some orders may also have applicable freight charges not shown on this Order Acknowledgement,

| accept this as written. Pleasse get this order far me as listed helow.

Signaturs Data Print Name
Your PO: RV PARK Project: BEACHFRONT RV PARK
Ordered By: LILY RAMIREZ Order Date:  02/08/22
Est, Ship Date:  04/07/22 Order#: 07305144
Shipping From: Medford Warehouse Ship VIA: OUR TRUCK
Freight Terms:
Line# Item Unit Gty Price . Ext. Price Tax
1 = 4" ENVIRO DESIGN ORANGE FEMALE FOOTLOOSE SEWEFREA 76 31.95 242820 N
CAP FF1040
Total 2,428.20
Frelght 0.00
Tax 0.00
Grand Total 2,428.20

2\




@| H.D. FOWLER
CONMPANY

PO Box 160 * Bellevue, WA * 98009-0160

To; JULIE From: Matt Frodge
Julie@ptpeandrock.com Phone: (541) 326-0095 %2010
MCLENNAN EXCAVATION INC (134220)

04/04/22 08:54:52am

Order Acknowledgement

Non-Stocks, Speclal Orders or Engineerad items may not be refurnable. Those that are returnable are subject to a minimum
25% restock fes. Soma orders may also have applicable freight charges not shown on this Order Acknowledgement.

Your PO: RV PARK Project: BEACHFRONT RV PARK
Ordered By: LILY RAMIREZ Order Date:  (02/08/22
Est. Ship Date: 04/07/22 Order#: 07305145
Shipping From: Medford Warehouse Ship VIA: OUR TRUCK
Frelght Terms:
Line# Item Unit Oty Price Ext. Price Tax
1 3/4" CTS MUNICIPEX PIPE 100" ROLL AWWA 904 FT 800 1.25 1,000.00 N
ASTM F876 & F877 REHAU
2 C14-33Q-NL 3/4" FIP X CTS QUICK JOINT COUPLING EA 30 21,08 63240 N
NO-LEAD FORD
3 C84-33Q-NL 3/4" MIP X CTS QUICK JOINT COUPLING EA a0 20.04 601.20 N
NO-LEAD FORD
4 3/4" CTS STIFFENER #51 FORD EA 70 1.90 133.00 N
Total 2,366.80
Freight 0.00
Tax 0.00
Grand Total 2,366.60

27




H.D. FOWLER

COMPANY
PC Box 160 * Bellsvue, WA * 98009-0160

To: JULIE From: Matt Frodge
julle@pipaandrock.com Phone: (541) 326-0085 %2010
MCLENNAN EXCAVATION INC (134220)

04/04/22 08:54:42am

Order Acknowledgement

This order requlrés confirmed receipt of this acknowledgemen! because it contains speclal order items which are indicated
by two asterisks {**). Please approve this arder by simply replying to this email message, or by printing the attachment,
signing and returning It back to us.

Non-Stocks, Speclal Orders or Engineered items may not be returnable. Those that are retumable are subject to a minimum
25% restock fee. Soma orders may also have applicable fraight charges not shown on this Order Acknowledgsment.

| a\cw as writtep. Please get this order for me as listed below.
' /[_ — ‘i‘i}a_l‘rg): L\ o iz
Sig(njybra S Date

Print Name
Your PO: RV PARK Project: BEACHFRONT RV PARK
Ordered By: LILY RAMIREZ Order Date: 02/08/22
Est. Ship Data:  06/30/22 Order#: 07305146
Shipping From: Medford Warshouse Ship VIA:  WILL CALL
Freight Terms:
Lines Item . Unit Qty Price Ext. Price Tax-
5 wHYPOWER POWERPORT RV PEDESTAL POWERSNAP EA 29 1,287.00 37,323.00 N

WEATHER BASE 30A 125V, 20A GFC! DUPLEX. 50A
126/250V, WHITE LID/TOP, CLEAR LENS
8 »HYPOWER POWERPCRT RV PEDESTAL POWERSNAP EA 9 1,287.00 11,683.00 N
WEATHER BASE 30A 125V. 20A GFCI DUPLEX. 50A
125250V, WHITE LID/TOP, CLEAR LENS

Total 48,906.00
Frolght 0.00
Tax 0.00
Grand Total 48,906.00

23




4/18/22, 11:10 AM IMG_4090.jpg

https://mail.google.com/mailiu/0f?tab=rm&ogbHinbox/FMcgzGpFWQsqGdRFXquvikx CVKFZWhW?projector=1&messagePart|d=0.1




4/19/22, 11:10 AM IMG_4089.jpg

AUGPLN
h‘/l(n\

[
o i

;_ ! £ T)“m!;ﬁ:ﬂh

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGpFWQsqGdRFXgvikeCVKFZWhW?2projector=1&messagePartld=0.3




4119/22, 11:11 AM IMG_4088.Jpg

hitps:/mail.google.com/mailiu/0/tab=rm&ogbifinbox/FMfcgzGpFWQsqGdRFXgvvlkeCVKFzWh jector=1&messagePartld=0.5




4/19/22, 11:11 AM IMG_4087jpg

(L 1T

K137 10

N
—J

https:/fmail. google.com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&ogbtinbox/FMfcgz GpFWQsqGdRFXgwlkx CVKFzZWhW ?projector=1&messagePartld=0.5




4/19/22, 11:11 AM IMG_4086.jpg

https://mail.google com/mail/u/0/?tab=rm&.ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGpFWQsqGdRFXgwikx CVKFzWhW?projector=1&messagePartld=0.5 2811"[




ACTION ITEM — B

DATE: May 6, 2022

RE: Crab Dock on River Jetty

TO: Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members
ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

» Crab dock located on the river jetty was discussed during a Regular Commissioner
Meeting on January 19, 2022.

» The Board unanimously approved the motion “installing a single bar gate with a
sign (Enter at Your Own Risk) at the entrance to the North Jetty and providing
the US Corps of Engineers a key for access. Remove entire crab dock including
piling and ramp from the North Jetty when a project warrants a barge and crane
or if other means become available.”

» | had a meeting with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Robin Norris, Realty Specialist for
Portland District Real Estate Division and Gregory Speer, Oregon Coast Project
Manager Channels & Harbors regarding the location of the river jetty crab dock to the
federal channel right-of-way and the ramp attached to the jetty. The crab dock location
does not create any issues with the federal dredging operations even though it is within
or on the edge of the federal channel boundaries. During this conversation it was
thought that the river jetty belonged to the Port and not part of the USACE maintenance
authority. So, the crab dock ramp attached to the jetty was not an issue for USACE. But
if the crab dock were to be removed, a 408 review would be required.

» After further research by the Port and USACE, Robin found that the river jetty does
belong to the USACE, and no documents were found providing the Port permission to
install a ramp off the jetty. Since there wasn’t originally an approval for the addition of the
ramp on the dike, we are now needing to go through the process to do that. Now is the
time for the port/commissioners to decide if they want to do any other work on the dike
so it all can be evaluated and processed for approval at the same time. Form SF-299 will
need to be completed if the ramp and crab dock stays.

DOCUMENTS

» LUSACE most recent survey of the Federal Channel, 1 page

« Drawing showing the Federal Channel overlaid to the crab dock location, 1 page

e Historical Google satellite photographs of Basin 1 from 1994, 2000, 2004 and 2021, 4
pages

e Email #1 from Robin Norris, USACE with attachments, 124 pages

o Email #2 from Robin Norris, USACE with aftachments, 11 pages

o Email #3 from Robin Norris, USACE with attachment, 6 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION — there are two motion options:

e Recommended Motion Option 1:

29



Motion to approve completing necessary U.S. Army Corps of Engineers forms to keep
the crab dock at its current location and authorize the Port Manager to sign the
necessary form applications.

Recommended Motion Option 2:

Motion to approve completing necessary U.S. Army Corps of Engineers forms to remove
the crab dock and ramp and authorize the Port Manager to sign the necessary form
applications.



MOST RELENT SURNRS oF THE FENAAL— CHlanNEAL-

Iﬁum’s CF ENGINEERS s . s LS. ARMY

_ e i T

o 3
_'_'_,-F--H-FFFFF 2 CREADN

_,_,.,-'-"'"ff- ::

- bt

" i N

o
A
BROOKINGS

HARBOR

\

Er T

BIIES, e2pal o
CHETCO RIVER
e e L5 Ao aRpGox @
s —i e " TRANCE &
e it st ctatn by b i g rS [ DB ¥ - BARQE TURNING DASIN
f s et B i [ PP . Jee—— 11 AT HR
- =S - - ——— e s
gl e et e poimie 1 25 , P
o cinid—
i prs T T e [ oy i T — i
i e T R i i p— f—
e T o = f— RS, st | urnenn [
S —— e s — v e
conomon{El  Pessmcs [ m] [y R —— - CH_0L CHI 2303 &8
i e i o .

@




Crab Dock

&



A

M

- L T ] . -
""'.'Il'.ii-.,.-a-!'l L I e ]

o .. ST

l"-r- -
PR s BT M B

1

e

o




2000

| it e Caalni




Ruler

Line | Path | Palygon Crde = 3Dpath | 30polygon |
Measure the distance between multiple points an the groumd

Length: 5757 | Feet - |

| Show Elevation Prafie

|¥| Mouse Navigation




o%

Rules

_Line |Q1|_Pnfygnn Cirele ] SD_pal_h \;po!vgon |

Measure tha distance betwaen multiple polnts on the ground

Length: 57.72 | Feet -|

|__| show Elevation Profile

|¥'| Mouse Navigation




portmanager@portofbrookingsharbor.com

From: Norris, Robin C CIV USARMY CENWP (USA) <Robin.C.Norris@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2022 12:35 PM

To: portmanager@portofbrookingsharbor.com

Cc: Speer, Gregory A CIV USARMY CENWP (USA)

Subject: Port of Brookings Boat Basin dike

Attachments: Port of Brookings_ USACE Cooperative Agmt dtd 4 Dec 1967.pdf; Chetco

Improvement_Congressional Document_1965.pdf

Gary,

See attached for the original Local Cooperative Agreement between USACE and the Port of Brookings and the 1965
congressional support for work at the port.

| will send a 2" email with another congressional document from the ‘70’s (large document).

Since USACE does own the boat basin dike, any work on it has to be approved by USACE. Plans and specs would need to
be reviewed (a 408 reviewj and a Letter of Consent given to the Port by the Portland District Real Estate Office after the
review if the work is approved. Reach out to me if you have questions about this.

Sincerely,

Robin € Norris

Realty Specialist

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Portland District Real Estate Division (RE}
333 SW 1st Avenue

Portland, Oregon 97208

)



[

Cheteo River, Oregon

Port of Brookings
RESCLUTION OF FORMAL ASSURANCES
FOR LOCAL COOPERATION

TO THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

BE IT KNOWN, That we, the undersigned menbers of the Board of Commisailoners
of the Port of Brookings of Brookings, Oregon in a regular meeting converned this 4

dey of  Decemben , 19 ¢ 7, do hereby affirm that:

WHEREAS, the Port of Brookings is organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Oregon, having five regularly elected members of the Bosrd of Commissioners
who have the power and authority to cooperate with the United States and tc furnish the
required assurances of local cooperation contemplated herein, and

WHEREAS, the Unlted States, through the District Engineer, Corpe of Engineers,
Department of the Army, has made general plens for modificatidn to the navigation
project on the Chetco River at the Port of Brookings, Oregon in Sections 5 and 8;
Township 41 South, Range 13 West of the Willsmette Meridian, Curvy County, Oregon,
which work has been authorized by River end Harbor Act of 1965, approved 27 QOctober
1965, and

WHEREAS, we wish to express our ungqualified approval of the above work.

NCW, THEREFORE, EE IT RESOLVED, Thet the Port of Brookings will:

(a) Contribute in cash 6.5 percent of the First cost of the small-boat
access channel and that portion of the dike adJacent thereto; such contribution,
presently estimated at $14,800.00, to be peid in a lump sum prior to initiation of
construction, subject to final adjustment after actual coste have been determined.

(b) Provide without cost to the United States all lends, easements, and
rights-of-way requlred for construction and subsequent waintenance of the improvements
and for alds to navigatlon upon the requeat of the Chief of Engineers, including sult-
able arcae determined by the Chief of Engineers to be required in the general public
Interest for initial and subsequent dieposal of spoll, and also necessary reteining
dikes, bulkhesds, and embenkments therefor or the coets of such retaining works.

(c) Hold end eave the United States free from damages due to the construec-
tlon worke end subsequent maintenance of the improvement.

(d) Provide and maintain at local expense adequate public terminals and
transfer facilities (including a suitsble barge Blip) open to all on equal terms,

{e) Provide and maintain at local expense depths in berthing and mooring
areas and local sccess chennels serving the terminels commensurate with depthe pro-
vided in the related project areas.

5



Page 2 = Resolution of Formal Assurances for Local Cooperation.

(£) Provide and maintein without cost to the United States an adequete
service frontage, launching remp, and a public landing with suitable supply facilities
in the small-boat baslin, necessary mooring facilitles with sultable depths for local
and transient boats, utilities, access roads, parking areas, end related public-use
ghore facllities, open to all on equal terms.

(g) Accomplish without cost to the United States such alterations as
required in sewver, water supply, drainage, end other utility facilities, as well as
their mailntenance.

(h) Aesurance of Compliance with the Depertment of Defense Directive under
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. The Port of Brookings (hereinafter called
"Applicant-Reciplent") hereby agrees that it will comply with title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to the
Directive of the Department of Defense (32 CFR Part 300, issued as Department of
Defense Directive 5500.11, December 28, 1964) issued pursuant to that title, to the
end that, in accordance with title VI of that Act and the Directive, no person in the
United States ghall, on the ground of race, color or national origin be exeluded from
participation in, be denled the benefiis of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination
under any program or ectivity for which the Applicant-Reciplent recelves Federal finan-
cial assistance from the Corps of Engineers, Department of the Army, in connection with
the Port of Brookings, Chetco River, Oregon Project and hereby gilves assurance thet it
willl immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.,

If any reel property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the
ald of TFederal finencial sssistance extended to the Applicant-Recipient by the Corps
of Engineers, this assurance shall obligate the Applicant-Recipient,,or in the case of
any Lransfer of such property, any tranaferee, for the perilod during which the real
rroperty or structure 1s used for a purpose for which the Federal finsncilal aselstance
is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of gimilar services or
benefits. TIf any personal property ie so provided, this aspurance shall obligate the
Applicant-Recipient for the pericd during which it retains ownershlp or posseseicn of
the property. 1In all other cases, this assurance shall obligete the Applicant-
Recipient for the period during which the Federal finaenciel sesslstance is extended to
i1t by the Corps of Engineers.

This assurance is glven in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining
any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts, property, discounts or other Federal
financial asslstance extended after the date hereof to the Appllcant-Reciplent by the
Department, including instellment payments after such date on account of arrangements
for Federel financial assistence which were approved before such date. The Applicant-
Reciplent recognizes and sgrees that such Pederal financisl assistance will be extended
in relisnce on the representations and agreements made in this assurance, and that the
United States shall have the right to seek judiclal enforcement of this assurance.
This assurance is binding on the Applicant-Reclplent, its successors, transferees snd
assignees, and the person or persons whose signatures appear below are authorized to
elgn this sasurance on behalf of the Applicant-Recipient.

THAT, This resolution shall be incorporated in the minutes of this wmeeting

and a copy thereof be sent to the Department of the Army.

Board of Commlssicners of the
Port of Brookings

-

: S A —
Fred Fox, Commissioner

W o e A wy L0 T ,/,,E..,_".'d,

Frank Akin, Commlssioner Buddy E. smitg,vysecretary

A



SR N

. N - 2

Page 3 ~ Resolutlon of Formal Assurances for Loeal Cooperation.

I, BUDDY I, SMITH, of Brookings, Oregon, do hereby certify thet T am the
Becretary of the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Brockinge, and es such
officer am the legal custodien of the minutes of 1ts proceedings and records; that

I have carefully compared the foregolng copy of the resolutlon dated Petembe, ¥

19 L7 s and that the foregoing is a full, true and correct transcript of the originsl
and the whole thereof in my care and possessicn, and I certify that the sald meeting
was legally held and that said resolution was regularly and unanimously passed.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on this i day

(Signea) M 8, ,cgﬁ)r-:#

Buddy E. S , Beeretary of the
Beard of Coimflssioners of the
Port of Brookilngs

of —Decé‘mber\ 5 19‘7 .

mrm: (B e (967

The assurances contained in this Resolutlon are hereby accepted for and on

ROBERT L, BANGERT s )
Colonel, Corps of Engineer

Dietrict Engineer

behalf of the Unlted States of America.

o\



RESOLUT ION OF ACSURANCES FOR LOCAL CCOPERATTON

TO THE SECRETARY OF [HE ARMY, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

BE IT XNOWN, that we, the undersigned members of the Board of Commis-

sioners the Fort of Brockings, s munioipal cooperaticn organized and existing

Spoe raf
under the laws of the State of Oregon, in a meeting convened thils
-~
érs il day of &“W\-ﬁ s 195 7, do hereby affirm

that: U d P
WHEREAS, The Port of Brookinge, was created and orgnizedﬁm\,

’j 7 N 1954” under Chapter 777 Oregon Revised Statutea,

and hag g,{ A regularly aleebed (appointed) members of its
T

Board of Commissioners, who are duly authorized to oconduct the business wffairs
of said Port, levy mesessments, and sponsor the publlec works combemplated here-
by, and,

WHEREAS, the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1945, Public Law 14 - 79th Congress,
approved March 2, 1945, muthorized the Chetco River, Oregon Project for the
stabilication of the channel through the bar at the mouth of the river by the
oonstruction of Jettles and dredging, in accordance with the report of the
Chief of Engineers dated December 23, 1941, House Dooument No, 817 - 77th Con~
grena, 2nd Sesalon, and

WHEREAS, We wloh to express our unqualified approval of waid projeot as
approved in said Act of Congress,.

NO¥, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that in mcoordance with the authorizing
act, the Port of Brookings will:

&y Furnigh free of cost to the United States, all lamds,
esapemonts, and rights-of-way and spoil-diaposal mress for
the initial work and for subsequent maintenance when and
an required, and

bs Furnish free of cost to the United Stetes a suitable quarry
or source of roymlty-free rock for comatruction of the jetties,

!



THAT, this resolution shall be incorporated in the mimutea of this

masting, nnd a copy thereof be sent to the Department of the Army.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF BROOKINGS

(SEAL)

STATE OF OREGON )
County of Curry

Seoretary of the Port of Brookings,
the munlolipal ocorporatilon na.mad in the foregolng Rescolution, do hereby certify
that the foregoing 1a & true and corrsct copy of a Resolution passed and:
adopted by its Board of Commisslonsrs at a meeting held on

195 7.

IN WITMNE:.S wHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand mnd affixed the Port's

official seal this _ 51 day of 1957,

I

Seoretary

DATE: Vel /ﬁh z/d/rr /957

The acaurances contained in this Resolutlon are hereby sccepted for and
on behalf of the United States of Amarios,

"QW

". Golonol Corps of Engineers
Diutrict Englnser

b,



Buth Congress, 1st Seasion s 5 = - - - . _ 7 Secnate Document No, 21

CHETCO RIVER, OREGON

LETTER
FROM
THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY

TRANSMITTING

A LETTER FROM THE CHIEF OF ENGINEERS, DEPART-
MENT OF THE ARMY, DATED MARCH 4, 1965, SUBMIT.
TING A REPORT, TOGETHER WITH ACCOMPANYING
PAPERS AND ILLUSTRATIONS, ON A REVIEW OF THE
REPORT ON CHETCO RIVER, OREGON, REQUESTED BY
A RESOLUTION OF THE'COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC WORKS,
UNITED STATES SENATE, ADOPTED APRIL 28, 1958

PRESENTED BY MR. McNAMARA

APRIL 28, 1966.—Referred to the Committee on Public Works and
ordered {0 be printed with illustrations

U8 GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE
WASHINGTON ¢ 1465

w-1 o

4%



4



CONTENTS

. Page
Letter of dransmittal . . oo . ... e iaa_a v
Comments of the Bureau of the Budget_. . _____ L. vi
Comments of the State of Oregon_ o vil
Comments of the Department of the Interior._.___. ... .. . ___._ viii
Report of the Chief of Engineers, Department of the Army .. _.__ ... . _..___.._. 1
Report of the Board of Engineera for Rivers and Harbors, - ..o oo onveeoooonos 2
Repart of the District Engineer:
Bylabus . . e e 7
Authoriby . e i mmeam——- 8
Purpose and extent of study ... ..o 8
Description:
B, General e e 8
e, Useof enbrance. _ . . ]
d. Published charts. ... ... e 9
Tributary area:
A General. . . e e e —— e aa 9
b, Adjacent ports_ . e ieaceeaae 11
d ReBOUNCEE . e e e 11
e, Transportation facilitiea. . __. . .. aiaaaa- 11
Bridges. . .o oo o o e e e e e e e e e 11
Prior TePOTt S o e o e e e e M mmam—mmm - 11
Existing Corps of Engineexs’ project._ ... . . i 12
Local cooperation on existing project ... ... ..o ccieaaaa 12
Other improvements._ .. __ .. e icmineecemana———aa 12
Terminal and transfer facilities . . ______ . ____ .. o... 12
Improvement desired _ __ ___ __ . aeoa_. 16
Existing and prospective commerce:
a. Existing commerce._ .. ____ el 16
b, Prospective COMMErece. ... oo et o m e ee o amm e 17
Vessel traffic. ... .o.ooooomvonna. Cmm i mm mm e m e m . m e m————————— 17
Difficulties attending navigation:
A Channel. . o e 19
b, Harbor and turning area. .. __ . .. ... iceaoilioao. 19
e Jettien e 19
Water power and other apecial subjeets. . ... 20
Plan of improvement:
b, Channel dimensions. .. ... ... ..o e eeie e mmem— 20
¢, Jetty extension. .. ..o 20
d, Protective dike_ . e cemeccaeaaaa 21
e, Spoil disposal _. . ... .. ... ... o on S EEEE gl = 21
f. Mooring basin .. .. oo e e " 21
Shareline changes. - . . .o d e e mmm e 22
Required aids to navigation. . . __ . . 22
Estimate of first cost_ . . et 22
Estimates of annual charges:
a, Estimate of annual maintenance  _______ .. .. .. _______.._.. 23
b. Estimate of annual charges___ .. ____.__ .. . .o . . 23

Y



Report of the District Engineer—Continued

Estimates of benefits: Page
A Gemeral_ . . e . Sy %
b. Lumber shipments. ... .. 24
¢. Plywood shipments_______ . oo 2
d. Woodehips._ . VAl
e. Commercial fishing. ... _ .. ... ... ... 27
f. Recreational boating. ... ... .. aiii.a.. 27
g Reduction in barge and boat damages__._______ .. _ . .. ... ... 20
h. Harborof refuge. ... _______________... PSP S e 29
i, Summary of benefits__ ... ___ ...l 27
Comparison of benefits and costs_ .. .. ..l 28
Proposed local cooperation. . ... ... aiaaa 28
Allocation of costs among purpoBes. . . .. .. i 29
Apportionment of costs among interests_ . ... ... ... . 29

Coordination with other agenctes

a. Fish and wildlife agencies_ - ____ .. _ .. ..o .. 30

¢, Views of local interests_ . rmm e 3

DR CUBBE O - e e e e ————————— e 3
ComCBIOMIB . o o o o e e 3
Recommendation . . . o am - 33
Recommendations of the Division Engineer__ __ ______ . __ .. . ... . oooooo. 34

APPENDIXES ACCOMPANYING THE REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER
(Only Appendix A not printed)

Appendix A, Design and Cost Estimates, ' Page
Appendix B. Benefit Evaluation_________ e 3b
Appendix C, Significant Correspondénce and Exhibits_____. . PPN 61
Information called for by Senate Resolution 148, 85th Congress_. ... ............ 107

ILLUSTRATION ACCOMPANYING THE REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER
Plate I. Recommended Improvement,

Yo



- LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
WASHINGTON 18, D.C.

April 22, 1965

Honoreble Pat. McNamara
Chairman, Committee on Public Works
United States Senate

Dear Mr. Chairman:

T am transmitting herewith a favorable report dated L} March
1965, from the Chief of Engineers, Department of the Army, together
with accompanylng papers and illustrations, on a review of the report
on Chetco River, Oregon, requested by a resolution of the Committee
on Public.Works, United States Senate, adopted 28 April 1958,

The vlews of the State of Oregon-mnd the Department of the
Interior are set forth in the inclosed communications,

The Bureau of the Budget advises that there is no objection to
the submigsion of the proposed report to the Congress; however, it
states that no commitment can be made at this time as to when any
egtimate of appropriaztion would be submlitted for construction of the
project modification, if authorized by the Congress, since this would
ba governed by the President!s budgetary objectives as determined by
the then prevalling fiscal situation. ‘A copy of the letter from the
Bureau of the Budget 1s inclosed.

Slncerely yours,

4 :
1 Znol W
Report ' k

Secretary of the Army

4



COMMENTS OF THE BUREAU OF THE BUDGET

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

BUREAU OF THE BUDGET
WASHINGTON, D.C, 20503

9 Anri) 1965

Honorable Stephen Ailes
Secretary of the Army
Washington, D, C. 20310

Dear Mr, Secretary:

Mr, Alfred B, Fitt's letter of April 2, 1965, submitted
the favorable report of the Chief of Engineers on Chetco
River, Oregon, in response to a resolution of the Com-
mittee on Public Works, United States Senate, adopted
April 28, 1958,

I am authorized by the Director of the Bureau of the
Budget to advise you that there would be no objection to
the submission of the proposed report to the Congress.
No commitment, however, carn be made at this time as to
when any estimate of appropriation would be submitted
for construction of the project modification, if author-
ized by the Congress, since this would be governed by
the President's budgetary objectives as determined by
the then prevailing fiscal situatiom,

z ""'Chief, Resources and
Civil Works Division

4B



COMMENTS OF THE STATE OF OREGON

JOHH B, DAYIE, CHAIRMAN
WTAYTON
MRS, W, D. HAGEMSTEIN, Viok CHAIRMAN
PERTLAND
INERY N, CABTLR
CORYALLI®
LASELLE K, COLES
FRINRYILLE
uis W, FOOTR
Forear OROVE

WILLIAM L. JUOS
EA0LE POINT

T STATE OF OREGON
STATE WATER RESOURCES BOARD

#00 PUBLIC SERVICE BUILDING
BALEM 87310

February 11, 196%

Chief of Engineers
Corps of Engineers

. S. Army
Washington 2%, D. C.

Dear Sirt

We have received for comment on behalf of the
State of Oregon, in accordance with Section 1 of
Public Taw 534, 79th Congress and Publle Law
85-62%, a copy of the proposed report together
with the reports of the Board of Englneers for
Rivers and Harbors and of the District and
Division Engineers, on a review of the report
on Chetco River, Oregon.

We concur with the views of the Chief of
Engineers.

Very truly yours,

Q,ﬂl e

Donel J
Executive Secretary

DJL/je

vit



COMMENTS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT, OF THE INTERIOR

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON b.c. ‘20240

February 26, 1965
Dear Genera1‘Wilson:

This is in réply to your letter of December 16, 1964, requesating
our views on a review of the report on Chetco River, Oregon,

The Fish and Wildlife Service advises that the recommended.
project for the Chetco River, Oregon, would result in benefits
to sport and commercial fishing in the area, The Service notes
that the public will be permitted to fish from the north jetty

extension and that the project construction schedule will be
modified to the extent practicable to aveid blasting during the
period June 15 to July 15 in the interest of anadromous fisgh
conservation,

Thank you for the opportunity of commenting on the recommended
improvements,

Sincerely yours,

Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Interior

Lt, General Walter K, Wilson, Jr,
Chief of Englneers

Department of the Army
Washington, D,C, 20315

will

2®



- CHETCO: RIVER, OREGON -
REPORT OF THE CHIEF OF ENGINEEBB, DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

HEADQUARTERS
DEFARTMENT OF THE ARMY
OPHICH OF THE CHIEF OF ENGINEERS

WASHINGTON, D.C, 20115

W AIMLY RIFER YO

ENGCW-PD , 4 March 1965

SURJECT: Chetco River, Oregon
TO! THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY

1, I submlt for tranamission to Congress the report of the Board
of Engineers for Rivers and Harbors, accompanied by the reports of the
District end Division Engineers, in response to a resclution adopted
28 April 1958 by the Commitiea on Public Works of the United SBiates
Senate, concerning the advisablility of modifylng the existing project
for Chetco River, Oregon, with particular reference to the development
of a small-boat basin.

2. The District and Division Engineere recommend modification of
the existing project for Chetco River to provide for dredging an entrance
channel 14 feet deep and 120 feet wide; ralsing the north jJetty to a
helght of 16 feet above mean lower low water and extending it seaward for
450 feet; dredging a turning basin 14 feet deep, 250 feet wide, and 650
feet long; constructing m protective gravel dike 1,800 feet long; and
dredging an access channel 12 feet deep, 100 feet wide, and 800 feet long;
at sn estimated first cost of $1,317,000 for construction, and $25,000 )
annuelly for maintenance in addition to that now required; subject to cer-
tain requirements of local cooperatlon including a cesh contribution of
6.5 percent of the first cost of constructing the smell-bost acceas chan-
nel end that portion of the dike adjacent thereto, such contribmtion
presently estimated at $9,000. The net cost to the United States for
construction is estimated at $1,308,000. The snnual charges are esti-
mated at $78,500 and average annual benefits at $293,400, resulting in a
benefit-cost ratio of 3.7.

3. The Board of Engineers for Rivers and Harbors concurs in general
in the findings of the Distriet and Division Engineera and recommends the
improvements, subject to certain conditions of local cooperation, includ-
ing the cash contribution noted sbove,

4. I concur in the recommendations of the Board,

Y.

. . II-SON’ JB
Lieutenant Gengrpl, USA
Chief of Engifiefrs

)



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF ENGINEERS FOR RIVERS AND HARBORS

CORPS OF ENGINEERS, U.S, ARMY
BOARD OF ENGINEERS FOR RIVERS AND HARBORS
WASHINGTON, D,C. 20314

ENGBER ' 16 November 196k
SUBJECT: Chetco River, Oregon

TO: Chief of FEngineers
Department of the Army

1. Authority.~-This report is in response to the following
resolution adopted 28 April 1958:

Resolved by the Committee on Public Works of the
United States Senate, That the Board of Englneers for
Rivers and Harboras, created under Section 3 of the
River and Harbor Act, approved June 13, 1902, be, and
is hereby, requested to review the report of the
Chief of Engineers on Chetco River, Oregon, published
as House Document Numbered 817, Seventy-seventh
Congress, Becond Session, with a view to determining
the advisability of modifying the exlsting project at
the present time, with partlcular reference to the
development of a small~boat basin.

2. Description,--Chetco River is a small coastal stream draining
a mountainous, timbered srea of 365 square miles in southwestern Oregon.
The river dischargea into Chetco Cove, on the Pacific Ocean, about U )
miles northwest of the Oregon-California boundary., The lower 3,5 miles
of the river are tidal, with controlling depths varying from 6 feet
below mean lower low water in the entrance to 1 foot in the tidal reach,
The mean range of tide outside the mouth 1s 6,9 feet and the extrame
range, 12,3 feet, Streamflows vary from about 100 cubie feet per
sedond at low water in the summer to annual everage maximums of 10,000
to 15,000 cubic feet per second in winter. The maximum discharge is
estimated at 80,000 ouble feet per second., The nearest improved harbors
are Crescent Clty, Californis, 27 miles to the south, and Gold Beach
(Rogue River), Oregon, 34 miles to the north. i

3. Existing improvements,--The existing Federal project provides
for stebllization of the channel through the bar at the mouth of the
river by construction of two jJettiesz and by dredging. The north jetty

is about 850 feet long and the south jetty, 1,550 feet long. Extending

segward from shore on either side of the river mouth, they converge to
within about 325 feet of each other at their outer ends. The Jetties

SL



were completed in 1957, and rémoval of rock pinnacles and abandoned
bridge piers was completed in June 1959. In 1962, the outer L4O.foot
gection of the south Jetty was repaired and raised in elevation to
prevent movement of sand and drift into the navigation channel, local
interests have constructed a small-bost basin along the east bank of
the river and a private wharf, open to all on equal terms, for loasding
lumber harges,

4, Tributery area and commerce,--The town of Brookings, near
the mouth of Chetco River, had a 1960 population of about 2,630, The
area tributary to Brookings includea the southern portion of Curry
County, Oregon, and a small part of northern Del Norte County,
California. The limits of this area are governed mainly by the com-
petitive influence of the neighboring harbors of Crescent City and
Gold Beach, and by north-south rall lines and highways in the interior
of the State, The economy of the area is based primarily on the wood-
products industry consiating of several sawm®lls and a plywood and
venecer plant, The flshing industry is of economic significence through
off'shore catches of salmon, crab, shrimp, tuns, and bottom fish, Water-
borne commerce in 1960 totaled 81,254 tons, conalsting of 79,331 tons
of outbound lumber and 1,923 tone of inbound fish snd shellfish, In
1962, the cormerce amounted to 31,101 tons consisting of 29,838 tons
of lumber and 1,263 tons of fish and shellfish, In 1960, there were
104 trips in and out of the harbor by tugs with barges, the tugs
drawing from 7 to 10 feet of water, and the bargess from 2 to 11 feet,
Corresponding trips in 1962 totaled 25, at similar drafts., In 1961,
the commerclal Pflshing fleet ‘consisted of 57 locally based boats and
sbout 148 transient vessels., loaded drafts of fishing boats ranged from
3 to 10 feet, About 133 recreational boats are reglstered in the
Brookinge ares, meet of which are itrailered to the harbor for launching,

5. Improvements desired,--local interests desire an entrance
channel 14 Teet deep at mesn lower low water and 120 feet -wide; a barge
turning basin 14 feet deep, 350 feet wide, and 500 feet long} a dike
about 1,200 feet long, with a height of 18 feet above mean lower low
water, and with a 40-foot rosdwasy on top; an anchorage and turning
basin for small boats 12 feet deep, 375 feet wide, and 850 feet long,
with access thereto; and extension of both jetties about 450 feet at
an elevation of 16 feet above mean lower low water, They point out
that the existing entrance channel is too shallow for economical use
by lumber carriers and commerclal fishing boste, Safe pasasge for these
vessels ls restricted %o high tides and daylight hours, The exlsting
small-boat basin, provided by local interests, is congested and lacks
adequate space for the turning sand maneuvering of commercisl fishing
boats, Local interests have indicated willingness to cooperate in the
desired improvements. .

S5



—

6. Improvements proposed;-«The District Engineer finds ‘thet a
deeper and wider entrance channel with adequate protecticdn is necessdry
to provide safe pasasge for iumber barges and commercial fishing boats,
He finds; sldo, that the existing small-boat basin is congested mnd
that the maneuvering area for barges is inadequate. He proposes s plan
of improvement which provides for an entrance channel 14 feet deep at
mean lower low water and 120 feet widej ralsing the north jetty to a
height of 16 feet above mean lower low water and extending it seaward
450 feet at that height; a turning basin for barges 1l feet deep,
sbout 250 feet wide, and 650 feet long; a riprap-protected gravel dike
sbout 1,800 feet long to protect Both the barge turning bBasin and a
proposed local small-hoat basin against river floods) and an access
channel to the small-boat basin 12 feet deep, 100 feet wide, and about
800 feet long. The improved entrance chammel and barge turning basin
would accommodete the larger lumber barges currently being used at
other coastal ports, and-would ensble more economical water transporta-
tion of lumber, plywood, "and woodchips. -Local interests would con-
struct a small-boat basin sbout 300 feet wide, 800 feet..long, and 12
feet deep with facilities to accommodate at least 100 commerciml fish-
ing craft, seversl charter bogts, and the equivelent of seversl
permanently based recreational boats, Local interests also would pro-
vide all lands, and terminal and transfer facllities, including a
barge slip 200 feet wide and 700 feet long dredged to a depth commen-
surate with the related project depth,

7. Cost and Justification.--Excluding presuthorization study
costs of $23,000 and using January 1964 prices, the District Engineer
estimates the first cost of the improvements at $1,350,000, of which
%1,323,000 would be Federal including $15,000 for navigation ailds, and

27,000 would be non-Federal consisting of. $18,000 for lands and

9,000 a8 8 local cash contribution. Terminel and other locally pro-
vided facilities are considered to be self-liquideting. Annual charges
for the non-self-liquidating features are estimated at $78,500,
including $25,000 for Federal maintenance in eddition to that now
required, and $1,000 for maintenance of navigation aids. Average annual
benefits are estimated at $293,400, consisting of $134,500 for savings
in transportation costs, $20,100 from elimination of delays and damages
to vessels, $124,300 from increased commercial fishing, $9,500 for
recreationel boating, and $5,000 from use of the harbor as a refuge.
The benefit-cost ratio is 3.7 based on a 50-year perlod of analysis and
a 3 percent rate of interest. The District Engineer recommends the
improvements in accordance with his plan, subject to certain reguire-
ments of local cooperation, The Division Engineer concurs.

8. Public notice.-~The Division Engineer issued a public notice
stating the recommendations of the reporting officers and affording

oY



interested. parties an opportunity to present additional information
to the Board. No commmications have been received.

Views and Rgcommendntions of the Board of Engineers for Rivers msnd Harbors,

9. Views.--The Board of Engineers for Rivers and Harboras
concurs in general in the views and recommendetions of the reporting
officers., The proposed improvements are needed and economically,
justified, and the requirements of local cooperation are appropriate.
The Board findas that changing the interest rate from 3 percent to
3-1/8 percent does not change the benefit-ceoat ratio.

10, Recommendations.--Accordingly, the Board recommends that
the existing project Por Chetco Rlver, Oregon, be modified to provide
. for! .

An entrance channel 14 feet deep and 120 feet wide;

Raising the north Jetty to a helght of 16 feet above
mean lower low water and extending it seaward 450 feet
at that height;

A turning basin 14 feet deep, sbout 250 feet wide, and
650 feet long; :

A riprap-protected gravel dike about 1,800 feet long
for protection of the turning basin and the proposed local
small-boat basin sgalnst river floods; and

An access chammel to the small-boat besin 12 feet deep,
100 feet wide, and about 800 feet long;

generally in accordance with the plan of the District Engineer and with
such modifications thereof as in the discretion of the Chief of Engi-
neers may be advisable, st an estimeted cost of $1,317,000 for con-
structlon and $25,000 annually for malntenance in addition to that now
required: Provided that prior to construction local interests agree to:

e. Contribute in cash 6.5 percent of the first cost of the °
small-~bost access channel and that portion of the dlke edjacent thereto;
such contribution, presently estimated at $9,000, to be pald in a lump
sum prior to initiation of construction, subject to final adjustment
after actual costs have been determined; )

b, Provide without cost to the United States sall lands,
easements, and rights-of-way required for construction and subsequent



maintenance of the improvements and for ailds to navigation upon the
request of the Chief of Engineers, including sultable areas determined
by the Chlef of Engineers to be required in the general public interest
for initlal and subsequent disposel of spoil, and elsoc necessary re-
taining dikes, bulkheads, and embankments therefor or the coats of
such retailning works;

¢. Hold and save the United States free from damages due

to.the constructicn works and subsequent maintenance of the improvements;

d., Provide and maintain at local expense adequate publile
terminals and transfer facilities (including a sultable barge slip)
open 40 all on esqual terms;

e, Provide and maintaln at locel expense depths in berth-
ing and mooring areas and local access channels serving the terminals
comrensurate with depths provided in the related project areas;

. Provide and maintain without cost to the Unlted States
-an adequete service frontage, launching ramp, and a public landing
with suitable supply facilities in the small-boat basin, necessary
mooring facllitlies with suitable depths for locel and transient
boats, utilities, access roads, perking asreas, end related public-use
shore facilitles, open to all on equal terms; and

g, Accomplish without coat to the United States such alter-
ations as required in sewer, water supply, drainage, and other utility
facilities, as well ag thelr maintenance,

The net cost to the United States for the recommended improvements 1s
estimated at $l,308,000 for construction and $25,000 annually for
maintenance in addition to that now required.

FOR THE BOARD:

R. G. MacDONNELL
Major General, USA
Chairman

Sl



REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER

SYLLABUS

The District Englneer finds that a need exists at Chetcc River,
Oregon, for a deeper and better-protected entrance chennel end for a
protected barge turning basin and smell-boat access chaunel, and that
the benefits accrulng from these improvements would exceed the costs
and warrant particlipation by the Federal Government. Net cost to the
United States, exclusive of alds to navigatlon, is estimated at
$1,308,000 for construction and $25,000 annually for maintepance in
addition to the amount required to maintain the existing project. The
foregoing lmprovements are . subject to specified conditlions of loeal
cooperation as outlined in the report.

N



U. B, ARMY ENGINEER DISTRICT, PORTLAND
CORP3 OF ERQINEFES
628 Pittoek Block
Portland, Oregon 97205

NPPEN-EP- 6 March 1964

SUBJECT: Chetco River, Oregon

T0;  Division Engineer
U, S. Army Engineer Division, North Pacific

1. AUTHORITY. - This report 1s submitted in compliance with
authority contained in resclution of the Committee on Publiec Works,
United States Senate, adopted 28 April 1958, which reads as follows:

"RESOLVED BY THE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC WORKS OF THE
UNITED STATES SENATE, That the Board of Engineers for
Rivers and Herbors, created under SBection 3 of the River
and Harbor Act, approved June 13, 1902, be, and is hereby,
requested to review the report of the Chief of Fnginzers
on Cheteo River, Oregon, published as House Docurent Num-
bered 817, Seventy-seventh Congress, Second Session, with
a view to determining the advisebility of modifying the
existing project at the present time,.wlith particular referw
ence to the development of a small-boat basin."

2, PURPOSE AND EXTENT OF STUDY., - This report 1s of survey scope
and considers the feasibllity of modifying the existlng project to pro-
vide increased channel depths, extenslon of jettles, a barge turning
basin, and a small-boat access channel and mooring basin at the mouth
of Cheteo River., B8Studies for this report were based on data obtalned
from a public hearing, hydrographle surveys, subaqueous explorations,
interviews and correspondence with informed local sources, and miscal-
laneous reports, documents, charts, and meps. During tbe course of the
iovestigation, lnterested loesl port, State, and Federal agencles were
consulted. Their comments and suggestions heve been glven full consld-
eration.

3. DESCRIPTION. -

8., QGeneral. -~ Chetco River discharges into the Paclfie Ocean
approximately 1 mile east of Chetco Point, which lies 300 statute miles
south of Columbim River entrance and 345 miles north of San Francisco
Bey. Chetco River is a small coastal stream dralning a mountainous,



“heavily timbered area of 365 square miles located: in the southern. por-
tion of Curry County, Oregon., The river has its source in the Siskiyou
Mountains of the Cosst Range at an elevation of 4,000 feet, and flows
over 50 miles to 1ts point of discharge in Chetco Cove. The lower 3
miles of the*river are tidal; with a mean tidal range outside the mouth
of 6.9 feet and tidal variations of 12,3 feet. BStr®amflows have been
estimated t0 be 100 cubic feet per second at low water in the summer _
months,; with an apnusl average maximum of between 10,000 to 15,000
cubic feet per second during the winter montha. Maximum discharge is
eatimated at 60,000 cubic-feet per second.

. bi . Cheteo Point, a rocky hemdland about 80 feet high, forms
the western extremlty of Chetco Cove and protecte the river entrance -
from northwesterly and, to some extent, westerly storms. South of the

river mouth the coastline extends in a gradual coucave curve for some
18 miles, exposing the locality to winter stommi from the southwest
quadrant. The town of Brookings is situated north of the cove and
Cheteco River entrance. The mouth of Cheteo River has been ptabilized
by- twin rubblemound jetties about 300 feet apart at the outer ends.
Controlling depth in the entrance channel is 6 feet below mean lower
low water, The entrance to the basin perlodically shoals to a depth
of 4 feet below mean lower low water. The remsinder of the tidal reach
of the river has controlling depths of about 1 foot below mean lower
low vater and is sultable for navigation by skiffe and small launches

only.

c. Use of entrance. -~ Chetco River entrance and harbor is
presently used by barges and-tugs for movemept of lumber, and by com-

mercial fishing craft and recreationsl boats.

d. Puplished charts. - Cheteo River and the adjscent comstal
and land areas are shown on U. 5. Coast and Geodetie Survey chart No.
50896 and U. 8. Geologlcal Survey quadrangles for Cape Ferrelo, Oregon,
and Crescent City, California. '

4. 'TRIBUTARY AREA. -

a. (eneral. -« The area considered tributary to the port of
Brookings generally includes the southern portion of Curry County,
Oregon, and a small part of northern Del. Norte County; Califormia,
contalning the drainage biésins of Cheteo and Winchuck Rivers and the
area slong the coast extending from Pistol River in Oregon to Bmith
River in California, as outlined on plate 1. The econcay of the area

' 16 besed primarily on the wood-products industry which consists of
several sawmills and a plywood and veneer plant. The fishing industry
1s of economlc significance through offshore catches of salmon, crab,
shrimp, tuna, -and bottom fish, At the present time over 57 fishing
boate are based at Brookings, Some grazing is done on the grassy slopes
in the coast reglon but, because of the ruggedness of the terrain, only
& small area is sultable for agriculture.

46-886 O-§5—2



FIGURE 1. Aerial view of Chetco River entrance,
February 1962

®




.t be -Adjacent ports. - The nearest ilmproved harbors are Cres-
cenit Clty, California, ?!—T miles to the south, and Gold Beach, Oregon,
at the mouth of Rogue River, 34 miles {o the north, - Crescent City, an
gpen-roadstead port with a main breskwater 3,900 feet long and a 2,000~
foot secondary breskwater, providea channel and harbor depths of 20
feet, ' Gold Beach Harbor has twin Jettles through the entrance bar,
1,000 feet apart, with a chamnel 13 feet below mean lower low water
and 300 feet wide, The inner harbor has a 300-foot by 13-foot channel
and a 500-foot-wide turning besin. Coos Bay, Oregon, 116 mlles to the
‘north, and Bureka, California, on Humboldt Bay, 102 miles pouth, are
the nearest deep-draft harbors. At both herbors the existing projects
provide for rubblemound jetties, entrance chamnels 40 feet deep, and
bay channels 30 feet deep.

¢. Populations of Curry County, the town of Brookings, and
pearby coastal ports in southwestern Oregon are shown in the following
tabulation:

: Calendar years
Area : 1950 : = 1960 -
CUREY COUNTY 6,048 13,983
Port Orford 6Tl 1,171
Gold Beach o 1,765
Brookings 1,525 2,632

d. Resources. - The principal resource of the region is tim-
ber. The sawtimber volume consists of spproximately 75 percent Douglas
fir end 25 percent Port Orford cedar, western red cedar, western hem-

" lock, Sitke spruce, balssm fir, and redwood. The annual sustained tim-
ver yield of the tributary area is estimated at 143.0 million board-
feet, Scribner's log Bcale. . '

e. Transportation facilities. - In general, Brookings and its
tributary area are heavily dependent on highway and water transportation
to move wood products to market. 'There are no railroad facilities with-
in the tributary srea. The closest rallheads are at Coquille, Oregon,
108 miles north, and Arcata, California, 108 miles south.

5. BRIDGES, « There are no bridges that would be affected by the
improvement under considexation in this report.

6. PRIOR REFORTS. - Chetco River has been the subject of two prior
reports. The first, contained in House Executlve Committee Document No.
92, 524 Congress, 24 session, was prepared in 1892 and was unfavorable
to improvement of {he river or entrance. The second, contained in
House Document No. 817, T7th Congress, 24 session, was submitted to
Congress 20 July 1942 and recommended improvement of Chetco River to

13

(o\



provide for stabilization of the. channel through the bar.at the mouth
of the river by construction of jetties. . No specific’ channel dimen- .
slons were established in this suthorizaticn. - . <

7. EXISTING CORPS OF ENGINEERS' PROJECT. - The River and Harbor .
Act of 2 March 1945 (H, Doc.: 817, TTth (Cong., 2d sess,) suthorized the
yroject for Chetco River, Oregon, to provide for stabilization of the :
channel through the bar at the river mouth by construction of Jetties
end dredging. Construction of the jetties was initlated in Jume 1957 :
and completed in December 1957. Removal of rock pinnacles and abandonad
bridge plers was accomplished in June 1959, completing the projeet.
Total Federnl costs to 30 June 1963 were $581,254, of which $489,545 ws
for néw work and $91,706 for maintenance. Average amnual cost for 5 .-
years of project duration (Fiscal Years 1959-63) was $18,341. Cost for
repairs of the south jJetty during Fiscal Year 1963 smounted to about
$69,400 and accounts for a major portion of the figure for the 5-year
average maintenance cost. Average ammual cost for channel maintenance
1s estimated to be $10,000. Cost of future repairs to both Jetties on
an annual basis 18 estimated to be $5,000. Total estimated cost of
future maintenance of the existing project 1s $15,000 annually.

8. LOCAL COOPERATION ON EXISTING PROJECT. ~ Under the existing
project local interests were required to furnish free of cost to the
United States all lands, easements, rights-of-way, and spoil-disposal
areas for initisl work and subsequent maintenance when and as required;
and furnish free of cost to the United States a suitable quarry or :
source of royalty-free rock for construction of the jetties., All re-
quirements of local cooperation have been campleted. Cost to local
interests for all mnmasures of local cooperation 18 estimated to amount
to $40,000. : '

9. OTHER IMPROVEMENTS. - Upcn craspletion of the Jetties by the
Corps of Engineers in December 1957, local interests constructed a pro.
tective dike about 1,000 feet long and dredged a small-hoat basin along
the left bank of the river. In 1959 additional area landward of the
protective dike was excavated to provide more space for mooring commer-
clal fish craft and for mooring lumber barges. Subsequent to this,
local interests again increased the size of the small-boat mooring aréa
to provide, as of June 1963, an area averaging about 150 feet wide and -
L50 feet long. The 1961 cammercial fleet consisted of 57 locally bascd
boats and 148 transient craft. No information has been received as to
the size of the fleet in 1963. In addition they have performed main-
tenance dredging in the entrance channel to the boat basin. See plate,
1 for extent of comstruction accomplished by local interests.

10, TERMINAL AND TRANSFER FACILITIES. -~ Present terminal faclili-
- tles conelst of a lumber dock for loading barges and a fish-receiving -
dock about 140 feet long. Although privately owned these Facilities
are open to all on equal tems. The port of Brookings has provided
floating plers with comnecting ramps for mooring commercial fishing

12

Ll



3



1 4

PICOURE 3.

e
| T MW
Chetco Rivar Jettiss sand bomt bhasin, June 1o52°

4



si

FIGURE 4.

Cheteco River, March 1959, showing initial basin a
dike construction by local interests



boats and a emall number: of aporba ‘boats, a. dook: and attendant fadil- -
i1ties for fueliig -boats;.a smail-bodt -launching ramp)’ witer supply, and
electric service, - Additionsl facilities which will be'required to -
accommodate anticipated futire: traffic include a barge sllp and dock -
wlth space for loading.at least two barges simultaneously. Adﬂitiona.l
floats for sma.ll boats also w:I.l.'l. be beeded.

11. IMPROVEMENT DF.SIRED -

: ""A public hearing was held in Brookings on 18 April 1962
to detemine the desirves of local interests with respect to improve-
ments to the navigation project.. In attendance were 73 persons, rep-
resenting local lumber aund plywood industries; fishing interests; local
businesses; and Federal, Btate, county, and port egencies. Representa-
tives of the Brookings port commiseion requested that the existing pro-
Ject be modified to provide the followlng; (a) A navigation channel for
barges and small boats, a minimum of 120 feet wide and 14 Lfeéet deep at
mean lower low water; (b) a turning basin for barges, approximately 350
feet wide, 500 feet 1ong, and 14 feet deep at mean lower low water; (c)
a dike spproximately 1,200 feet in length and elevation 18 feet abave
mean lower low water with a 40-foot-wlde roadway on top; (d) an anchor.
age and turning basin for small-boat moorage area, & minimum of 375
feet wide, 850 feet long, and 12 feet deep at meéan lower low water,
with access thereto; and (e) extension of both jettles approximstely
450 feet, to 16 feet above mean lower low water. ,

b. Loeal interests stated that modification of the project
was urgently needed to provide more protection and safety for all ves-
sels using the river entrance; to provide adequate turning basins and
inereased channel depths to permit use of. larger lumber carriers and
commercial fishboats, snd to eliminate delays and damages to vessels
now using the project; to provide increased small-boat mooring areas
for relief of present congestion; and to accommodate additlonal boats
desiring to locate in the Brookings harbor, Public benefits that would
accrue as a result of the construction of the proposed modification
were stated to amount to $349,000 annually.

¢, ILocal interests and rep:resentativea of the port of Brook-
ings heve stated that they will furnish the necessary lands, easements,
rights-of-way, sud epoil-disposal areas for construction and subsequent
malntenance of the proposed improvements. They further state that they
will dredge a barge-loading slip and an ares suitable for the mooring
of commercial fishing boats and recreational craft and provide neces-
sary floats and relsted facilities.

12, EXISTIRG AND PRDSPECTIVE COMMERCE. =
a., Existing commeree. - Prior to completion of the exlsting

project in 1959, the Chetco Rlver entrance had heen used only occaslon-
ally by fishboats and for rafting logs. Lumber, crab, shrimp, salmon,

16



_ tuna,’ and’' bottom fish represent the principal {téms of commerce pres-
ently mmring ‘through the Chetco River entrance:  Comparative smounts of
this commerce. i'or the years 1959 through 1.962 are shown in the following
t&blec N h

: . _ r_?essel trai‘rie,_ tonﬂ ¥ ‘
Year i Iumbert i . Fishe sn’eﬁﬂ es'h.,'L : Total
1959 9k - 31 6p0 10,195
1960 . 19,331 106 CoooL817 81,254
1961 - 52,319 422 - 713 53,454

1962 29,838 - 293 '970 31,101

=

the United States.
2 From records of the Fish Canmiss:l.on of Oregon.

b. Pmapecfive comme ree ., --Averége annual tonnages anilcipated
to move over the entrance chamnel during the 50-year period of analysis
sre estimated to be as follows:

Vessel traffic

Commodity in tons
Lumbe x 108;50Q outbound
Plywood : 19,000 outhound
Woodchips 126,500 outbound
Fish. | 1,890 -inbound
Shellfish 2,600 inbound

13, VESSEL TRAFFIC. - Principal traffic through the mouth of Chetco
‘River consists of oceangoing tugs, lumber barges, and commercial and
recreational fishing craft. In 1960 about 52 inbound and 52 outbound,
trips were made by tugs draving from 7 to 10 feet of water, end by -
barges drawing from 2 to 11 feet. In 1961 about 25 inbound and 26 out-
bound trips were made by tugs drawlng from T to 1l feet and by barges
draving from 2 to 11 feet. Two sizes of barges are presently used in
this trade. The emaller barge is 190 feet long, 50 feet wide, and
draws 11 feet when fully loaded with 1.5 miliion board-feet of lumber.
The larger barge is 210 feet long, 54 feet wide, and draws 12 feet U
Inches when loaded with 2.2 million boasrd-feet of lunber. However,
the 1a.rger barge must short-load to be sble to use the existing project.
With improvement of chsmnel and port facilities, transportation com-
panles would use only the larger barges. No record is availlable of the
trips made by commercial fishboats. The larger boats based at Brookings
are from 60 to 70 feet long and have loaded drafts from T to 10 feet.
Data collected by the U. S. Coast Guard indicate that 2,066 trips by
sport-fishing boats ware made through the entrance during 1962,

17

From Depa.rt:nent of the Armmy annual reporta on ‘Waterborne Commerce of -

o



FIGURE 5.

Offshore

view, looking morth to Cheteo River em



. 14. .DIFFICULTIES ATTENDING NAVIGATION. -

a. Channel., - The principal difficulties attending navigation
arige from inadequate channel depths and lack of space for turning,
maneuvering, and moording of barges, tugs, and boats. Due to the pres-
ence of rock pinnacles in the entrance channel, with controlling depth
of 6 feet below mean lower low water, operators can safely move thelir
tugs and barges through the river mouth only during daylight, high
tides. Movements of large filshing boats drawing up to 10 feet of water
are-also restricted to the high astages of the tide. . In addition to de-
lays incurred, vessels are subjected to the hazard of striking rock
plonacles. A number of commercial fishermen have reported thelr boats
striking bottom oo entering the river mouth, and a lumber-carrying
barge was extensively damaged as & result of striking a rock pinnacle
in the river entrance in 1961l. Inadeqguate channel depthe also prohibit
the use of larger and more efficlent navigation equipment.

b. Harbor and turning erea. = The small-boat basin, construc-
ted by local intereats, is too smell for the number of boats that have
applied for moorege space., The protective dike, also constructed by
local interests, offers only limited protection to the barge-loading
erea and creates a shoaling problem in the area used for maneuvering
barges. Fifty-seven commerclal fishing boats are based at Chetco, and
the port has requests for space *from other fishermen, Transients: wish-
ing to berth thelr boets in the basin are required to tle to other boats
or are refused space. This crowded condition presents & hazard with
respect to fire, If one boat should experlence an explosion or catch
on fire, a large loss would ensue as 1t would be difficult to move ad-
Joining boats out of danger. This condition mlso incurs delays in
turning and maneuvering the fishboats. Due to lnadequate space adja-
cent to the single barge berth, barges are turned In Chetco Cove and
moved through the entrance stern first. In order to perform this man-
euver it 15 necessary for the tug to bring the barge to rest in open
vater, drop the towing bridle, pick up lines from the stern, and move
through the entrance to the dock. When the barge spproaches the dock,
it 15 necessary, because of restricted room, to assist the tug in
positioning the barge by means of lines and lend-based donkeys. This
procedure is time-consuming end also hazardous ss was demonstrated when
a“barge got out of control and damaged several fishboats.

e. Jettles. - Jetties at the mouth of Chetco River are
oriented gemerally in & southerly direction; however, as the over-all
constline extends north and south, the up-coast jetty ls generally
called the north Jetty, and down-coast Jetty the south jetty. South-
vest winter storms generate waves which approach the north Jetty at an
engle with the jJetty axis of about 30 to U5 degrees. During stomms,
these waves are weshed over the low part of the morth Jetty, causing
rough-water conditlions in the entrance as well as carrylng sand.
Further, these waves are caught by the channelside of the south Jetty,
contributing to the rough-water conditions and ceausing minor surge in
the basin.

19



15, WATER POWER AND OTHER SPECIAL SUBJECTS. ~ Inasmuch as the re.
quested improvement 1s confined to the entrance channel and inner har-
bor, there 18 no possibllity of developing a ccordinated plan embodying
improvements which would involve control and comservatlon of water re-
sources.

16. PLAN OF IMPROVEMENT. -

a. Improvements cousldered in thls report consist of several
items which are shown 1n detall on plate 1 and enumersted as follows;
(1) An entrance channel 120 feet wide and 14 feet deep at mean lower
low water; {2) an extension to the morth jetty about 450 feet in length,
with an increase in elevation of the exlsting portion to.1l6 feet above
mean lower low water; (3) a barge-and-tug maneuvering aree about 250
feet wide, 650 feet long, and 14 feet deep at mean lower low water;
(4) & protective dike 1,800 feet long, with a top elevation of
16 feet above mean lower low water; (5) a small-boat access channel
100 feet wide and 12 feet deep at mean lower low water; (6) a barge
81lip about 200 feet wide, 700 feet long, and 14 feet deep, to be pro-
vided by local interests; and (7) enlargemcut by local lnterests of the
small-boat mooring area to an average wldth of 300 feet, length of 800
feet, and depth of 12 feet.

b. Channel. dimensions. - Greater chamnnel dimenslons then those
speclfied above were considered; however, due to limited width between
Jetties (about 200 feet at base) the proposed dimensions are considered
to be the maximum that can be constructed without causing undermining
or subsldence of the exlsting Jetties. A depth of 14 feet for channel
and maneuvering area would allow unrestricted use of the harbor by
larger commercial fishing craft and a majorlty of the barges now en-

" gaged in transporting wood products from Oregon coastal ports. Other
barges with loaded drafts verying from 12 to 16 feet would be sble to
use the port by running the tides or light-loading. The barge maneuver-
ing area would permit tug pllots 1o bring barges in bow first, then back
them into the slip area for loading, and after loading proceed to sea
bow first. The barge-slip berthing area would be large enough to load
two barges glmiltanecusly as well as allow the passing of a barge while
another one is moored. '

¢. Jetty extension. ~ The jetty extension was located to pro-
vide a sultable channel alinement as well as to eliminate difficulties
attending navigation. From studies of the directlion of spproach. of
storm waves and through visual observation of these waves it haa been
determined that s length of 450 feet for the Jetty extenslon will be
necessary to provide protection for vessels navigating the entrance
during periods of storms. As oriented, the jetty extension will in-
tercept a majority of waves and prevent their entry into the channel,
thereby eliminating a major portion of the rough-water conditions exper-
lenced in the entrance channel. The outer 200 feet of the exlsting north

20



jetty was constructed to a crest elevation of 14 feet above mean lower
low water and the remainder of the Jetty to 10 feet. Observations in-
dicate that during southwest storms the inner portlon of the jJetty is
frequently overtopped. Raising the crest of the existing north Jetty
to 16 feet above mean lower low water would practically eliminate wave
vash from entering the channel, Conelderation wae glven to extending
the south Jetty as requested by local interests. From studles and ob.
servations of storm waves approaching the entrance, it was determined
that extending the south jetty would not change or correct existing
difficulties. The channelside of the Jetty extension would continue
to intercept storm waves and deflect them toward the basin, causing
surge in the mooring area. During 1962 the outer 440 feet of the south
Jetty was repalred and the crest of this sectlon was raised to 20 feet
above mean lower low water. Prior to the repailrs, elevation of the
jetty crest varied from 8 to 12 feet above mean lower low water while
the top of the ad)acent foredune on the beachslde of the Jetty was at
elevation 15. During storms, sand and drift were washed over the
Jetty into the navigation chennel, Ralsing the jetty crest has proven
successful ip stopping sand and drift from passing over the Jetty.
Therefore, no recommendsations were included with respect to the south
Jetty.

d. Protective dike. - The protective dike is
necessary for prevention of shoaling of the small-boat basin, access
channel, and barge maneuvering areas, and for protection of moored craft
from flood flows of the river. It was located so as to provide this
protection and to sssist in maintaining depths in the navigation chan-
nel. Although a dike with a top width of 40 feet and crest ele-
vation of 18.0 feet above mean lower low water was requested at the
public hearing, local Iinterests readily concurred with the proposed
plan for a top wldth of 20 feet and crest elevation of 16.0. Due to
the limlted srea of the estuary asnd critical need for space for the
barge maneuvering area and small-boat access channel, it was necessary
to restrict the dimensions of the protectivé dike to the minimum
that would provide a sound structure and stilll serve the intended pur-
pose,

e, ©Spoll disposal. - Adequate areas are availeble adjacent to
the site of the mooring basin and to the south jetty for disposal of
materials excavated for construction of the improvement.

f. Mooring basin. - The proposed small-boat basin, 800 feet
long by an average 300 feet wide, would adeguately accommodate at least
100 commercial fishing craft and several charter and recreatlonal boats.
local Interests plan on constructing a launching ramp at the upstream
end of the smsll-boat access channel, Most reecrestion boats would use
the launching ramp, with only a few requiring berthing space. Service
facilities are presently availmble at the harbor, Should requests for
moorage space be greater than can be accommodated by the proposed moor-
ing basin, local Interests have stated that they would provide the re-
quired space by excavating an additlional arem on the east side of the
basin.,

21

R\



— 17. SBORELINE CHANGES, - No appreciable change in the shoreline
adjacent to the mouth of Chetco River hes been evident since comple-
tion of the exdsting project. A small £illet has formed adjacent to
the south Jetty, and the foredune has inereased 4 to 6 feet in eleva-
tion but has had no deleterious effect on adjacent property. No change
has been noted in the shoreline mdjacent to the north jetty. Due to
headlands forming Cheteco Cove very little beach material can be trans-
ported into the cove by littoral drift, and also due to the rugged and
rocky nature of the shore within.the cove there is only a small amount
of material that ls affected by wave actlon., For this reason it is
believed that the relative short extension of the north jetty as pro-
posed would have no injurious effect on adjacent shoreline and no in-

18, REQUIRED AIDS TO NAVIGATION. - The plan of improvement cone-
gldered in this report was submitted to the United States Coast Guard
for an estimate as to the cost of additional navigation alds that
might be required. By letter (see appendix C) the Commander, Thirteenth
Coast Guard District, estimated the first cost of additional alds would

—amount to about $15,000, with an increase in annual maintenance of $860
(rounded to $1,000).

19, ESTIMATE OF FIRST COST.- First cost of the proposed improve-
ments, based on January 1964 prices and including contingencies, engi-
neering, inspection, supervision, and overhead, 1s estimated to be as
follows:

Federal:
North jetty modification : $615,000
- Entrance cheonel 153,'750)
Barge maneuvering area 101,250) 1
Small-boat-basln access channel 57, 000)
Dike 79, 425
Subtotal 1,006, 125
Contingencies 201, 575
Epgineering, supervision, and over- )
head - 109,000
Subtotal 1,317,000
Navigation aids (U. 8. Coast Guard) _ 15,000
Total Federal first cost 1, 332,000
Nou-Federal:
Lands, easements, and rights-of-way 18,000
Total first cost: 1, 350,000

1l Includes 2 feet of overdepth dredging.

22



Terminal facilities, access romds, small-boat mooring areas, a barge
slip, floats, and other necessary public-use shore facillitles will be
‘provided and maintained by local interests. These items are considered
self-1liquidating and are omitted from the coests of non-Federal work.

20. ESTIMATES OF ANNUAL CHARGES. -

a. BEstimate of annual malntenance. - In meintaining the jetty
extension 1t i1s estimated that malor replacement of Jjetty stone wlill be
required at the end of .15- and 30-year periods. These major replace-
ments, 1t 18 belileved, would provide an effective structure for a 50-
year period of analysis. Construction cost of each repalr is estimated
at $117,000, with a total present-worth value of $123,300. Annual
cost, wlth interest and amortization at 3-percent rate of interest over
the 50~year period of analysis, would be $4,800. It is belleved that
little malntenance dredging will be required as completion of the
jetty extension and removal of rock pinnacles would allow scouring of
the channel, However, to allow for unforeseen circumstances it 1s es-
timated -that an average of 25,000 cubic yards of shoaled materlal may
have to be removed at an estimated cost of $17,400. Meintenance of the
breskwster and small-boat access channel is estimated to smount to
$2,0800 on an annual basis., Total annual maintenance over and above
that required for the existing project, inecluding $1,000 for maintenance
of navigation alds, 1s estimated to amount to $26,000.

b. Estimate of annusl charges, - The perlod of analysis has
been limited to 50 yemrs, which is considered to be about the practical
physical life of the project and maximum period of time that future
needs snd technologleal developments in transportatlon can be predicted,
Total annual charges for the plan of improvement are estlmated as fol-
lows: ,




Federal first cost (less local ‘cash contribution)

Investment : : - $1, 323,000
Annuel charges; . -
Interest at 3 percent $39,690
Amortization in 50 years
at 0.887 percent 11,730
Maintenance 26,000

Total Federal mnnual charges 7,569

Non~Federal first cost

Cash: contribution 9,000
_ Lands 18,00
Annual charges:
Interest ak 3 percent 810
Amortization 1n 50 years
at 0.887 percent . 240
Total non-Federal charges 1,050
Total annual charges 78,470; rounded to
$78,500

21.  ESTIMATES OF BENEFITS. -

a, General. - Benefits acerulng as a result of the proposed
improvement would be realized through savings in transportation of
lumber, plywood, end woodchips. Significant benefits would also accrue
through an increase 1in commerclal fishing snd by elimination of delays
to the fishing fleet at the entrance to the harbor. Other benefits
accruing as & result of the improvement include (1) use of the port as
a harbor of refuge; (2) an increase in recreational boating; and (3)
elimination of damage to barges and commercial fishing craft. Benefilt
derivations are described in detsil In appendix B and are briefly des-
eribed below.

b. Iumber shipments. -.Total annual lumber shipments avall-
able to move over the port of Brookings'! dock on & long-range basis
have been determined to be sbout 85.4 million boerd-feet, or about
108,500 tons. Under existing conditions, all lumber barges must awalt
daylight high tide before entering or leaving the port; also, time losses
are incurred through turning barges outside of the entrance and maneuvver-
ing to dockside by special equipment. Exlsting conditions also prohlbit
full loading of the larger, more-efflcient barges. It has been deter-
mined that under the above conditions, i1t would be less costly to ship
lumber through an alternate port. With improvement at Cheteco River the
benefit to be derived in moving the above amount of limber through the
port of Brookings rather than through an adjacent port would provide a
transportation saving of $94,800 annually. )

24

™



£—C9-Cr98e-9¢

FIGURE 6.

Cheteo River boat basin, looking ups’



9T

FIGURE T.

b\ N, g —

Bargeload of lum.bér leaving Chetco River en
' December 1960

o



¢, Plywood shipments., - It has been estimated that about 108
million square feet of plywood, 3/8-'inch-t.hick basis, wlll be produced in
the Brookings tributary area on & sustalned production basis. Of this
smount 1t 1s anticlpated that 30.24 million square feet, or about 19,000
tons, will be moved by barge from the port of Brookings to California
markets. The annual transportation saving for moving 19,000 tons of ply-
wood through the improved port is estimated to be $16,500.

d. Woodehips., - It 1s believed that the veneer and plywood
plants and the largest lumber mill will produce about 55,000 units of
Douglas=-fir chips for water shipment to one of several kraft pulpmills
located on the Columbla River or ports along the Oregon coest. The annual,
transportatlion saving for moving 55,000 units, or 126,500 tons, of wood-
chips 1s estimated to be $23,200,

e, Commercial fishing. = The proposed Ilmprovement would elimiw
nate delays now ilncurred by the exlsting crab and salmon fleet and would
permlt an increased catch to fishermen working the tuna, shrimp, and
bottom fisheries. Beneflts resulting from activity of the commereial
fishing fleet are estimated to amount to $137,400 annually.

f. Recreational boating. - Recreational benefits would accrue
to the proposed improvement through lncremsed use of the harbor by
trailer and locally based pleasure boats. These benefits, evaluated on
the basis of equivalent full«time use of the waterwny, are estimated to
be $9,500 annually.

g. Reductlion of barge and boat damages. - Due to the existence
of rock pinnecles in the entrance chennel, vessel and comercial fishing
eraft groundings have occurred on several occaslons. It 1s estimated
that elimination of rock plnnacles would provide an annual reduction in
damages of $6,000 to barges and $1,000 to commercial fishing craft.

h., Harbor or refuge. - The port of Brockings, with additional
channel depths and extended north jetty, would provide increased use as a
harbor of refuge for fishing craft and coastwlse traffic during periods
of stormm or when mechanlicel failures might place the vessel in Jjegpardy.
The annual benefit from increased use of the harbor for refuge is esti-
mated to be $5,000, and 1s considered 100 percent general as depths are
adequate for recreatlonal boats,

i, Summary of benefits. -~ The benefits described in the preced-
lng paragraphs are summarized in the Tollowing tebulation in mccordance
wlth thelr general or loecal nature.

27

R



“Type of Estimated annual SROURT

benefit “Total - : . Geperal Local

Trapsportation savings: ’ 3 S

Lumber, 108,500 tons $9%,800 $94,800

Plywood, 19,000 tons 16,500 - 16,500

Woodchips, 126,500 tons 23,200 23,200
Commercial fishing 137,400 137, 400
Recreational fishing 9,500 L,750 $h, 750
Reduction of damsges:

Tumber barges 6,000 6,000

Commercial fishing craft 1,000 1,000
Harbor of refuge 5,000 5,000
Total 293, 400 288, 650 < hy750

Distribution of total benefits hetween the small-craft feature and the
general navigation feature of the proposed improvement amounts to
$73,000 and $220,400, respectively. Of the $73,000 benefit for the
small-craft feature 93.5 percent, or $68,250, would be genersl and 6.5
percent, or $4,750, wuuld be locel in nature.

22, COMPARISON OF BENEFITS AND COSTS. - The estimated average annual
benefits and costs for the proposed plan of improvement mre as follows:

Annusl. benefits $293, 400
Annusl costs $718,500
Benefit-to-cost ratio 3.7 to 1.0

23. PROPOSED LOCAL COOPERATION. - It 18 proposed as an essentlel
feature of Federal participation in accomplishing the lmprovement that
lacal interests be required to furnish assurances that they will (a) pro-
vide without cost to the United States all lands, easements, and rights-
of-way required for construction and subsequent maintenamnce of the pro-
Jeet and of alds to navigation upon the request of the Chlef of Engineers,
including sultable areas determined by the Chief of Engineers to be re
guired in the general public interest for initial and subsequent dis-
posal of spoll, and necessary retalning dikes, bulkheads, and embankments
therefor or the costs of such retaining works; (b) hold and save the
United States free from dasmsges due o construction and malntenance of
the project; (c) provide and maintaln at local expense adequate public
terminals and transfer facilitles open to all on equal terms; (d4) pro-
vide and maintain without cost to the United States depths in berthing
and mooring aress and local access channels serving the terminals, com-
menpurate with the depths provided in related pmject areas; (e) accom-
plish without cost to the United States such alterations as required in

28

18



sewer, water supply, dralnage, and other utllity fecllities, as well as
their maintenance; and (f) contribute in cash 6,5 percent of the cost
of construction by the Corps of Engineers of the small-boat access chanw
nel and that portion of the dike adjacent thereto, and that such
contribution, presently estimated at $9,000, be paid in a lump sum
prior to commencement of construction. Local interests have the legal
and finsnelal abllity to provide the specified requirements of local
cooperation.

24, ALLOCATION OF COSTS AMONG PURFOSES. - Costs of facllities of
the plan of lmprovement are allocated according to thelr uses. Costs
of recommended jetty extension, entrance channel, barge turning basin,
and that portion of the protective dike mdjacent to the barge
bvasin are alloeated to genersl navigation and to commercial fishing.
Costs of the above-proposed modification of general navigation facillw
ties are not allocated to recreational boating as exlsting entrance
channel depths are adequate for recreational craft and no improvement
to the Jetties would be necessary for satisfactory use by these craft.
Costs of the recommended access channel and that portion of the proteet-
lve dike adjacent to the access channel are allocated to recrea-
tlonal fishing snd to commercial Tishing as thls portlion of the project
would only be used by these activities., BSee appendix A for detalls.
Followlng 1s & table showlng festures, purposes, and allocated costs.

H + Allocated
Feature i Purpose : cost
North jetty extension, en~ Gereral navigation $1, 179,000
trance channel, barge turning and commercilal flsh-
besin, and 39 percent of cost ing :
of dike
Small-boat access channel, and Recreational boating 138,000
61 percent of cost of dike and commercisl fish-
ing

Total : 1,317,000

25, APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS AMONG INTERESTS. - Cost of the small-
boat access channel and 61 percent of the dlke are apportioned to
the Federal Govermment and local interests on the basls of general and
local benefits attributable to these feamtures., On thils basis the
Federal Government has been spportioned 93.5 percent of the estimated
$138,000, or $129,000, and local interests 6.5 percent or $3,000. Cost
of other features of the plan of improvement have been apportioned to
the Federsl Government.

29

N



26. COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES. -

8., Flsh and wildlife agencles, ~ ALl interested Federal and
State agencies have beén informed of the nature of the proposed improve.
ment and afforded an opportunity to present thelr views. The Oregon
State Game Commission in a letter dated 19 March 1963 indicated that
the proposed improvemente, "increased populsrity of ccean fishery for
both salmon and bottom fish, and the comparatively calm ocean condi-
tione outside Chetco harbor would lead to an Increase 1n the sport
fishery of the area, The game commission also indicated that any
blasting required for project comstruction should be restricted to the
period 15 June to 15 July. The Fish Commisalon of Oregon in a letter
dated 1 Aprll 1963 indicated that improvement of the harbor entrance at
Brookings would permlt incremsed usage by some of the larger flshboats,
that the landings of both salmon and bottom fish would lncrease, and
that under present regulations the landings of shellfish would also
ineresse, The fich comulssion stated that blasting should be confined
to the period from 15 June to 15 July. The United Stetes Fish and
Wildlife Service furnished their report dated 24 July 1963 on the
effects the propored navigation improvements at the mouth of Cheteco
River would have on fish and wildlife services., The report contains
eatimates of the expected increase in recrestlonal fishing and lncrease
ia cateh of the commercial fleet which would result from construction
of the project. These estimates were used as a besls for determining
recreationsl boating and commercial fishing benefits. Followlng are
recommendations included in the report.

"It 18 recommended:

"]. That the report of the District Englneer, Corps of
Engineers, include conservation and development of fish and
wildlife resources among the purposes for which Cheteo River
navigetion lmprovement project i1s authorlzed.

"2, That public use of the North Jetty extension snd break-
water for sport fishing be permitted, except during periods when
puch use would interfere with project operation or public safety.
Project constructed access or work roads to the North jetty
should remain available for vehicular traffic to the lendward
end of the jetty, and any work road or berm constructed on the
jetty should remain availsble for pedestrian travel for the con-
venience of fishermen. :

"3. That blasting be confined to the period between June 15
and July 15 to avoid killing anadromous fishes."

Coples of the report and correspondence of the agencles are included in
appendix C.



Y., Although construction of the project will permit fuller
exploitation of the offshore fisherles, it 1s not considered advisable
to include conservation of fish and wildlife resources as a purpose for
s project which 1s constructed primerily for navigation. The publie
will be permitted to sport fish from the north Jetiy extemsion but, due
to hazards of elimbing over Jetty stomes, elgns will be posted at the
land terminus of the Jetty warning people that they enter Government
property at thelr own risk. Based on experience at other Jettles along
the Oregon coast, 1t is anticipated that the work road used for Jetty
construction will be destroyed by storm waves within one or two winters.
Although some Jetty fishing will be done, no benefits therefrom have
been evaluated. The period of time specified for blasting for rock
excavation appears pomewhat reastrictive; however, every effort will be
made to accomplish the work during the period specified.

¢c. Views of local interests. - Local interests were informed
of the nature of the improvement to be recommended and the requirements
for local cooperation. The Port of Brookings Commission, sponsar for
the proposed improvement, in a letter dated 9 Japuary 1964 expressed
their willingness to provide the requirements of loecal cooperation.

27. DISCUSSION. -

a. The area tributary to the port of Brookings 1s in general:
rugged, mountalnous, and heavily timbered. Only a small area ls
devoted to farming, delirylng, and stock ralsing. The prineipsl resource
i1g the timber stand. The economy of the ares 18 based primariliy on
wood=products industrles and to a limited extent on the recently devel-
oped commercial fishery. As the nearest rall facllitles are over 100
miles distant from Brookings, the industries are dependent on highway
and water transportation to move thelr products to market.

b. Although no channel dimensions were specified for the
existing project, 1% is noted from the report under review that expec-
tations after comstruction of the Jetties were for chanpel depths of 2
to 3 feet. Upon completlon of the Jettlies in December 1957, the en-
trance, aided by freshets, scoured to depths varying from 8 to L feet
except in areas where rock pinnacles projected up to within 2% feet of
the mean lower low water datum. Local interests, during 1958, at thelr
own expense constructed a protective dike about 1,000 feet long and
dredged a small-boat basin along the left bapk of ‘the river to accommo~
date commercisl fishermen wishing to base thelr operations at Brooklngs.
During 1959, the Corps of Engineers accomplished removal of the rock
pinnacles to provide, roughly, a channel 120 feet wlde with controlling
depths of about & feet. Local interests then expanded their facilities
to permit loading of limber barges and Increased moorage space for
fishing craft.

]|

&\



¢, - A measure of the success of the exdsting project migh‘b be
indiecated by a camparison. of expected and actual activity of the port,
From information contained in the authorizing document for the existing
project 1t 1p noted that expectatlione were for the basing of a fleet of
25 commercial fishing eraft at the port, and for an operation consist-
ing of handling and towing of a limited wvolume of logs to shipside dur-
ing the summer months. Present activity of the port inecludes movement
of lumber by oceangoing barges and its use as a base for a commercial
fishing fleet, 'The lumber movement wea inltiated in November 15959,
and shipments have averaged about 32 million board feet annuslly.
Over 50 commerclal Fishing boats presently use Cheteo River for moorsge
and as a base fry landing thelr catch and obtaining supplies. Many
other transient boats make calls for the same purpose,

d. In addition to inadequate entrance channel depths, the
principal difficulties attending navigetion have developed through use
of the existing project for barging lumber and for the bhasing of a
number of large fishing craft, These difficulties comsist.of conges-
tlon in an overcrowded harbor, resultlng in delays and possible vessel
damage. PFurther inerease in port actlvity also is limited by lack of
harbor and maneuvering aresa.

e, The improvements consldered herein would permit the use of
larger and more efficlent barges resuliing In transportation savings
on shipments of lumber, plywood, and woodchips. Delays and damages to
tugs, barges, and commerclal fishboats also would be eliminated. Bene-
fits would be realized through an lncrease ln the commerclal fishing
fleet and in the increasgd activity of the present fleet.

f. Iue to existing construction worke and natural physical
limitations of Chetco River, channel dimensions as proposed are believed
to be the maximun attalneble. The proposed improvement is of sufficlent
scope to adequabtely handle products of timber rescurces, the only re-
sources presently utilized in the tributary ares.

g. The recommended plen would satisfy the neéds of local In-
terests and is acceptable to them.

he Additional information called for by Senate Resolution 14§,
85th Congress, lst sesslion, adopted 28 Jenuary 1958, is contalned in a
supplement to this report.

28, CONCLUSIONS. - The District Engineer concludes, on the besis
of date presented in this report, that: (a) A need exists at Cheteo
River for additional protection and depth for the entrance channel and
for a protected barge turning basin and smali-boat access channel; and
(b) benefite accruing from these proposed improvements would exceed
the costs and warrant participation by the Federal Government,

32

BL



29, . RECOMMENDATION. - The District Engineer recommends that the
existing project for Chetco River, Oregon, be modified by the United
States to provide for (1) an entrence channel 120 feet wide and 1% feet
deep et mean lower low water; (2) an extension to the north Jetty about
450 feet in length with an inerease in elevatlon of the exlsting por-
tion; (3) a barge turning basin about 250 feet wlde, 650 feet long, and
1h feet deep at mean lower low water; (4) a protective dlke about
1,800 feet long with a top elevation of 16 feet above mean lower low
water; and (5) a small-boat access channel 100 feet wide and 12 feet
deep at mean lower low water. ¥irst cost for Corps of Engineers! con-
struction is estimated at $1,317,000 and annual maintenance is estimated
to amount to $25,000, in addition to that required to maintain the
existing project. Adopticn of the project would be subject to the pro-
vision that, prior to construction, local interests agree to (a) provide
without cost to the United States all lands, easements, and rights-of-
way required for constructlon and subsequent malntenance of the project
end of alds to navigation upon the request of the Chief of Engineers,
including sultable areas determined by the Chief of Engineers to be re-
quired in the general public interests for initial and subsequent dis-
posal of spoll, and necessary retaining dikes, bulkheads, and embank-
ments therefor or the costs of such retaining works; (b) hold and save
the United States free from damages due to constructlon and subsequent
meintenance of the project; (¢) provide and maintain at local expense
adeguate public terminals and transfer facilities open to all on equal
terms; (8) provide and maintaln without cost to the United States
depths in berthing and mooring areas and loeal access channels serving
the terminals, commensurate with the depths provided in related project
areas; (e) accomplish without cost to the United States such alterations
as required in sewer, water supply, drainage, and other utility facili-
ties, as well as thelr maintenance; and (f) contribute in cash 6.5 per-
cent of the cost of construetion by the Corps of Engineers of the small-
boat access channel and that portion of the dike adlacent thereto,
and that such contribution, presently estimated at $9,000, be pald in s
lump sum pricr to commencement of construction. The net cost to the
United States for the recommended improvements, exclusive of alds to
nevigation, is $1,308,000 for construction and $25,000 annually for
additional maintenance.

Colonel, Corps of Engineers
District Engineer



|First entlorsement]

NPDEN-PL(6 Mar 64)
SUBJECT: Chetco River, Oregon

U, 8. Army Engr Div, Nor Pac, Portland, Ore. 15 April 1964

TO: Chief of Engineers

I concur in the views and recommendations of the District Engineer.

W. W. LAPSLEY

Ma jor General, USA
Division Engineer

84



APPENDIX B

Benefit Evaluation

1. GENERAL. - Benefits accrulng as a result of improving the Chetco
River project include (1) savings in the cost of transporting lumber,
plywood, and woodchips; (2) savings by elimination of vessel delay time
and damage to equipment; (3) savings in the cost of commercial fishing;
(4) & considerable expansion in recreational boating, and (5) use of the
improved project as e harbor of refuge.

2. It 1a believed that improvements fo the harbor as proposed here-
in would limit vessel traffic to that used in the coastwlse trade as the
proposed channel depth of minus 14 feet, mean lower low water, and width
of 120 feet are not adequate for larger vessels usrd In the intercoastal
and offshore trades. Q(reater channel dimensions than those specified
-above were consldered; however, due to lLimited width between the ends of
the existing jettles (about 200 feet at base) the proposed dimensions
are consldered to be the maximum that can be constructed wlthout causing
undermining or subsldence of the Jettles. For this reason, attentlon
hes been centered upon the advanteges to be derived from comstwlise ship-
ping of lumber products and the expansion and increased efficiency of
the commercial flshing operations through the use of the imprOVed en-
trance and herbor.

3+« The economy of the area tributary to the port of Brooklngs ls
based principally on the timber industry. Commodities susceptible to
woter movement include lumber, plywood, and woodchips. Commerclsl fish-
ing started shortly after completion of the Jettles in 1957 and has in-
creased coneiderably since that time.

. 'TRIBUTARY AREA. - The area considered tributary to the port of
Brookings generally includes the southern portion of Curry County, con-
talning the drainage basins of Chetco and Winchuck Rivers, and an aree
along the comat between Pistol Rlver in Oregon and Smith River in Cali-
fornia,

5. TIMBER OWNERSHIP. - The Siskiyou Nationsl Forest covers approx-
imately two-thirds, or about 251,000 acres, of the land area tributary
to the port of Brookings, and the portion within this area 1s edminis-
tered by the Chetco Ranger District, The au of Lend Management ad-
ministers 4,058 acres of timberland, all of which falls within the
Brookings tributary area. The largest private landowner In the area
controls 42,000 acres, 98 percent of which 1s timbered, in Curry County,
Oregon, and Del Norte County, Californias. All of this area is assumed
to be tributsry to the port of Brookinga. Another private ownershlp in-
volves 9,000 acres in Del Norte County from which a Brookings mill has
been supplled with logs for extended perlods of time in the past.

35



6., TIMEER RESOURCES. -~ A measiure of the timber resocurces of a
reglon is 1ts ecapabllity of producing a constent supply of logs on a
sustained-yleld or annual basis. This amount is known as "allowable
cut" and is the quantity of logs that cen be cut each year under
proper foreat management without diminlshing the sustalned harvesting
capaclty of the timberlands.

" T+ According to the U. 8. Forest Service, Paclfie Northwest
Reglion, separate timber mansgement plane are not prepared for each
ranger district or block but for the working circle as a whole. How-
ever, .an allowable annual cut of 38 million board-feet, Scribner's log
scale, has been assigned to the Chetco block or the Cheteco Rauger
District, and 1s considered tributary to the port of Brookings. (See
letters from U. .S. Forest Service, Department of Agriculture.) The
office of the Columbla Basin representatlve, Bureau of Land Manage~
ment has assgigned an annual allowable cut of 3.1 million board-feet,
Scribner's scale, to their 4,058 acres of timberlands, which are in
the Brookings tributary area. (See letter from U, 8. Bureau of Land
Management, Department of the Interior.) Statements by representa~
tives of the largest private t{lmberland owner, Mr. 5. A. Agnew, in-
dicate an allowable cut of 100 million board-feet per year can be ob-
talned from his land. During the past few years Mr. Agnew has con-
structed scme 35 miles of roads into his own timber. When this road
gsystem i tied into the 48-mile loop road now bheing built Jointly by
Qregon Coast Veneer and the Bureeu of Land Mansgement In the Pistol
River reglon of southern Curry County, it wlll provide ready access
to Brookings mills for the tiruer harvest from Mr. Agnew's holdings.
This road wlill also allow g-.eater loads per truck, since the trucks
will not have to travel the public highways whlech have restrictive
load limita. In additlon to its holdings in Curry County, one Brooke~
ings mill owns 9,000 acres of timberland in the Big Flat area of Del
Norte County. For the purpose of this report Lt is assumed that the
allowable eut for this area would amount t¢ about 1.9 million beoard-
feet. This estimate 18 based on information given for the Del Norte
working cirele -of the Six Rivers National Forest. Summation of the
above gives s total annual allowable cut of 143 million board-feet,
Scribner's log scale, for the Brookings tributary area, Timber
which would be obtalned frdm numerous owners of small areas was not
included as no estimate could be made as to timing or amounts of
timber harvest.

8. EXISTING MILL CAPACITY. - The exlating annual capacity of
mills located in Brookings and vicinity on a one-shift basis amounts
to about 130 million board-feet of lumber, 100 million square-feet of
l/ 10~inch veneer, and 90 million square-feet of plywood on & 3/8-.1.nch
basis. Raw materlal requirements for this capacity are estimated to
be 137.4 million board-feet of loge, Scribmer's scale. Existing
mills, their capacities and log supply requirements are listed below.



Log supply

s Capaclty H
: Lumber, : Plywood require~
: mlllion ; or veneer, : ments, million
¢ board« : mlillion : board-feet,
Company : feet : square~feet : log scale
Brown Iumber Company 13.0 None 10.8
Thompson Brothers Lumber
Company 1h. 4 None 12,0
. Oregon Coast. Veneer 5.6 100.0% 20.6
South Coast Lumber Ccmpany,
Oregon Ltd. 78.0 None 5 52.0
Brookings Plywood (orporation 20.0 90,02 42,0
Total 131.0 137.4

1/10-inch basis.
3/8-inch basis.

I rol —~

9. PRESENT PRODUCTION. - From informetlon obtalned at the public
hearing and through loterviews with mil)l coperators, the existing sunual
production and log supply requlrements of mille in the Brookings area
ere estimated to be as shown in the followlng tabulation.

Produetion

i  Log supply
: Lumber, : Plywood require-
: milldon : or veneer, : ments, million
: board~ milidon : Dboard-feet
Company : feet s square-feet : log scale
Brown Lumber Company 7.0 None 5.8
Thompson Brothers Lumber .

Company 1.4 None 12,0
Oregon Cosmst Veneer k.0 72,01 15.0
Bouth Coast Lumber Company,

Oregon Ltd. 60.0 None , 4,03
Brookings Plywood Corporation 20.0 90,05 42,0

Total 105.4 118.8

1/10-inch~thickness basis.
3/8-inch-thickness basis.

leot ol =

Includes 4,0 million board-feet of Port Orford ceder logs which are

trucked to Fureka, California, for shipment to Japan,

10. POTENTIAL PRODUCTION. - Operators of mills in the Brookings
aree heve stated that with improvement in market and transportation

a7

N



conditlons tlfey would lncrease the output of thelr mills., Presently
the mills are cperating on a one-shift basis and at lese than full
capacity. For the purposes of this report, maximum production of
mills throughout the period of project analyslis will be consldered to
be directly related to avallabllity of log supply or to the annual
allowable cut of 143.0 million board-feet of logs. Since present log
consumption is at the rate of about 118.8 million board-feet, log
scale, mill production could be increased by about 20 percent, which
would result in use of about 143,0 million board-feet of logs.

11, Some mills would probably increase thelr production by more
than 20 percent and others less, depending on their merkets and abll-
1ty to obtaln logs elther from their own lands or by purchase from
others, For purpose of analysis 1t 1s assumed that all mills would
incresse the output of their items by 20 percent according to thelr
present conversion of raw logs to finished products. It 1s further
assumed that most logs would be milled in the tributary area rather
then be shipped by barge to be processed elsewhere,.

12. The followlng table Indicates the estimated sustained mill
production utilizing the total allowable cut from the Brooklngs tribu-
tary area.

: Sustalped production : Log supply
: Lumber, : Plywood : require-
: million ; or veneer, ; ments, million
: board~ ; million : Tboard-feet,
Company ; feet : square-feet : log scale
Brown Lumber Company 8.4 None ' 7.0
Thompson Brothers Lumber
Company 17.3 None | b b
Oregon Coast Veneer 4.8 86.4= 18.0
South Coast Lumber Company,
Oregon Ltd. 72.0 None - 53.0§
Brookings Plywood Corporation 24,0 108,0= 50,6
Total ~126.5 1%3.0

1/10-inch-thickness baeis.

3/8«inch~thickness basis.

Tneludes 4.8 million board-feet of Port Orford cedar logs which are
trucked to Eureka, California, for shipment to Japan,

tl nl 1

13, IIMBER MABKETS. = From informal discusaion with local -opera-
tors, 1t has been determined that the present dlstributiou of lumber
produced by Brookings mills on a percentage basis by marketing area
or destlnation is about as follows:

s



Market ' Percent of total

aren ' production
Southern Californis 67.5
San Francisco and vieinity XT.3
Misgcellaneous 15.2
Total 100,0

Jumber shipped to the southern Californla market ares moves by water
from Brookings and Crescent City to los Angeles, San Diego, and Port
Hueneme. ‘San Franclisco receives its portion by truck or combination
truck and rall, although some shipments have been made via truck and
barge from Crescent City. The marketing area designated miscellaneous
includes shipments to forelgn trade via truck to Eureka, Californiam,
snd to various Unlted States markets via truck to rail at Arcata,
California.

14, FUTURE LUMBER MARKETS. - Californla, it is believed, will
continue t0 be the major market for Brockipge-produced lumber due to
several facbors. Brookings 1s the nearest Oregon port to southeim
Californie. Industrial expension and Increase in population in south~
ern Callfornla can be expected to continue the demand for lumber for
uwse by most elemente of the construction industry. Brookings mills
are unable to compete in emsterm Unlted States and forelgn markets
due to lack of rail facilities and accese to deep-draft navigation.
The nearest rallroad to Brookings 18 located at Arcata, Californis,
108 mlles south, and the nesrest deep~draft harbor for forelgn trade
is at Bureka, California, 116 miles south.

15. Also, as the ships engaged in the offshore trade have drafts
that will not permit them to use the present or proposed channel
dimensions, development of s substantlial foreign market is not antiei-
pated. JYn view of the above 1t is assumed that future markets for
lumber produced by Brookings mllls will be substantially the same as
in the past. Based on an sunual sustained production of asbout 1£6.5
million board-feet, distribution of lumber by market area is esti-
mated to be as follows:

: ‘Percent : Amount: in
Market H of total : millions of
ares s production : - board-feet
Southern California 67.5 85.4
San Francisco and vicinity 17.3 21.9
Miscellanecus 15,2 19.2
Total 100.0 126,5




16. LUMBER SHIPMENTS. - Testimony of mill operators indicates that
with adequate Cchannel depths and port facilitiles they would prefer to
use Brookinge rather than Crescent City for barging lumber to southern
California. Several operators also stated that savings might be real-
ized by water shipment to San Francisco. An indication of savings to
lumber mills by use of water transportation to southern California is
shown through a comparlson of transportation costs. The followlng
table shows the costs per thousand board-feet for transporting sur-
faced green lumber from Brookings mills to Los Angeles via different
nethods.

: Cost,
1 thousand
Method s board-feet
!
Combination truck and rail:
Truck (Brookings to Arcata) $6.50
Loanding truck to rail 3.50
Rail (Arcata to Los Angeles) 11,56+
Total 21.56
Water shipment:
Average truck haul to Brookings $0.75
VWharfege at Brookings 0.50
Handling at Brookings 0.50
Barge rate 12.00
Tatal 13.75

1 Based on $0.455 per 100 pounds and 2,540 pounds per 1,000 board-feet,

The above potential saving 1s generally reduced somevwhat by wharfage
charges at destination, although it is apparent that for shippers and
receivers located at or near tidewater, surfaced green lumber can be
shipped by barge to southern California at considerably less cost than
by rail. It is, therefore, assumed that with the improvement as pro-
posed the sustained production of 85.4 million board-feet of surfaced
lumber destined for southern Californmis ports would move by barge from
the port of Brookings. A similar analysis was mede for shipments to
the San Franclsco area. -

17. The followlng table shows the costs per thousand board-feet
for transporting surfaced green lumber from Brooklngs mills to San
Francieco srea via different means.

©



Cost

g thousand
Method : board-feet
Truck haul:
Total $13.25
Combinatlion truck and rell:
Truck (Brookings to Arcate) 6.50
Loading truck to rall 3.501
Rail (Arcats to San Francisco) 1.75-
Total . 17.75
Water shipment:
Average truck haul to Brookings 0.75
Wherfage and handling at Brookingsa 1.002
Barge rate 11.00-=
Total 12.75

Based on $0.305 per 100 pounds and 2,540 pounds per 1,000 board-feet.
Quoted from Crescent Clty to San Franclisco and assumed same for
Brooklngs to San Francisca.

1ol

A comparison of the above transportation charges indicates that little
if any savings would be reallzed through water shipments from Brookings
to San Francisco and, therefore, for purposes of this analysis it is
assumed that lumber destined for the San Francisco area will continue
to move via e truck heul.

18. Lumber moving to the market area designated miscellaneous in-
cludes both rough and finished stock, which is transported by truck and
rall to eastern United States markets or to deep-draft ports for off-
shore trade. It is believed that improvement of Cheteco River entrance
would not affect the amount or present method of this movement; there-
fore, no benefits were considered for the sustained production of lumber
in this category.

19. LUMBER BENEFITS. -

a. Alternate port. - With construction of the proposed improve-
ment, benefits would accrue from shimments of lumber through incremental
savings in transportetion costs by elimination of delays and through
full loeding of barges. Lumber shipments through the port of Brookings
were initiated in the fall of 1959. During the years 196o£ 1961, and
1962 these shipments have amounted to sbout 48, 32, and 175 million
board feet, respectively. The decline in shipments from 1960 through
1962 1e due partially to the fact that, presently, only one barge opera-
tor serves Brookings while another serves Crescent City. Although ter-
minal facilitles at Brookings are open to all on equal terms, the opera-
tor serving Crescent City has elected to absorb trucking costs of lumber

46-B85 O-65—4 .

A\



from Brookings rather than use the port of Brookings, which has limited
channe)l depth and inadeguate maneuvering aren. He has stated that he
would use the port of Brookings after construction of the proposed im-
provement. The operator presently serving Brookings stated that upon
completion of the improvement he would discontinue the use of his )
smaller barges mnd would be able to fully load his larger barges.

b. Due to high trucking costs to rall, as shown previously,
the lowest cost for tramusportatlion of lumber from the Brookings area to
Los Angeles, Sen Diego, and Port Hueneme 1s eilther by trucking to Cres.
cent City or port of Brookings and barging the rest of the distance.
Accordingly, a comparative analysis has been made using costs involved
in shipping via Brookings under exlsting and improved conditions and
via Crescent City. BElements lncluded in the analysis are trucking
costs, tug and barge operating costs, loading and unloading time,
travel time including delays, and handling and wharfage fees.

e. Trucking costs. - Local millowners have stated thelr
trucking costs for surimced lumber to Crescent City (approximately 28
miles) to be $2 per thousand board-feet, and to the Brookings dock
(average under 3 miles) to be 75 cents per thousand, or a difference
of $1.25 per thousand board-feet in favor of the port of Brookings.
Published rates, on a mlleage basis, of the Willamette Tarliff Bureau
are $4,79 per thousand board-feet (from 25 to 30 miles) and $2.49 per
thousand board-feet (from 0 to 5 miles), or a difference of $2.30 per
thousand borvd-feet for surfaced lumber. Since most of the lumber
hauling in the area 1s elther done by mill-owned trucks or on & cob-
tract basis, the rates indicated by published tariffs are considered
unrealistic and, therefore, costs of $2 and 75 cents per thousand
board-feet to Crescent Clty and Brookings, respectively, will be used.

d. Delays. - Principal delays presently experlienced in barg-
ing lumber from the port of Brookings are caused through waiting for
tides due to insufficient channel depths and through difficulty in
turning and maneuvering barges because of limited harbor area. Minor
delays have occurred during perlods of stormy weather, The barge
operator presently serving the port has stated that entry or exit
through the channel by lumber barge and tug 1s accomplished only at
daylight high tide. He further stated that if the proposed improve-
ments were completed the channel and harbor could be negotlated by his
equipment at any time, day or night. This equipment consists of five
.. dlfferent barges of two basic sizes., The smaller barges have a capa-
city of 1.5 million board-feet of surfaced green lumber and are 190
feet long and 50 feet wide, wlth & loaded draft of about 10 feet. The
larger barges have a-capacity of 2.2 million board-feet of surfaced
green lumber and are 210 feet long, 54 feet wide, and have a loaded
draft of about 12 feet. The tugs used in towlng barges from Brookings
vary in size from 675 horsepower to 1,000 horsepower, with drafts from
9 feet to 10.5 feet.

42

L



e. A study of the 1962 vessel operation reports for the port of
Brookings ipdicates that time is lost in walting for high tides before
leaving the port with loaded harges. It must also be assumed that time
is lost in walting or adjusting arrival times to enter the port at high
tide. The mctual time lost in walting for tides cannot be determined
exactly as the barging company has made no statement of actual time lost,
but 1t is assumed that 6 hours per trip would be a conservative estimate,
This i considered to be half in-port time and half at-sea time.

£. Due to inadequate turning space in the present harbor, barges
are turned in Cheteo Cove and moved through the entrance stern first. In
order to perform this maneuver it is necessary for the tug to bring the
barge to rest in open water, drop the towlng bridle, pleck up lines from the
stern, and move through the entrance to the dock. When the barge
spproaches the dock it is necessary, because of restricted room, to assist
the tug in positioning the barge by means of lines and land-based dopnkeye.
This procedure 1s time-consuming and also hazerdous as was demonstrated
wvhen a barge got out of control and demeged several fishbosts. With the
improvement as proposed the tug could bring the barge through the entrance
bow firet to the turning basin. By means of a dolphin, placed at the
corner of the basin, and barge slip, the barge would be held whlle the tug
dropped the towing bridle. After this the tug would nose the barge into
the slip, adjacent to loading facilities. Tug captains navigating Cheteo
River entrance stated that they prefer the proposed method of operating
and are in sgreement with the plan of dmprovement. They made no estimate
a8 to amount of time which would be saved; however, it 1s conservatively
estimated that with lmprovement st least one hour of operating sea time
would be eliminsated per tug.

g. Specific operating costs for average-type tug and barge used
to service Brookings are not available; however, the barge operators have
stated that the hourly rate for all tuges used lp thie service averages
sbout $50 per hour at sea or Iin port and that the rates for their 1,500
and 3,200-ton barges are $200 and $250 per day, respectively. Another
operator estimated operating costs for his seagoing tugs, simlilar to the
ones above, at $l43 per hour. For costs of towboats in the 1,000-horsepower
class the Board of Englneers for Rlvers and Harbors, in thelr report
"Waterways Economlcs Serles No. 5," has derived an operating cost of $38.09
per hour. Considering that these costs were for 1951 and for inland
waterway equipment, 1t is bellieved that an hourly operating cost of $43
for tugs sppears reasonsble on a present~day basis end 18 used herein. In
the case of operating costs as quoted for barges, the figures of $200 and
$250 per day, or $8.33 and $10.42 per hour, appear high. However, by using
construction coste of $190,000 for the 1,500-ton barge and $275,000 for
the 3,200-ton barge, and allowing for depreclation, repairs, lnterest,
marine insurance, taxes, and overhead, the hourly operating costs were com-
puted to be $6.51 and $8.65 for the small and large barges, respectively.
These costs appear reasonable and will be used with the average tug-
operating costs ln computing benefits by eliminatlon of delays. The ad-
Justed hourly cost for a tug and the 1,500-ton barge would be $h9.51,

43



rounded to $49.50, and for the tug and 3,200-ton barge, $51.65, rounded
to $51.60. To reflect the difference between at-sea and in-port costs
for tug and barge the above costs were reduced by $3 per hour, which

is cost of fuel consumed. There would be no reduction in cost for crew
as they are used in the loading and unloading operstion.

h. Travel, loading, and unloading time. - According to the
barge operator a round trip for tug end either thelr large or small
barge from Crescent Clty to Los Angeles takes from 10 to 13 days depend-
ing on wind and weather., Additional time required for movement from
Brookings and return in lieu of Crescent City amounts to 6 hours. Ser-
vice to San Diego requires an additional 24 hours per trip. For the
purpose of analysis, use will be made of the followlng travel times in
hours per round trip:

Hours
Crescent Clty to Los Angeles 210
Crescent City to San Diego 264
Brookings to Los Angeles al6
Brooklngs to San Diego 270

The time required to load 1.5 mlllion bogrd-feet of lumber on the 1,500-
ton barge smounts to 16 hours, and for loading 2.2 million board-feet
on & 3,200-ton barge 24 hours. However, due to limited chennel depths
in the Chetco River entrance, the 3,200-ton barge 18 not able to leave
the port fully loaded even by walting for high tide. Based on mean
high tide, existing permissible load for the 3,200-ton barge is about
1.8 million board-feet. Loading time for this amount of lumber is 19
hours.

i. Incremental savings. - Followlng 1s a table showlng compar-
ative costs for shipplng lumber to Los Angeles via Crescent Clty and
Brookings using the 3,200-ton barge from both ports and a 1,500~ton
barge from Brookings. No handling or loadlng costs were included as
these costs are considered to be the same for both ports.

W



sr

Via Via
Crescent Brookin

City Existing
3, 200-ton 1,500-ton : 3,200~t
barge barge : barge
Load (million board-feet) 2.2 1.5 1.8
Loading time (hours) ol 16 15
Unloading time (hours) 2l 16 16
Delay (in-port time) 0 L 4
Total in-port time 8 36 Tz
Travel time (round trip) 240 246 2he
Delay (at-sez time) 0 3 3
Total (at-sea time) ZLo 29 249
Cost per hour, in-port $48.60 $46.50 $48.60
Cost per hour, at-sea 51.60 kg,50 51.60
Cost per trip $1k, 717 $14,000 $14,890
Cost per thousand board-feet $6.69 $9.33 $8.27
Truck baul cost’ 2.00 0.75 » 0.75
Total cost per thousand board-feet 8.69 10.08 9.0t




From paragraph 16 of appendix B and from the above table, it 18 roted
that with or without improvement of Chetco Rlver the least cosily alter-
native for shlipping lumber from Brookinge to Los Angeles 1s through Cres.
cent City, and that by fully loading a 3,200-ton barge & saving of $1,11
per thousand btoard-feet of lumber can.be realized by use of the improved
project. As the additlonal cost to San Diego-would be constant for ship.
ping through either Crescent CLty or improved Chetco Rlver, the saving
would be the same as for Los Angeles. Based on a.saving of $1.11 per
thousand board-feet and on & sustained ennusl production of 85.4 million
board-feet destined for the southern Californla market, benefits accruing
as a result of the improvement would amount to-$04,T794, rounded to $94,8x
Using a conversion factor of 1.27 tons per 1,000 board feet the total ton:
of lumber would amount to 108,458, rounded to 108,500,

J+ According to local interests, stormms Intense enough to close
the port to barge traffic occur on the average of about three times per
year and have a duration of about two days. While the plan of Ilmprove-
ment would meke the port more usable during stormy weather, 1t is not
belleved that complete protecticn would be afforded from all storms,
Because of the present infrequency of port closures, no beneflts have
been evalusted due 10 delsy because of storms,

20, PIY¥WOOD BENEFITS. -

8. Production and market. ~ Plywood 1s presently produced n
the Brooklngs area by one company at about an snnual rate of 90 million
square~feet on & 3/8-inch—thiek bagls. Another company produced =
nually about T2 million square-feet of 1/1D-inch-thick veneer. (apacl-
ties of these mills are gremter than this. At the public hearingz, the
manager of the plywood company stated that 60 percent of his prc¢duction
moved to Arcata by truck thence to United Btates markets by rail; 28
percent by reil or buyer'se truck from Arcata to Califoruls merkets; and
12 percent by truck direct to purchaser in San Francisec. At an inter-
view in September 1962, the plywood mill menager stated that at that
time the major portion of thelr plywood moved to the Los Angeles mauiet
aree. rather thean as previously stated. The veneer mill ships 80 per-
cent of its production to the company-owned plywood plant at Grants
Pass, Oregon, and the remalnder 1s sold on the open market,

b. Future plywood shipments. - Testimony of a representative
of a tranesportation company indlcates that his flrm has designed s
speclal, covered barge capable of moving plywood from Oregon porte to
perts in southern Californla at rates that are competitive with rates
of other modes of transportation, and that with construction of the
proposed improvement thils barge serviee would be avallable at Broockings.
Operatorsg of the plywood mills also indieasted that they wers very much
interested in development of a plywood water movement. In view of the
above 1t is believed that with improvement of Chetco Rlver entrance m
Parge movement of plywcod would be lnltlated. It 1s also believed that
future market distribution would indicate a much higher percent than
the 28 percent now moving to southern California. However, it is i

o



conservatively estimated that 28 percent of the sustained annual production
of 108 million square-feet (3/8-inch basis) of plywood or 30.24% million
square~feet of plywood, rounded to 30.2, would move via barge to southern
California ports. Based on 1.25 poundc per square~foot, the 30,2 million
square-feet of plywood amounts to about 19,000 tons. The sustained annual
production of veneer of 86,4 million square-feet (1/10-inch basis) is con-
slderably in excess of the needs of the company-owned plywood plant at
Grants Pass, Oregon. Although this excess represents a potential tonnage
of waterborne commerce, no barge shipments were included as the markets for
veneey are numerous and indefinite.

¢. Transportation savings on plywood. - As in the case of lumber,

the lowest alternate cost for shipplng plywood to southern Californla would

be vim truck to Crescent City and then barge to destination. WNo plywood
shipments are presently belng made by barge from Crescent City; however, it
Is felt that when plywood movements are Inltlated from Brockings, this
service also would be made avallable at Crescent Clity. Therefore, any
saving to be realized would be the- difference in transportation costs re-
quired to move the material to dest. natlon via Crescent City or via Brook-
1ngs after the improvement i1s completed. Using a unli savings simllar to
that used for lumber, and applying a factor of 1.27 tons per thousand
board-feet, the unlt saving per tor of plywood amounts to 87 cents. Based
on an estimated movement of 19,500 tons of plywood and a unit saving of 87
conts per ton, an average asnnual benefit of about $16,500 is anticipated
to accrue as a result of the improvement.

d., Woodchips. - The growing demsnd for paper-and cellulose pro-
ducts 1in recent years hag stimulated widespread interest Iin moving wood-
chips by oceangolng barges to pulp plants located on tidewater. If the
Brooklngs Harbor is Ilmproved, 1t 1s belleved that the veneer and plywood
plants and the largest lumber mlll at Brookings will produee Douglas-fir
chips for a kraft pulp mill located elther at Longview, Washington, or at
Gardiner, Oregon. Under present timber-processing practlces, these larger
nills af Brooklngs could produce a comblned annual volume of about 55,000
uni*s of chips, which iz less than the estimated full potentil of 67,000
unite on a sustalned-yleld, timber-harvesting program amouanting to l&3
million board-feet annually. Mllls whlch process lesg than 20 million
feet of logs annually have not been Includzd in this estimate, as the
present cost of barking and chipping machines 1s uneconomleal for small
mills. The estimated annual volume of 55,000 unlts of chips 1s based on
approximate ratlios that a lumber mlll wlll produce about .55 units of chips
and a plywood plant about .47 unlis per thousand bosrd-feet of logs pro-
cessed,

e. FEconomigs of the chip-producing industry indicate that lume-
ber and plywood mille must recelve about $6 per unit and pulp mills can
pay a top price of sbout $ik per unlt for Douglas~fir chips delivered at
the pulp plent, leaving a maximum of $8 per unit as the allowable total
transportation cost between the chlp-producing mill and the pulp plent.
From a study made by a pulp plant at Longvlew,; Washington, 1t has been

47

N



determined that an oceangoing barge T5 feet by 275 feet, loaded draft
of 12 feet 6 inches, carrylng 1,500 units, and equipped with pneumatic
blowers for leading and unloading, could move chips from Brookings to
Longview at & barge rate of $6 per unlt. The chips would be stockplled
and then loaded on & barge withln a 2h-bour period. In addition to the
barge rate of $6 per unit, there would be & wharfage cost of about 50
cents per unit and a loading and unloading cost of about 25 cents per
unit, Cost of moving chips from the mills to the stockplle would vary
with esch mill, being about $1 per umit for South Coast Lumber Company,
75 cents per unit for Brookings Plywood Corporation (each of which
would truck their chips to tr: stockplle), and sbout 25 eents per unit
for A. 8. Agnew mill, which would use a conveyor and pneumatic blower.

f. Movement of woodchips would not be feasible via an alter-
nate port. The estimated trucking cost to move chips to Crescent Clty,
the nearest alternate port, would average about $3.50 per unit for all
mills, meking a total average transportation eost from chlp mill to
pulp plant of $9,50 per unit, which ‘exceeds the allowable economical
1limit of $8 by $1.50. If chips were delivered from Crescent City to
Gardiner instead of Longvlew, the barge rate would perhaps be reduced
by a8 much as $1.50 per unit, but this saving would still leave trans-
portation costs at the $8 maximum 1imit, and it is doubtful that chip
production would be underteken with transportation costs at the maximm
value,

g« For conservative purposes, transportation savings have been
estimated between Brookings and Longview on the assunption that the
Brookings Harbor would be improved.

h, It is believed that the difference between the maximum
allowable, economical trensportation cost of $8 per unit and the esti-
mated transportation costs of moving chips by trucks, pneumatic blowers,
and barges from Brookings to Longview is & conservatlive measure of bene-
fits resulting from the harbor improvement. However, to allow for in=
centlives for capital investments in transportation facilitles, only 80
percent of the estimaeted savings have been teken.as a benefit. The
estimate of beneflts to the three potential chip-producing mills at
Brookings is summarized below, and amounts to $23,200 annually on
55,000 units or 126,500 tons of woodchips.

A8

18



6¥

: Barge, Total
Truck : wharf- trans- Annual
or :  age and porta- Savings produc
: Dblower : loading tion per, tion,
M1l : cost costs cost unit= units
S. A. Agnew (plywood
mill) $0.25 $6.75 $7.00 $1.00 14,000
South Coast Lumber
Company 1.00 6.75 7475 0.25 22,000
Brockings Plywood
Corporation 0.75 6.75 7.50 0.50 19,000
Total

NET BENEFIT, .80X$29,000 = $23,200

of $8 per unit.

L Difference between total transportation cost per unit and maximum allowable t



21 —COMMERCIAL FISHING. = Ocean fishing grounds adjacent to Chetco
River and the port of Brookings extend along the Oregon coast for a dis-
tance of about 25 miles north and south of Chetco River entrance. Each
year these fishing grounds yield a significant harvest of crab, shrimp,
salmon, tuna, and bottom fish.

28, COMMERCIAL CATCH. - Statistics furnished by the Fish Commlssion
of Oregon for the years 1957 through 1961, and by the port of Brookings
for 1962, give the followlng toonages for food and shellfish landed at
Brookings.

- Bpecies {weight in toms)

: Salmon : : Botton : i
Yeanr : Chinook : Silver : Crad fish : Ohrimp : Tuna
1962 99.h 257 151 713 h3
1961 237.3 58.1 585 59 128 68
1960 59.6 30.0 1,570 15 27 1
1959 3.4 9.6 525 17 145 1
1958 6.1 Ok 114 - - il
1957 hod 3.2 4 e = =

23. COMMERCIAL FISHING POTENTIAIS. -~ Statements from the U, S, Fish
and Wildlife Service and the Fish Commlission of Oregon indicate that the
crab and salmon fisheries are fully explolted at this time. However,
tune, shrimp, and bottom fisheries are capable of greatly increased
ylelds. (See report of the U. S. Fish and Wildlife Serviece, Depavtment
of the Interior, contained in appendix C.)

2l, COMMERCIAL FISHING LAWS AND PRACTICES. - The\wmmercial fishing
season 1s controlled by the fish commisslon of the State of Oregon and
varies from season to season. The length of season for 1962 for various
fisheries was as follows:

Chinook salmon: 15 Aprll to 31 October.
Silver salmon: 15 June to 31 October.

Bottom fish: No season limitaetlons. ;

Crab: 1l Jeanuary to 15 September,

Tunsa; No season limltation but aetive season is
August through November,

Shrimp: No season limitatlon but active sesson is

from April through October,

Many boats used in fishing for crab in the winter apnd spring months also
are used in fishing for salmon and tuna in the sunmer and fall months,
Only a small percent of the boats are used In working the crab fishery
during the summer months. Prior to 1962, otter trawlers working the
shrimp flishery out of Brookings caught the relstively smsll amounts of
bottom fish incldental to the shrimp operations.

50

WY



25. COMMERCIAL FISHING FLEET. - According to records of the port
of Brookings, the 1961 commerciml fishing fleet consisted of 57 local-
1y based boats and about 148 transient vessels. Loaded draft of boats
ranged from 3 to 10 feet,, The average loaded dralt of locelly based
boats working in the crab, salmon, and tuna fishery is sbout 5.9 feet,
whereas the average losded draft of the transient crab, salmon, and
tune fleet is mbout 6.6 feet. The average loaded draft of the otter
trawlers used in the shrimp fishery (and bottom fishery) 1s about 9
feet,

26. DELAY TIME IN MOORING BASIN. - Because of crowded conditions
in the existing mooring basin, delay time, amountling to about one-half
hour per trlp, occurs as each boat must normmally move neighboring
boate in order to tle up or leave the docks.

27. DELAYS AT ENTRANCE. ~ Deepening of the channel to 1k feet
wonld eliminate delays now incurred by fishing craft waiting for favor-
able tides, and would allow these craft to navigate the channel at any
time 1% 1is permissible for a small boet to work the fishing area, In
order to determlne average delay time per trip, s study was made of
the t1dal cycle and of the drafts of boats worklng the different types
of' fisheries, Average drafts of boats were computed from data fur-
nished by the port of Brookings., Percent of time during a day that
adequate depths sre avallable was computed, using as a basis the
existing controlling depth of 6 feet and the average draft of the
fishing boats with an allowance of 2 feet under the keels, The dlffer-
ence in the above percentage and 100 percent then represents the per-
centage of time for a given period that verlious fishing boats would
be unable to navigate the existing Chetco River entrance. The number
of hours of delay time per trip was computed by applying the percent-
age difference to one-fourth of the tidal cyele, 6.4 hours, or about
one=half the average daylight time of -12 hours, assuming that delay
is most likely to occur during the return of the loaded boat. The
following table shows the estimated delay for boats engaged in the
different flsherles.

5



[44

Estimated hours of delay per trip

: H 2 : Percent of ; Percent o
: Number : Average : Required ; time tide : time loade
: of boats : loaded : helght of : exceeded : boats are
Type of ¢ In exist- ¢ draft : tide above : required : unable to
fishing : ing fleet ; (feet) : MUIW (feet) : height : use entran
Local bosts:
Crab }
Salmon) 4o 5.9 1.9 Th 26
Tuna ) ° '
Shrimp ' 12 9.0 5,0 26 Th
Bottom fish 5 9.0 5.0 26 Th
Transient boats:
Salmon)
Tune. ) }ha 6.6 2.6 66 34

oL



28. OPERATING COST OF COMMERCIAL FLEET. - The average operating costs
of commercial fishboats (diesel powered, 30 to 50 feet long) as used in
the crab and salmon fisheries on the Oregon coast, have heen determined to
be about $10 per day for fuel and about $2,700 per year for maintenance of
boat, engine, and gear. For a boat fishing for crab, salmon, and tuna,
the effective season would be about 180 days, 10 hours per day, and the
hourly rate would be as follows:

Gear and maintenance
Fuel, $10/dmy X 180 days

Total s
$4,500/1,800 hours = $2,50/hour

g
Jo
-3
8

%

For otter trawlers working the shrimp and bottom fisheries, the average
costs, based on $15 per day for fuel, yearly malntemsnce for boat, englne,
and gear of $3,500 and an actlve season of 180 days at 10 hours per day,
the hourly rate would be as Follows:

Qear agd ?aintenance $3,500
Fuel, $15/day X 180 days 2,700
Total. 6,200

$6,200/1,800 hours = $3.4k/hour

29. COMMERCIAL FISHING BENEFITS. - Commercial fishing benefits result-
ing from the proposed improvement are summarized in the followlng para-
graphs accordlng to type of fishery. ‘

a. Salmon fishery. - Although the legal flshing season for
Chinook salmon opens in mid-April and the season for silvers ln mid-June,
both contlnuing to the end of October, commercial fishing for these
specles 1in the Brookings aresa is limlted to approximastely 10 weeks of the
year when these apecles are most plentliful. The average salmon troller
will make about 24 trips per season to harvest the avallable catch, allow-
ing for time lost due to storms and repalrs. After the chennel 1s deepened,
the 40 locally based salmon trollers can reduce their deley time walting
for deep water in the entrance by 1.67 hours per trip. The saving from
delay time at the entrance for 40 boats making 24 trips per year, at 1.67
hours per trip and $2.50 per hour, smounts to $4,000 annually,

b. The saving 1o delay time for the salmon fleet to disembark
from the mooring basin after the improvement smounts to; 40 boats X 2L
trips X .5 hour/trip X $2.50 = $1,200 annually.

¢. Construction of the proposed improvement would eliminate de-
lays now incurred by 142 transient salmon trollers while walting for favor-
able tldes to use the existing entrance channel. The benefit due to elimi-
nation of these delays would amount to; 142 boats X 1 trip/year X 2,18
hour/trlp X $2.50 per hour = $770 annually, rounded to $800.

d. The henefit to transient salmon trollers by elimination of de-
lay in leaving the mooring area after the hRarbor improvement, would amount

53

\©5



to: 142 boats X 1 trip/year X .5 hour/trip X $2.50 = $180 annually,
rounded to $200,

e, Total annual benefits to salmon trollers, accruing from the
harbor improvement, would be $6,200.

f. Crab fishery., - Although the legal season for crab opens
1 January and extends through mld-September, the active season for most
crab fishermen lasts about flve months, Jenuary through May. An average
crab boat could make about two trips per week, but allowing for time
loet due to storme and repalrs, 1t will average sbout 32 trips per sea-
son. The benefit to crab fishermen after elimlnating delay at the en=-
trance would be: 4O boats X 32 4rips X 1L.67 hours/trip X $2.50/hour =
$5,340 ennually, rounded to $5,300. )

g. Elimingtion of delay time in leaving the mooring area after
the harbor improvement would yleld a benefit to crab fishermen amounting
to: k40 boats X 32 trips X .5 hour/trip X $2.50/hour, or $1,600 annually,

h. Total apnual benefits to crab Ffishermen would be $6,900.

1. Tuna fishery. - The commercial season for slbacore tuna is
controlled by appearance of the tuna off the southern Oregon cosast
usually in July and August. At this time, boats used in salmon and crab
fishing start working in the tune flshery. The present shallow entrance
and previous lack of a cannery has dlscouraged larger deep-draft tuma
boats from basing at Brooklngs., Tuna caught in southern Oregon waters,
30 to 100 mlles offshore, though occasionally landed at this port are
normally landed at Eureke. A cannery has been established at Brookings.
After the harbor is Improved, landing of tuna is expected to increase,
resulting in greater activity on the fishing grounds with a significant
Increase in annual eatch., According to estimates in the report of the
U. 8. Fish and Wildlife Service (see appendix C), the increased activity
in the tuna fishery should increase the annual catch by an additional
387,500 pounds. At 17 cents per pound to the fishermen at the dock and
allowing 60 percent of this value as a net after deductions for operst.
ing expenses, the annual benefit to tuna fishermen would be $39,525,
rounded to $39,500,

J. Shrimp fishery. - Shrimp beds lylng off the southern Oregon
coast constitute m large, undeveloped resource, whereas bede located in
northern California coastal waters have only been partially developed
under stete regulations. However, both Oregon and California shrimp
grounds have contributed directly to the rapid growth of the shrimp fish-
ery at Brookings. ©Shrimp landed for processing plants at Brookings are
handshelled for the California fresh-shrimp market but, in general,
shrimp landed by Californla boats are trucked to Crescent City or
Eureka processing plants. The active sesson in Oregon normally begins
about 1 April and ends about 31 October. The regulated California
shrimp sesson opens about 1 June and closes after the allowable quota

QY



has been harvested from the shrimp grounds but not later than 31 October,
California hoats, when not allowed to deliver shrimp to Californmia ports,
move to Brooklpgs for as much as four months of the active Oregon seagon.
This condition has stimulated growth of the Brookings-based fleet, which
in 1961 consisted of two locally based boats but by the end of 1962 had
increased to six, with six transient Cmlifornia boats basing at Brookings
for part of the active Oregon sesson, -

k. At present, shrimp boats operating from Brookings harbor have
8. loaded draft of about 9 feet, which causes them to encounter delays at
the shallow entrance bar amounting to about 4.75 hours per trip. 'The har-
bor improvement will ellminate these delays, including delays in the moor-
ing basin, and additlional boats will be attracted to the port of Brookings,
resulting ip greater fishing activity anl an Increased catceh.

1. Economie benefits to filshermen operating from Brookings also
are limited hy dealer-lmposed regulatlons which require fishermen to de-
liver all of their ecatch within 24 hours of netting and to limit their
catch to 1,000 to 3,000 pounds per trip to lnsure the quallty of the shrimp
landed., Because of these stringent dealer-imposed conditions governing the
shrimping operations, combined with the abundance of the resource, 1t is
believed that the net value of the increased catch taken by fishermen after
the harbor ilmprovement would average about 20 percent of the value of
shrimp to fishermen at the dock.

m, Estlmates furnished by the U, 8., Fish and Wildlife Service 1ln-
dicate that the harbor improvement will allow Brookings shrimp fishermen to
take an inereased catch of about 2,485,000 pounds annually. Value of this
catch attributable to the harbor improvement, based cn a price of 9 cents
per pound to the fishermen at the dock, would be: 2,485,000 pounds X 9
cents/pound X 20 percent = $hlt, 720, rounded to $44,TOO annualiy.

n. Bottom fishery. - Prior to 1962, bottom fish landed at Brook-
ings were caught incidentally to the shrimp operations., Since 1962, with
the completion of a new fish-~processlng plant at Brooklngs, flve otter
trawlers have based at Brookings and have worked the bottom fisheries,

0. As Brookings is close to the large Californils fresh~flsh mare
ket and lles adjacent to an undeveloped bottom fishery of large potential,
it 18 believed that harbor improvements at Brookings will encourage a sub-
stantial growth in the otter trawler fleet wlth a substantiel Increase in
annusl catch. As in the shrimp fishery, dealer-imposed limits on specles
and quantlties which can be accepted will keep operating coste high in re-
spect o price reeceived by fishermen, leaving a net benefiif estimated to
be about 20 percent of this price as a benefit attributrble to the harbor
improvement.

p. Estimetes of the U, S. Fish and Wildlife Service indicate

that an increased cateh of 2,867,000 pounds of bottom fish are expected
to be landed at Brookings as a result of harbor improvement., Net economic

\OS



value of the benefit, based on & price of T cents per pound to fishermen
at the dock, would be 2,867,000 pounds X T cents X 20 percent equals
$40,100 annually. -

q. Summary. - Total commercial fishing benefits resulting from
harbor improvement smounts to $137,400 as follows:

Fishery Bepefit
Salmon $6, 200
Crab 6,900
Tuna 39,500
Shrimp 4h, 700
Bottom 40,100

Total 137,400

30. RECREATIONAL BOATING. -~ Although Brookings Harbor is ideally
suifed for use by recreational boats, it is remotely located with respect
to large population’ centers. This factor will limit the recreational
benefits. Records of the Oregon State Marine Board for 1961 show that
there were 133 recrestional boats reglstered from the Brookings area.

Of this number, 7 were considered to be potentially full-time users of
the mooring basin during the boating season. The other 126 boats were

of the outboard type which are trallered to the public launching remp
and, consequently, use the basin intermittently. Records of the U. 8,
Coast Guard for 1961 show that 2,066 sport-trips were made over the Cheteo
bar by the recreational boat fleet. From en analysis of bost-launching
records of the port of Brookings, use of the basin by the traller-boat
fleet can be cooverted to the estlmated equivalent of 17 permanently
based, outboard beoats which would use the baﬁih every day of the 112-day
boating season.

31. With a reduction in the overcrowded condltions of the boat basin
after the harbor is improved, it is belleved that recreational boating
activity will increase. The U. S. Fish and Wildlife report (see appendix
C) estimates that this Iinereamse wlll amount to en average of 11,000 rec-
reational man-dsys per year. It is estimated that an additional fleet
of 10 crulsers and the equivalent of Ll permanently based outboard bosgts
would provide for the estimated incremse in recreational boating days,
assuming that 128 man-deys would be provided by each crulser per season
and 224 man-days by each equivelent permanently based outboard hoaet.

32, The recreatlonal benefits appear to be incldental to improvements
for commercial navigation. The monetary value of this recreational activ-
ity has been evaluated by using the boatowner's net return from deprecl-
ated capital investment in his boat as though 1t were operated for hire,
A summary of the recreational boating bernefits to the owners of the
existing and lncreased fleets, amounting to $9,490, rounded to $9,500,
annuslly, is tabulated below. This benefit would be 50 percent local
and 50 percent general.

56

\Qlo



§—69-0O 988-9¥

LS

H B 5 H : R On
: : H . Percent return i 3 F se
: H : Total : Percent : 2 .
Type : Iength : No. : depre- : :___of ideal : Per- : : Aver-
of : (in : of : clated : : Pres— : : cent : :  age
eraft ;+ feet) : boats : value : Idesl : ent : Fubure : galn : Value : days
Net benefits from existing recreatlonsl fleet:
Outboard  12-20.9 17t  $17,0002 12 85 90 0.60 $100  --
Crulser 21-32 T 42,0003 9 85 90 0.45 190 10
24 59,000 250
Subtotal: $290 - $15 = $275
Net berefits from new boats added to fleet after improvement:
Outboard  12-20.9 W& 44,0002 12 0 9 10.8 4,750  --
3
Cruiser 21-32 10 60,0002 9 0 90 8.1 4,860 10
Sk 104,000 "3_9, 10

Subtotal: $9,610 - $400 = $9,210

Total benefits: $275 + $9,210 = $9,485; rounded to $3,500

Equivalent number of permanently based boats.
Based on average depreciated value of $1,000/boat.
Based on average depreciated value of $6,000/bost.

lwsl rob -

\©1



33, ELIMINATION OF BOAT DAMAGE., - From conversations with local
fishermen it was learned that at least seven commercial fishing craft
have sustalned dsmeges In translting the Chetco entrence chamnel. In-
quiries were sent t¢ last-known addresses of the boatowners. Two
replies were received glving details on thelr demages. Owner of the
boat PISCES stated that repalrs to dsmages of keel and running gear
sustained in early 1961 cost $2,000. Owner of the boat SUNSET stated
he struck a submerged rock pipnacle twlce; the first time in August
1960, suffering demages of $785, and again in July 1962 when damages
amounted to $50. See coptes of replies contained in appendix C.

34, Using the above information, the average smmual cost of boat
damages for the 3-year period 1960 through 1962 amounts to $9U5S.
Assuming that boatowners not reporting cost of repalrs sustalned some
damege, it 1s estimated that, under present channel conditions,
demages to commercial fishing craft would average sbout $1,000 per
year. Improvement of the entrance channel to a depth of 14 feet
would provide adequate depth for the commerclal fishing fleet and
eliminate the possibility of lncurring boat damages through striking
submerged rock plnnacles.,

35. GROUNDINGS. = Although a number of groundings have been re-
-ported by the barge operator in barging lumber from the port of
Brookings in the three years of port operation, only two groundings
have been reported as inflicting costly damages. In 1961 the barge
MASTADON HO. 1 atruck = rock in the entrance channel while being
towed to sea and was subsequently repaired at a cost of $18,000. In
1962 a barge was being maneuvered at the site of the lumber dock
when 1t broke loose, dsmaging several fishing boats, the dock, and
the barge. The improvements considered in this report would have
eliminated all the known cases of groundings or damage suffered in
using the present facllities. Lacking actual data and costs om all
specific damage incurred in the past, 1t will be sssumed that total
damages to date would be $18,000. On this basis, the value of elimi-
nation of grounding damages through comstruction of the improvement 1is
estimated to amount to $6,000 annually.

36, HARBOR OF REFUGE. -

a. The port of Brooklngs, with additional channel depths and
extended north Jetty, would provide inereased use as a harbor of refuge
for fishing craft and coastwlse traffic during perlods of storm, or
when mechenical conditlons might place the vessel in jeopardy. See
appendix C for comment of the U. 5. Coast Guard. Alternate ports that
could provide refuge are Crescent City, Califormia, 21 miles to the
south, and Gold Beach, Oregon, 34 miles to the north.

b. The increased safety this harbor would provide to small

eraft 1s impossible to evaluate accurately in monetary terms. None=~
theless, benefits will accrue from providing an inereased period of

58

\eB



time when the harbor may be used as & refuge vhere vessels in the fishing
fleet and cosstwlise barge traffic could seek protection in time of emer-
gency. It is believed that an annual amount of $5,000 would be a conser-
vative estlmate of such benefits, considering only increased use as z
harbor of refuge. It 1s estimated that 100 percent of the beneflts would
be derlved by commerciml vessels as present depths and Jettles are ade-
quate for recreatlionel craft.

37. SUMMARY OF BENEFITS. - Following ls s summary of benefits as
evaluated in previcus paragraphs:

Item Benefit

Transportation savings:

a. Lumber, 108,500 tons $94,800

b, Plywood, 19,000 tons 16,500

c. Woodehlps, 126,500 tous 23,200
Commerceial fishing 137,400
Recreational boating 9,500
Reduction of damages:

a. Lumber barges 6,000

b. Commercial fish craft 1,000
Harbor of refuge 5,000
TOTAL BENEFLITS 293,400

59

\a4



W©



IN REPLY REFER TO:

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

Office of
Columbia Basin Representative
1002 N. E. Holladay Street
P. U, Box 3861
Portland 8, QOregon

April &, 1962

Colonel Sterling Eisiminger, District Engineer
U. S. Army Engineers, District Portland

628 Pittock Bloek

Portland 5, Oregon

Dear Colonel Eisiminger:
Thank you for your notice (your reference NPPGW-4 of January 26, 1962)
of Notice of Public Hearing on Chetco River, concerning a proposed pro-

ject for the development of a small-boat basin.

The Bureau of Land Management has-jurisdiction-over-high-valued timbex
lands tributary.to. theSChetco Rivef af-follows* NV A7

N =
i el S . {]
(ﬁ;jg;;al Merch. Acreage 4,058 [/ wrftj:“ﬁ
ﬁi“\\‘Total Merch. Volume 'i, fT‘- 159,277 M 'bd. £t 7
Allowable Annual Cut “*. .~ 3.1 MM et

Our Distriet Manager, Boris T. Vladimiroff, at Coos Bay, Oregon, or a
representative of his office, will attend your public hearing.

If Bureau of Land Management lands and resources are involved, our Dis-
trict Manager will want to work cooperatively with your field personnel
in order to protect the interest of the government land under ocur juris-
diction, If the BLM is affected in any way, we will wish to receive
coples of your project review report and any general design mEmorandum
reports that you prepare in the future,

Sincerely yours,

E. J. Palmer
Columbia Basin Representative

ce:

Director 6.06

State Dir, ~ Ore.

Dist. Mgr. - Coos Bay, Ore,

\\\



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
FOREST SERVICE
PACIFIC NORTHWEST REGION

FOST OFFICE BOX 4137
FPORTLAND 8, OREGON . IN REPLY REFER TO

2410

October 2, 1962

Mr. B. E, Wilcox, Chief
Engineering Division
Corps of Engineexs

6£28 Pittock Block
Fortland 5, Oregon

Dear Mr. Wilcox:

In reply to your letter of September 20, the Siskiyou National Forest
is now one working circle, Timber management plans are no longer pre~
pared for individual unite such as the Chetco. For administrative
purposes the working ¢ircle is divided into blocks, The Chetco Ranger
Diatrict is one block of the Siskiyou Working Circle, Separate timber
management plans are not prepared for each block. Forcy-five (45)
million board feet from the total Siskiyou annual allowable cut has been
assigned to the Chetco Ranger District, This allowable cut may be
administratively adjusted by the Forest Supervisor when such change is
juetified, but no changes other than minor adjustments are contemplated
at present,

The Siskiyou timber management plan was approved on August 22, 1962,
Pending a few minoxr corrections, we have not prepared duplicate coples
of this plan and will probably not have this job completed until late
this year. In the meantime, if you wish to verifax or otherwise dupli-
cate portions of the plan for your report, arrangements may be made
with the Division of Timber Menagement.

Negatives of two inch to the mile type maps by U,5.G.S. quadrangles are
filed in the Division of Engineering., It is suggested that you call

Mr., Victor Flach (BE 4-8211, Ext. 620) or Mr., Chaxles Gowan (BE 4-8211,
Ext, 621) for information on procedure for requisitioning desired copies.
Either of these men can probably furnish information on the Chetco,
Galice, and Gold Beach Ranger District boundaries. The best information
on & map of timber access roads can also be obtained through Mr., Flach
or Mr, Gowan,

Sincerely yours,

y

WALTER H, LUND
Assistant Regional Forester

62

\y2



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE TIN REPLY neriz iro
FOREST SERVICE

PACIFIC NORTHWEST REGION
I Octobexr 5, 1962

PORTLAND B, OREGON

Mr, B, E. Wilcox, Chief
Engineering Division
Corps of Engineers

628 Pittock RBlock
Portland 5, COvegon

Dear Mr, Wilcox:

Reference 18 made to our letter of October 2, The portion
of the Siskiyou N.F. allowable cut assigned to the Chetco
Ranger District is 38 MM board feet, amnd not 45 MM board
feet as given to you. The 45 MM board feet is the volume
prior to adjustment, Flease note the change,

Sincerely yourxs,

Y Lavd

WALTER R, LUND
Asaistmnt Reglonal Forester

63

\\3



UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE
BUREAU OF SPORT FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE

FEDERAL BUILDING
1002 N, E, HOLLADAY STREET
F. O, BOX 3737
PORTLAND 8, OREGON

ADDRESS ONLY THE
REGIONAL DIRECTOR

(1-RB)

July 24, 1963

District Engineer Your file: NPPEN=-PR-7
Portland Dlstrict, Corps of Eugineers .

628 Pittock Block

Portland 5, Oregon

Dear Sir:

This is our Bureau's report on effects your praposed navigation improve~
ments at the mouth of the Chetco River, Oregon, would have on fish and
wildlife resources. The report has heen prepared under the authority and
in accordance with the provisions of the Fish and Wildlife Coordination
Act (48 Stat, 401, as amended; 16 U.5,C, 661 et seq.), and is based on data
furnished us by your letter of January 28, 1963,

Personnal of Oregon State Game Commission and Fish Commission of Oregon,
as well as interested local individuals, furnished information used in
this study, Oregon State Game Commission and Fish Commission of Oregon
have reviewed and endorsed this veport, as indicated in the attached
copies of letters from Director P, W, Schneider, dated June 21, 1963,
and Director Robart W. Schoning, dated May 31, 1963, We agree with
Director Schneider’s comment concerning access by fishermen and Recom-
mendatlion No. 2 has been revised accordingly., The Bureau of Commercial
Fisheries has reviewed this report and concurs in our findings.

Project Area and Description., The Chetco River empties into the Pacific
Ocean, 1ts mouth 18 located in Curry County, Oregon, about: 6 9ilea north-
west of the California border. Brookings, population 2 637, =/ is located
near the river's mouth immediately adjacent to the proposed navigation
improvement area, Chetco River is considered to be one of the most
-undeveloped natural areas in Oregon. It drains a section of the Coast
Range that is largely inaccessible, and is relatively isclated from popu-
lation centers, Recent relocation of U.S. Highway 101 in the vicinity

L? 1960 Federal census,

W



has improved accesaibility of this coastal area. Principal induatries in
the area are lumbering, commercial fishing, and catering to sport fisher-
men and tourista. Chetco River flows into Chetco Cove, the placid waters
of which are particularly attractive to sport fishermen.

Your agency completed construction of two rock jetties at the river's
mouth in 1957, and removed rock pinnacles from the entrancz channel during
1958~1959, Placement of necessary range markers, range lights, buoys, and
a harbor entrance light was accomplished by the U.S. Coast Guard, Local
interests constructed a paved launching ramp and a basin for mooring
commercial and sport fishing boats, and installed stationary and floating
wharves, moorage piling, & camping and parking area, and other facilities,
The area is known ag the Port of Brookings.

Proposed navigation improvements include: (1) construction of a 400-foot
extension to the North jetty and a breakwater 1,800 feet Iin length; (2)
provision of an entrance channel 14 feet in dapth and 120 feet in width;
(3) proviasion of a barge turning basin 300 feet by 700 feet and 14 fest
in depth at mean lower low water; and {4) a amall boat access channel
100 feet in width by 12 feet in depth at mean lower low water, Local
interests would provide a small boat basin 12 feet in depth inside the
breakwater. In addition to dredging sand, gravel, and silt, excavation
of approximately 3,000 cubic yards of rock would be necessary, Spoil
and excavated material would be deposited on land adjacent to or near
the basin, at a location that would preclude return of such material to
the river.

i’

FISH

Hithout the Project

Snort Fishing. Steelhead and searun cutthroat trout, chinook and cohe
saimon, and many species of bottom fishes attract fishermen to the mouth
of the Chetco River. The Oregon State Game Commission stocks ahout
3,000 cutthroat and 6,000 rainbow trout annually in the river, and has
also stocked chinook and echo salmon, Razor clams and some crabs are
harvested on nearby sand beaches,

Sport fishing has increased rapidly in the area during recent years,
particularly for chinook salmon and bottom fishes, but angling pressure

is still moderate compared to most other coastal areas. TFishing from the
South jetty has been very popular since its construction, but the North
jetty, being less accessible, has received little angler use, Full
angling potential of the area is yet to be realized, Data collected by
the U,S. Coast Guard indicate that 2,066 sport fishing boats entered Chetco
Cove from the mouth of the river in 1962, During the same period, 103
charter boat trips were made from the port. The eight small rental boats
available ave fully used during most of the tourist season.

65

o



Without navigation improvements, all sport fishing ia expected to incréease
. in intensity to a certain extent, particularly jetty fishing and ocean
fishing for bottom flshes. Ocean fishing and river fishing for resident
and anadromous fishes are also expected to increase but to a lesser degres,

Commevcial Fishing, Commercial fish landings at the mouth of the Chetco

ver increased slowly during the first 6 years of the last decade, hut
landings accelerated rapidly after proviasion of navigation improvements
and construction of boat docking and fish processing facilities during
the period 1957-1859. In 1952, the only recorded landings consisted of
2,341 pounds of salmon, In 1957, 14,726 pounds of salmen and 8,325 pounds
of crab were landed. Table 1 shows commercial landings at the Port of
Brookings in 1961, the latest year for which complete statistics are
available, The landing® of tuna, salmon,aand bottom fishes are above
averaga and those of shrinmp and cradb are below average.

Table 1, Commercizl fish landings at the Port of Broukings in 1961,

Specles Waight of landings
(pounds)
Bottom fishes 1/ 37,000
Tuna : 136,259
Chinocok salmon B7h,563
Coho Balmon 116,247
Crab 1,166,425
Shrimp 257,263

17 Petrale, rex, Dover, and English sole, starry flounder, rockfish,
lingcod.

Coast Guard records indicate that 60 commercial craft vegularly use port
facilities. This is probably the maxi{mum use obtainable with present
improvements, '

With the Project

Sport Fishing. Extension of the North jaetty and construction of the
proposed breakwater would provide potentially usable fishing space on the
North jetty and also afford protection from wave action for fisherman
using the South jetty and those entering or leaving the port by boat,
Increasing the mooring and launching facilitles would also result in
increased use of the area by sport fishermen (table 2),

66

\Wo



Table 2, Projected angler-day use, without and with the project,

Type of Without the With the

fishing project-days project-~days
Jetty 11,400 14,900
Private Boat 13,300 24,300
Charter Boat 2,100 2,100
Rental Boat 4,400 o,u00

Estimated annual increase in fisherman use of lowermost Chetco River and
adjacent ocean waters attributable to proposed navigation and harbor
improvements is estimated to be 14,500 angler~days, valued at $5%,0C0,
This value would not accrue without provision of adequate public access.

Commercial Fishing., Use of the Port of Brookings by commercial fishermen
is expected to increase considerably with proposed navigation and harbor
improvements, Since salmon and crab are provably harvested at near
maximum sustained harvest rate now, increases in landings of these spacies
would mostly be catches that would otherwise be landed at some other port,
not actual inereases in total production., Stecks of tuna, shrimp, and
bottom fishes are, however, capable of greater exploitation and actual
net increases in harvest would probably come from these or other species
relatively little exploited at the present time, Table 3 presents
estimated average annual increases In commercial catch and value anti-
cipated dupring project life.

Table 3. Estimated average annual increase in commercial catch and
total value with the project
Increase in catch
Species (pouids) Value

Bottom fishes 2,867,000 $201,000
Tuna 387,500 71,500
Chinook salmon 7,700 4,400
Coho salmon 1,700 €00
Crab 17,900 5,700
Shrimp 2,485,900 223,600

Total $512,800

Rounded ($513,600)

47



WILDLIFE

The proposed navigation and harbor improvements are expected to have no
appreciable effect on wildlife resources of the area, '

DISCUSSICN

Generally, the fisneries of the Brookings-Chetco River area are capable
of much greater expleitation than now occurs. With proposed navigation
improvements and harbor developments, substantial benefits would accrue
to both sport and commercial fishing during project life. The value of
sport fishing 1s based on use with the project and estimated net value
per day of fishing, and presupposes that public access to jetties be
continued and launching and mooring Facilities for sport fishing boats

be provided in sufficiont quantity to meet the demand. Value of the
commercial fishery is estimated gross walue of the catch to the fishermen,

Blasting of rock during the geasons of the year when anadvomous fish
are ascending or descending the river could cause large losses of adult
and juvenile migrant fish, If blasting werae confined to the period
June 15 to July 15, when the least number of anadromous fish are present
in the project area, losses from blasting would be minopr.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended: . :

1. That the report of the District Engineer, Corps of Engineers,
include conservation and development of fish and wildlife resocurces
among the purposes fox which Chetco River navigaticn improvement project
is authorized,

2. That public use of the North jetty extension and breakwater
for sport fishing be permitted, except during periods when such use
would interfere with project operation or public safety. Project con-
structed access or work roads to the Morth jetty should remain available
for vehicular traffic to the landward end of the jetty,and any work road
or berm constructed on the jetty should remain available for pedestrian
travel for the convenience of fisharmen. :

\8



3.

That blasting be confined to the period between June 15 and

July 15 to avoid killing anadromous fishes,

Please advise our Bureau of any change in engineering plans.

Sincerely yours,

Richard B. criffich
Acting Beglounal Director -

Attachments

Copies (10)

Distribution:

(2)
(4)
(4)
(4)
(1)
(1)
(3)
(8)
(1)
(2)
(1)
(1)
(1)

Division Engineer, Corps of Engineers, Portland, Oregon
Fish Commission of Opregon, Portland, Oregon

Oregon State Game Commission, Portland, Oregon

Public Health Service, Portland, Oregon

Pacific Northwest Field Committee, Portland, Oregon
National Park Service, Portland, Oregon

Director, Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife, Washington, D. C,-

Bureau of Commercia) Fisheries, Portland, Oregon

River Basin Studies, Boise Area Office, Boise, Idaho

River Basin Studies, Portland Area Office, Portland, Oregon

River Basin Studies, Sacramento Area Office, Sacvamento, California
River Bagin Studies, Spokana Area Offica, Spokane, Washington

River Basin Studies, Kalispell Field Office, Kalispell, Montana

69

\4



-
L] &W‘ﬁf,

FPROPOSED SMALL BOAT

101}
ACCESS CHANNEL
>
£
PROPOSED BREAKWATER _j"\ ;
:,,_} ;
i /i
s
II’P.’ i
' Il |
(AT} x\' & f-’/ ’l { |

-

s

—— ——

%\

r\

ez
=1
=
1
==

0w BN G
BRODKINGS \ | ‘\‘} \\ | \
. e 1Y
I t 1
= m = En.. ‘\}“.\ [ “\-
\”—’] S AR
24
/ /
/ /f
/
/7
/ : // /
e ‘ f e ;‘; /
[ s r-‘:.- / /
Y/
f— / 7
ey
7 'l'/ /
PROPOSED /A
JETTY EXTENSION Y /'.;:",/ P § T
.“a"/ / P
(i #/ /
(N //
Ir‘h"eo // /!
.
- Ca
c-,p/ Lo
Pl

IMPROVEMENT
PROJEGT
L 1L CHETGD RIVER
QAELLON
REapTED TFQU_LGar] AF urulERg UR} WAT (B}

AROPOSED CNANNEL

F] Rivar Milas from Mowlh

[
ELUIV LR TR )

VICINITY MAP

PROPGSED
SMALL BOAT BASIN

[lar},

PROPOSED
BARGE TURNING BASIN

LEGEND

-~ MALLW Plane

kY zad sudaff $CAn
Speriu of Ivoml

ol
DISNIAILY N0 wILBLIFL
GENERAL MAP
NAVIGATION

gNITLD STEFLS pLIRAIMful g1 VAT (MPINER

70



AERMAN P, MEIRRJURBEN, CHAIRMAN, BRAVERTON

it e g Wm J‘m "u ol

LEONARD M. HALL. CHARLEETON
STATE OF OREGON
FISH COMMISSION OF OREGON
BT BYATK OFFICK MLDG., (400 B, W, BTH AVENUK

PORTLAND

e— A

Moy 31, 1963

re. Irving Be. Hazeltine

Acting Regicnal Supervisor

River Dasin Stwdles

Buvreau of Sport Fisheries and Wilclife
Pa(s Box 3737

Portland 8, Oregon

Dear lire HNazeltine:

Your report on the effects the proposed navigation lmprove-
ments at the mouth of Cheteco River would have on fish and wild-
life resources has been reviewed by our staff.

e faeﬂ that your recommendation to confine any required
rock blasting to the period June 15 to July 15 will keep losses
to the fishery resources tc a minimume Wo concur with the re-
port in general, and the recommendations therein. We cannot
substantiate or refute your specific fipures since no analysis of
datae pertaining to economic valuss has been made by this agency.

The opporlunity lc review and comment on your draft report
is appreciated.

Sincerely,

Robosisl Lebkaronm,

NUBERT Y. SGHONING}
STATYE TISHERTES DIRECTOR

cc: Oregon Game Commilssion
Columbia Fisheriés Irogran Cffice
Sams

71

12\



RoMin E rowlau Chairman %

Portlan g
John P, Amacher, Winchester I||‘
Tallant Greenough, Coquille .

Wayne E. Phillipa, Baker ANIAR 'Y B o I
Joseph W. Smith, Klamath Faila E?f‘L ] " !E”'l
Pt

[} 'I 0

-

‘I

STATE OF OREGON

OREGON STATE GAME COMMISSION

V834 S, W. ALDER STREET
P, O, ®OX 3501

PORTLAND 8

June 21, 1963

Regional Director

U, S, Fish and Wildlife Service
Bureau of Sport Fisherles and Wildlife
Box 3737

Portland 8, Oregon

Deaxr Six:

I have reviewad your preliminary draft of a proposed report to
the Corps of Engineera on the proposed navigation improvemente

at the mouth of the Chetco River and am in subatantial agreement
with this report as written. I believe your Reconmendation No, 2,
however, should include the additional provision that any work

or access roads to the north jetty should remain available for
vehicular traffic to the landward end of tha jetty and that any
work road or berm which may be constructed on the jetty remain
available for pedestxisn travel for the convenience of anglars.

1 appreciate this opportunity to review your repert in thia
preliminary form and to submit these comments to you.

Sincerely youra.

N
: LA / M
K’ /// /,/ A
Sodaele )
W. Schneider
Director

cct Fish Commission of Oregon

72

V2L



UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

ADDWMESS MEPLY TS
COMMANDER

1#1 COABT GUARD DISTRICT
018 FECOND AVINOK
SEATTLE 4, WASH.

Go/89
Ser, oan-1113

Froms Commander, 13th Coast Guard District
Tos District Engineer, Corps of Engineers, U. S. Army, Portland, Oregon

Subjs Chetco River, Oregon; harbor improvements
Refs  (a) Your ltr dtd % Maxch 1963, file NPPEN-PR-4

1. Reference (a) requested this office advise the estimated cost of
construction and annual maintenance of any aids to navigation involved
in subject project. We would propose tos

a. Establish electric gong fog signal at site of present Chetco
River Entrance Light } (LL 793/868), This signal would be controlled
from shore.

b. Establish flashing green light at southerly end of proposed
" 1800 foot breakwater at small boat hasin.

¢« Relocate Chetco River Entrance Range Front (LL 791/866) structure.
Thls work would cost approximately $15,000,00. Increase in annual mainten-
ance would be $860,00,

2. The improvement of Chetco Rilver entrance would definitely enhance
rescue operations in the area. As a result of the proposed improvement,
it 1s anticipated that rescue ¢raft could exit and enter the harbor under
more adverse wind and sea conditions, thereby providing greater service to
the boating public in cases of distress or imminent peril,

3. The enlargement of the boat basin, in assoclatlon with the increased
depth and jetty extension would provide increased facilitles for vessels
required to take refuge during storms or make a safe harbor due to

mechanlcal or other conditions which might place the vessel in jeopardy.

« CA
By direction

N

46-886 O-65-6 73

125



]

|

Rollin E. Bowles, Chairman
Poriand

John P, Amacher, Winchesis:

Tallapt Greenough, Coquille .

Wayne E. Phillipa, Baker

Jomeph W, Smith, Klamath Falls

STATE OF OREGON
OREGON STATE GAME COMMISSION

1034 8. W. ALDER STREET
P. O. BOX 4138

PORTLAND 8

Maxch 19, 1963

District Engineer

Fortland Diatrict

U, 8, Army Corps of Engineers
628 Pittock Block

Portland 5, Oregon

Danx Six:

Refersnce is made to Public Notice NPPEN.PR.7 dated 28 January 1963 in
which you invite our comments on your review of proposed navigation
improvements at the mouth of the Chetco River, -

Important xuns of anadromous fish use the Chetco River and oux chief
concern is with the timing of the project work schadule so as to do the
least possitble damage to upstream runs of adults and to downstresm migrating
young fish. The maximum range of time in which we expesct minimun damage

to anadromous fish populations 1s from June 1 to September 1; however,

it would be desirable if blasting were restricted to a period between

June 15 and July 15.

Sports fishing within the Chetco harbor is important for bottom fish and
salmon. Up to 50 anglers per day fish for bottom fish in the lower
harbor area from the banks, and later in the sunmar some salmon ars also
taken by bank anglers.

A charter service for anglers seeking salmon or bottom fish in the ocean
outside the harbox is located at the Chetco Basin, The operator presently
fishes two boats capable of handling 33 anglers per trip.

The Chetco bar and the area outside remains relatively calm when most
other Oregon cosstal ports are adversely affected by strong northwesterly
sumer winds, We baliave that the proposed harbor improvements, increased
popularity of the ocean fishery for both salmon snd bottom fish and the

74

PR



comparatively calm ocean conditions outside the Chetco harbor will lead
to & conaiderable imcressa in the sport fishexy of the area.

Sincerely yours,

P j/ﬂ/m
’t "c S¢ ider
Directex

cet Fish Commission of Oregon .
U, S, Fish and Wildlife Sarvice, Bureau of Sport Fishsries
and Wildlife
U,.8, Fish and Wildlife Service, Bureau of Commercisl Fisharies

7

(WA



COMMIEN|ONERE “‘
HENMAN P, MEICRJURGEN, CHAIANAR, MEAYRATON ||
KOW, O, HUFFECHMIDT, FPORTLAND

LEOMAND N. HALL, CHARLESTGR 1””

STATE OF OREGON
FISH COMMISSION OF OREGON
507 ATATE QFFIGE WLDQ., 1400 W. W, ETH AVENUK

PORTLAND 1

April 1, 1963

Mr, Bo El “ilcox, Ghief
Engineering Division

Vs S. Army Corps of Englnears
628 Plttook Block

Portland 5, Oregon

pDaar Mr. Wilcox:

Reference is mads to your laetter of January 28, 1963 requesting a
statement from this agency regarding effects the propoasd navigation
improvements al the mouth of Chetco River would have on the lncreased
harvest of ceesn-caught fish., Your letter waa acknowledged by our
corrsapondence of Februmry 5, 1963. You requeated that our commenta he
broken down in%o crab, ahrimp, tuna, salmon, and bottom f{ish.

The overall effect of harbor improvement on the crab and shrimp
industries would, in large part, depemd on future regulations adopted
by California and Oregon, A% the present time, a lack of uniformity in
the regulations of the two atates results in Increagsd landiugs at
Brookings during certain parta of the seamons. If this aitwition should
continue, improved harbor conditions would permit more boats to fish
out of Breokingas during these timea, since the boat basin ia often
filled to capaclty. Thia, of course, would mean increased landings. On
the other hand, adjustment of the regulations could reduce the fleet
at Brookings and also the landings, Improvement of the harbor entrance
would permit increased usage by some of the larger boats under the
prasent regulsations,

There is scme queation that tuna landings would inorease signifi-
ecantly. A prineipel deterrent to this would be tha distance from the
processing centers presently located in Astorim and Eureka, whioch would
be expected to reduce the intensity of tuna fishing effort in the Brockings
area,

We would expect the landings of both salmon and bottom f£ish to ilncreass,
The ralatively high sconomioc valus of palmon allows this product to he
hauled a relatively long distance for processing and marketing., Bottom
fish are presently processsd in a plant located at Brookings, This operation
could be expanded to asoommodate an increased catoh.

76

DAV,



Wo belisve that under present regulations the improvement of Brookings
harbor would increase the landings of shelifish., If ssasons or
regulations are altered to coincide in the two states, these landinga
oould decreass,

Market conditions and the abundance of fish and shellfish will
affect all of the landings,

In regard to timing of the project construotion achedule to reduce
hazards to upstream and downstream migrant salmonids, we concur with the
March 19, 1963 lettsr of the Oregon Game Commission which indicates a
period qQf leaser potemtial damage extending from June 1 to September 15,
and a period of minimum damage from June 15 to July 15. We recommend
that blasting be accomplished during the latter period. This, of courss,
can ba discussed further at the time of application to this agency for a
blaating permit.

Sincerely,

W%,&Mm
ROBERT W. SCHONING

STATE FISHERIES DIRECTOR

go: Commissioners

‘2



STATEMENT
of
Brookings Plywood Corporation
In Support Of
Port Iaprovements to Chetco Rive, Oregon

April ), 1962

My name is Jack Baker and I am Sawmill Superintendent
of the Bruokings Plywood Corporation. Our organization employs
nearly 40O people, of which about 250 are shareholders in coopers-
tive ownership,

We appear here in support of what we underatand will be
Pederslly sponsored improvements to our harbor at the mouth of
the Chetco River, It is our understanding that these improved
port facilities can in turn attract more.adequate water carriex
servyice froﬁ the Brookings harbor, -

Brookings Plywood Corporation produces 90 million feet
of plywood on a 3/8" basis and approximately 20 million board
feet of lumber per year, Our operations require approximately
42 million feet of logs per year to sustain these productions,

Although our plywood is sold on s nationwide basis,
better than 40X is currently going into California, With the
exception of a small amount of cargo shipment to Haweii out of
Crescent City, the remaining nearly 404 is shipped by rail from
Arcata, California, Shipment of the },0f into California is split

78

\ 25



about 28% by rail or buyerts tiuck from Arcata, and 12¢ by our own
trucks direct to the purchaser, principally in the San Francisco
Bay area, All trucking to railhead is by our own trucks, No
attempt has yet been made to move plywood by barge to Cslifornia
ports, We understand that Sause Bros., in collsboration with U, §,
Piywood, has a covered, conveyorized barge in the design stage,
intended for the shipment of plywood from Gold Beach to the
California market, We too are very much interested in the develop-
ment of such a vessel as Sause Bros, has informed us that, when
and if built, service will also be available out of Brookings at
rates very competitive with rail,

Nearly 60% of our lumber production now moves to the
Southern California Ports of Los Angeles, Port Hueneme and San
Diego by water carrier, About 50% is shipped through our owii Port
of Brookings while the remmining 10f is shipped vis Crescent City,
Another 10f also has moved by water, from Crescent City to the San
PFrancisco Bay area, The local dock is 1 1/2 miles from our mill
but it is some 27 or 28 miles to the docks at Crescent City., We
figure our trucking cost st $2,00 per thousand board feet to
Crescent City wheress it is only $.75 per thousand feet to the
Brookings dock, Another 20% of our lumber is shipped to the San
Francisco Bay area by truck, about half by our trucks and half by
customers? txucks, We have for some time found it increasingly
difficult to compete in the Sen Prancisco Bay area due to the
substantially lower freight costs (by rail) available to mills in

Central and Southern Oregon and Northerm California,

\24



We realize the local dock has now been opened tc all
carriers, which should eliminate some of the extra cartage to
Crescent City. However the present depth of the channel into qur
harbor still limits the type of vessel which can use our port,
Improved harbor facilitdes should attract the type and frequency
of water carrier service which would assist local shippers in
their efforts to render better service to customers and at the
same time rcducg shipping costs.

Aganin, due to transportation problems, plants in our
ares have been unable to utilize our mill wastes for the manufac-
ture of wood chips, Industry experts now estimate that within
another two or three years our potential production of chips will
be required by the pulp industry. When this market does become
available it is a virtual certainty that the chips will have to
be shipped by water carriers, The potentisl production of wood
chips by our operation has been estimated at 20,000 units per year,

We respectfully request favorable action on the Poxt of
Brookings! request for improvements to our local harbor, not only
for the help it should give our industry, but also for its assistance
to the other users of the facility, our commercisl and sports

fishetmen,

Q%M AL, [Tkt

Jack D, Baker
Sawnill Superintendent
BROOKINGS FLIWOOD CORPCORATION

PV



STATEMENT
of

MR, 8, A. AGNEW

In Support of

PORT IMPROVEMENTS TO CHETCO RIVER, OREGON

April 18, 1962

My name is C. D. Cunningham, member of the firm of Cunningham
& Cunningham, Attorneys at Law, Centralia, Washington, and I am
presenting this statement in behalf of S. A, AGNEW, an extensive
timber owner in Southwestern Oregon.

Mr. Agnew's holdings in Curry County consist of approximately
42,000 acres of land, 98% of which is timbered. The bulk of the
acreage lies in the region between Gold Beach, Oregon and the southern
boundary of the county. Practically all of this volume: will move
into Brookings, Oregon. If logging operations are toc be conducted
upon a sustained yield hasils these lands could produce approximately

a minimum of 100,000,000 feet of logs each year, barring any

catastrophe, of course. It is estimated that approximately 50%
of this timber will be peeler logs, which are used to manufacture

veneer and plywood,

\B\



Mr. Agnew is the owner of two Oregon Coast Veneer Plants
in the Brookings area. The Brookings Division Piant is8 located
just a few miles north of the city limits of Brookings; the Harbor
Division Plant is located lers than & mile f£rom the lumber dock
on the Chetco River. He 18 alsé the owner of a stud mill located
near the Brookings Division Plant.

At the present time our annual productions approximate
30 million feet of logs, 72 million feet of 1/10 veneer, and 4
miilion feet of studs.

while we nbw produce approximately 72 million feet of veneer
in our two plants, the maximum production capaclty of these two
plants is 100 million feet per year. &Any increase in the production
capacity of veneer would, of course, mean an increase in our pro-
duction of studs,

We utilize approximately one-half of the logs we cut
each year in our own plants and sell éhe oéher half, primarily to
local wmills. Our present annual log production should be considered
as preliminary only since we are now doing only selective logging;
that 1s the clearing of rights of way, cutting out overripe and bug
infested timbex, and the like. During the past few years we have
built pome 35 miles of roads into our own tiwber. When this road
aystem is tied into the 48 mile loop road now being buillt jointly by
Oregon Coast Veneer and the Bureau of Land Management (U.S. Department

of Interior) in the Pistol River region of southern Curry County,

V3L



1t -will opeﬂ up some 1 1/2 to 2 billion feet of timber to the
Brooﬁings area. This jointly built road will not only make it
possible to move these logs into Brookings, it will also allow
greater loads per truck, since the trucks will not have to travel the
public highways.

The potentials for the outhound movements on barges from our
holdings in the Brookings region are: veneer, studs, logs and wood
chips. As stated, our minimum annual production of veneer i1 72
million feet. We have moved this veneer to both Grants Pass and
Coguille, Oregon, on trucks. That which is trucked to Coguille is
relvaded there onto rail ecarxe for rail movement norto to Tillamook.

In approximately one month of this year, January, 50 carloads
were trucked to Coguille and reloaded to rail for Tillamook. Ourx
cogt of this trucking and reloading is $200 per carload of 200,000
feet 1/10 veneer. This measure converted to weight on the basis of
400 pounds per 1,000 feet equals a cost of $5.00 per ton. fThe rail
costs from Coquille to Tillamook are costs borne by the consignee and
are over and above our trucking costs. We feel that this combination
truck and rail rate from Brookings to Tillamook cou1d £e substantially
lower i1f barge transportation for this type of movement is available.
In addition, a barging operation would agsist us materlally in
alleviating the problems we've faced during the annual seasonal
shortages of rail cars.

Our studs which now move by truck to Crescent City could

also be a potential business for barges serving Brookings. We could

\TH



also move logs out on barges, the volume depending, of course, on
markets and types required in areas served by barges.

Perhaps the last, but the most significant potential for a
harging operation out of Brookings 1s in the movement of wood chips,
The amount of wood £ibre going to waste in our burners 1is tragic.
Without rail service being available'to ug, and the high cost of
trucking chips to existing pulp mills, we have no alternative at
present. However, the construction of new pulp mills on tidewater in
Callfornia and Oregon ports makes a low—cost barge movement of
chips from Brookings practical and probable. We could convey chips
direct from our Harhor Plant to a barge, a storage bin, or stockpile
on the dock by a blower system. The chips from the Brookings plant
would have to be trucked to the dock storage. |

With the large volume of standing timber that we have,
and the critical need to prach:ice forest utilization and conservation
to provide timber for the future, it is going to become an absolute
necessity that there be no more waste of wood products.

Mr. Agnew not only supports the port improvements being
requested for the Chetco River to make better barge service availlable,
he also urges that these improvements be made as soon as possible
so that the complete utilization of the timber resources of this area

can be expedited.

[2H



SOUTH. COAST LUMBER CO. OREG. LTD.

P, O, BOX 1038 BROOKINGS, OREGON PHONE B871

1
LUMBLA FRODUCTS,

STATEMENT
of
C. L. Fallert, Co-owner
SOUTH COAST LUMBER CO, OREG. LTD,
In Support of
Port Improvements to Chetco River, Oregon

April 18, 1962

My name is C. L. Fallert, I am co-owner of the Sath
Coast Lumber Co. Oreg. Ltd. We operate a sawmill located
three miles north of the Chetco River Port facilities at
Brookings, OQOur total employment in the sawmill and affili-
ated companies is about 200. We manufacture about 60
million board feet of lumber per year during normal operations.
Qur production capacity is greater then this amount, We
can produce a greater volume on an overtime or extra shift
basis when the market and price warrants the increased
production,

Our annual log requirement is approximately 40 million
feet which we acquire through purchase from both private
and public timberlands. In 1961 practically our entirc log
supply came from our own timber holdings in the Big Flat
area of Del Norte County, Californim, approximately 55 miles
south of our mill,

Our production of 60 million board feet of lumber per
year could be shipped by water carriers serving the Brookings
port, When we began mill operations in Brookings some 13 years
ago, we shipped all of our production by truck to goints in
California and Nevada. When the port at Crescent City,
California opened up to Coastwise shippers in the early 50's,
we trucked over 80% of our annual volume there and loaded it
on Coastwise vessels. In early 1960, when barges started a
service out of Brookings, we started shipping from this port.

)



- SOUTH COAST LUMBER CO. OREG. LTD.

P, O, BOX 1038 RRAOOKINGS, CREGON PHONE 5871

The largest percentage of the lumber we produce is
sold in the Southern California port aream of San Diego
and Los Angeles; and some in Port Hueneme. All of theme
points could be served directly by barge from Brookingm
if facilities were adequate. In addition, we truck 10 to
12 million feet a year into the San Francisco Bay area.

If this business could be handled by barge from Brookings,
it would mean quite a mizeable savings to us. Vhat little
lumber we ship hy rail is trucked to the nearest railroad
at Arcata, California; 107 miles south of Brookings for
loading to rail cars. VWe cannot compete in the rail markets
due to this excemssive costi of hauling to rail, which means
that efficient and frequent water carrier service is a
necessity for the local mills to survive.

At the presént, we do not mapufacture wood chips,
We burn the slab left-overs, which are the residue after
the lumber is cut from the log. Bowever, we are very
anxious to get imto the chipping business and we plan to
do Bo if good port facilities could be afforded the area,
and the markets for our chips are available and the
freight costs make it economically feasible. Ve estimate
that under normal operating conditions we could produce
about 100 unite of chips per day, which means our annual
volume would be about 25 thousand units per year.

With theé two new pulp mills pianned for Humboldt Bay,
Californin, and one for Gardiner, Oregon; also: the potential
markets of chips that could bhe shipped to Antioch, California,
the chip market will be much more favorable in the future than
it has been in the past. With the ecomomic need for better
utilization of wood by-products, we will have to find a way to
ship our residue out for use, and water transportation is the
mogt economical way,

The need to get every ceat of return possible ocut of
every log, especially in these days of depressed prices in
the domestic lumber market and particularily so since the
Caa:gtun lumber has started to invade the Southern California
mayr .

V3o



SOUTH COAST LUMBER CO. OREG. LTD.

. O. BOX 1038 BROOKINGS, OREGON PHONE Ba71

The above stated facts clearly indicate that we
are in dire need of an adequate port and shipping
facilities to guarantee continuous and rellable shipping
schedules out of the Port of Broockings.

¢. L, Fallert

87

&)



THOMPSON BROS. LUMBER CO.

Fhene 3031
mmoum

TG

of
Welten Thompaon, (o-ounea
Thompgon Buos, Limbea (ompany
h Suppont of
Pont Jmprovements 1o (hetco Riven, Onegon
Aonil 18, 1962

My name is Walter Thampson, J am (o~ouner of the Thompeon Lok, Limber,
(ompany located in Harbon, Onegon, about one-half mile south of the pont's
limber. dock on the (retco River,

We cut about 6 million feet of lLumber a yean, a.ao,ew.chu soddd in

the Southean (alifoanin poat areas of Los Angeles and Pont fluename, We wie
about 5 million feet of logs a yean to maintain our lumber productlen,

Since the port has been opesating hene at frookings we have shipped
approximately seventy-five pen cent of our production over the dock.

We would, hovever, prefer o ahip all of oun stock out ef Brookings
because of the teanilic savings in iauck hauling. We estimate oun savings in
hauling o be between $1.25 and §1, 50 per thousand, which would represent an
anrual aavings of between §7, 500 and §9,000. In addition 4o the cost saving,
there L4 the added advaniage of better and easien condrol of atoch, being .in
your aun backyond,

Jmprovements in the Buookings port, auch ae a deeper chamel and a mone
paotected entaance, would make possible the use of largern banges and should
make its use atiractive 2o edher camnlers and theneby broaden our markets

and outlets, F

lalien Thempson

e



SAUSKE BROS.

T—— OCEAN TOWING C®,, INC.

MANAGING OFFICH TERMINAL SALES BLOG., PORTLARD, OREGON
CAME ADDRESS: SIP'CO OPERATING OFFICES: CRESCENT CITY AND SAN PEDRO, CALIFORNIA

S TATEMENT
or
Heway Savak, Jas., PRESIDENY
Saver Bros. Ocean Towmine Co., INc.

PomrTLAND, OREQON

In SupPonRt OF

PenT luprroveMENTS Yo CHETCo River ProJecy, Omceon

AeniL 18, (982

My mawt 18 HENmY Sauer, Jme, ANO | AN Presyroeny or Saver Baos,
OceAN Towina Co., INe. ODux COMPANY SPERATEA FIVE SHALLOW ORAFY YOUW BOATS
AND BIX SHALLOW DRAFT LUMBER BARGES IN A CONTRACY CARRIER SERVICE 8Y WATER
FROM ORE0oN AND WASHINOTON PONTE Yo PORYE N SourHEmaN CALIFORNIA, AND
PRINCIPALLY To Loe AMeELER HARBOR. WE HAVE SEEN IN THIE SUBINESS BEG INNING
witH 1951« 1IN THE PAGY OUR COMPANY, WE RELIEVE, HAS PIONEERED AND PAGVEN
THE NEZT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF BWALL COARYAL HARSORS, PRINCIPALLY BY THE PRO-=
VIDING OF SERVICE BEFGAT HANBOR 1WPROVEMINTS THAT EATABLISHED YHE BASIC
EXPORT YONNAGE AVAILABLE WHICH WAR THEN USED TO JUSTIFY THE NECESGARY EX=
PENDITURES FAOM FEBEMAL FUNDE AND AS AECOMMENOED 8Y THE UNITED Stavce Anuy
ENgINEERSs TYHIL PIONCER POLICY WAS INITIATED AT Oneateny Civy, Cavirornia
ountne 1951 AND IN OAZGON AT THE SIUSLAY RIvEr BEQINNING WITH 955, aAnD At
GoLe Beacw in $1958, WE NOW URGE FURTHER IMPROVEMENT OF THE CHETCO PROJEST
1IN OreEao e THC ARuY ENGINEERE WECORDS AT PORYLAND, OREGON WILL BHOW THAT
aun CONPANY HAS TAANGPORTED APPROXIMATELY 116,440 spoAY TONS OF LUMEER FROM
THE CHETCO PROJECT To SouTHERN CALIFORNIA FORTSs THE CHETCO PROJECT WAS
NOT OEVELOPED BY THE ARMY ENGINCERS AR A COMMERCIAL HARBOR TO ACCOMMODATE
COAST=WINE LUMBEN TUQR AND BARAGES, HOWEVER, WE WELIEVE THAT THE PROVEN
COMMERCIAL FEASIBILIYY AND THE PUBLIC INTERESY NOW DEMANDS FUTYURE FEDERAL
CXPENDITURE {N THE INTEREST OF WAKING YHE CHETCO PROJECT COMPETITIVE AR A
COMMERG 1AL BARGE SH IPPING HAREBON WITH THE PORTE OF CnesceENT Clity, CALIFORNIA "
AND THE PORT oF CoLo BEACH, OREODN. To ACCOMPLIOH THIS WILL REQUIRE PORSIBLY
AN ENGINEERED CNHTENSION OF THE PRESENY TRAINING JETTIES, THE REMOVAL OF THO
MINOR ROCK BIMMACLES IN THE WAY OF THE NAVIGQAYIDN CHANNEL, PLUB AN EN&INEERED

RESFONRIRILITY

THI, BOMPANY iW FULLY RERFONSIBLE AND OBES HOY EXORFEY 70 REAPSNEIWUATY FON ANY GONTA
BRAUTED IN WAITHNE RY ITE PREEIGENT ON BESAKTARY BR AM ATTOANEY (N FART OEBIGENATED ANG /
BF THE CONPANY'S BIBNZOTORS AND UPFINERE,—THE ODOMMANY HEAEAY EAGAFTE TA ANY AEAFUHE
WITH CLAIMD OR PAMABER OF ANY TYPE DR KIND SLAIMED Am PART OF AN UNDERETANDINS HOT Al

AUTHORIZED |, D& WATEN DARNRIKN,; GNERNDN, WABHIHATON ANT BALIFONMW

46-886 0-65—7 9

'3



SAUSE BR®S.

SLEAN TRWINS €8, 1N,

» NOOM 17, TENAINAL SALN BLDD.
PORTLAND, ORIION

"

YUANING BABIHs ALBO, A NAVIGABLE OHANNEL AND TURNHINAE BAGIN ODEPTH orF 14' Ay
MEANW LOW WATER WOULD ALLOW COMPEYITIVE COASTAL BARGES AMD SHALLBY DRAFT TusS
Y0 COMPETE %) TH CmEBCENY C17Y, CAL IFOAMIA HARBOR AND GoLD BeAcH, OREAON HAR-
B0Rk, YWHICH 10 FACBENTLY NOY POSBISLE ON A tumilc NABIS AS REGARMDS THE
WATER TRANMAPORTATION COMPAMIES POBITION.

Oun COMPANY HAB DEST1UNEZD A SPFECIAL PLYWOSD TRANGPORTING BARSE THAY
I8 MORE THAN COMPETITIVE WITH TAUCKSE fFroM OREAGON COASTAL PORTS 10 SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA CONRBUMING ARCAS AND WILL TRANEPOAT PLYWGGD WITHOUT DAMASE AMND AT
A COMPETITIVE RAYE YO ALL SOUTHERN CALiromWia PoRTB, THIB BAREE 19 SCHEDULED
10 ORERATE BEQINNING WITH JuNE orF |9B2 rrow vHE PoRT oF GeLD BEZACH AND
SiusLas RIVER, SECAUBE GF THE PREBENT (NHERIT UANGER 1M OPEAATING FROM THE
CHEYCO PROJECT, BECAUSE OF WATER DEFTH AND ROGK PINMACLES ADJACENT TO THE
NEVIGABLE CHANNEL. THWE PLYWOOD BARAE CARGC IR SUNJECY T¢ WATER DANAGE, AND
THE VALUE OF ZACH CANGD ¥ILL £xocen $300,000 PER TRIP] WHEREAS, LUMBER CARGD
vALuza BrLbeM excuep §18B0,000 rEm TRIFP, AND THE LUNBER I8 NOT SUBJECT YO
WATER DANAGE, IN THE EVENT A BARGE TANK I8 PUNCTURKD BY ROCKS WHILE CROGSINO
OUT Yo GEA FAOM THE CHETCO PMOJECT., Oun saner, MASTADON |, stauck A mook
PINMACLE AND OPENED A FOAWARD TANK WHILE CROBGING OUT OF CHEYCO OURING EARLY
1961 AMD wWAS BRKACHED AY CACecENT CITY FORM COBTLY TEMPORARY REFAIRE, ANT THEM
CONTINUED HER YOYAGE T0 DEBTINATION: COMPLETE DAY DOCK AEPAING WERAL COM=
PLETED AT A GOBY IN EXcZts or $18,000, No DINTRIDUTION OF CHARGES WAS MADE
FOR THE LOGT YIME AND TEKPOAARY REPAIRE AT CAcscENT CiTy HAmsoR IN THE Come
PANY RECORDB, HHAD THE sARRE BEEN LOADED WITH PLYWOSD THIS ACC IDENY WOULD
HAVE WEEN A CATABTROPHY OF NAJOR PROPOATIONS THAT COULD HAVE ELININATED THE
PORT FOM SERYICE UNDER THE CONDITIONS OF OUR HWULL AND CARQC |NGUNANOE POL ICIE@S

Accomo ineLY, OUR CoMPANY AT CoMwENDE TO THE Liiveo Stares Dicwmior
ENGINEER AT PORTLAND, (JMCAON THAT ALL POBUIBLE IN YHE PUBLIO INTEAESY B DONE
Y0 ACCOMPLIAH ECONOMIC GECURITY FOR THE BrookINGE COMMUNITY THROUGSH NEOKSSAMY s
HARBOR IMPROVEMENTS THAT WiLL ALLOS THINR COMMUNITY To COMPETE OR A EQUAL SANIS ’ !
IN THE SOUTHEAN CAL IFORNIA LUMBER AND PLYWCOD MARKEY BY WATER SHIPMEMT, WE
ARE CERTAIN YHAT THE COMMUNITY WILL BUFFER SERIOUS FUTURE ECONOMIC DANAGE IF
IT 18 {MPOGSIBLE TO OBTAIN THE NEEDED ADDITIONAL EXPEND ITUALS To INCAEASE THE
PROJESCT AN PAEBENTLY PETITIONES FOR BY THE PORT orf BrooK INGS AND T™HE CONMUNITY,

H4®



STATEMENT

of

Robert 8. Clarke

In Support of

Port Improvements to Chetco River, Oregon

April 18, 1962

My name is Robert S, Clarke, and I am the owner-
operator of the fishing vessel '"TEFFERSON!, a sixty-one foot
combination shrimp and crab boat, with a replacement value of
$35,000. X am also a part owner of a fiah processing plant lo-
cated in Eureka, California.

Prior to the construction of jetties and a boat basin
in the Chetco River, only small boats of the 20 to 30 foot one man
boat clags could operate from the Chetco River, and then only
coming and going at high tides,

At that time, we were able to fish only during the
summer months and our gross annual earnings were $4, 000 to
$5, 000, Work on shore during the winter months was necessary

in ordexr to secure an adequate income,
In contrast with the construction of jetties, the use of
larger boats and the ability therefore to be employed in the fisheries

on a yearly basis, my gross for the three years welve had jetties
has averaged in excess of $30, 000 per year.

91

14



This average gross since thé jotties wers built is still
inadequate to maintain my expanded business. The laxger boat to
work on a year=round basis necessitates a working force of three men
directly involved in the boat's operation, During the crab season
thé products delivered by the boat requires the employment of thirty-
seven people to process the crab, and during the shrimp season the
number of people involved in processing the boat's catch ie expanded
to employ sixty-eight persons, You can see that with a working
force like this dependent on the boat's operation, it is vital for that
boat to operate as many days as possible in order to eiﬂciently utilize
the personnel.

The existing jettles and channel, 'while baing responsible
for my expanded business, are the major causes in lirmiting my boatts
production, The existing jettles and lack of channel depth prohibit
my flahing as often as possible. B

During inclement weather, the existing jetties are not
adequate to allow me a safe bar crossing whea commercial fisher~
men in other ports nearhy are able to work, On many days when the
weather is good and the low tides are timed wrong, we loge consider-
able fishing time by leaving the grounds early enough to get in be-
cause of lack of channel depth. I estimate that the lack of channel
depth and the existing jetties cost me at least $15, 000 per year in
gross income,

This loss in income represents the difference hetween
keeping a full time crew on a year-round basis which in itself leads
to a more efficient operation and thua increased income: The im~
provements asked for would make the Chetco River a more dependable
pot:t, and therefors, would attract processing plants which would in-
crease the boat gross by ellminating the freight deductions necesgsary
to ship fish to out of town processing plants,

92



These plants would increase the portion of incomae
retained within the area where the fish were produced,

We want improvements to the Chetco River so that we
can get out to fish more often, By comparing the Chetco River with
the Port of Crescent City, you can see what I mean by a more usable
port. During January, February, and March, 1961} the good produc-
tion montbs in crab, the hoats in Crescent City operated 41 days more
than the boats in the Chetco River, While the comparipon shows 41
days more fishing time, I don’t feel that the requested improvements
would have allowed us to fish all of these days, However ] feel that
we could have fished 30 of these days with the improvements., My
crab limit for these days was 3, 000 pounds per day. This represents
a loss of 90, 000 pounds of crab, or at the dock price of 15 cents a

pound, $13,500,00 in gross Incorne in the first three months of the
year,

Lot S CE

Robert S, Clarke

93

4%



STATEMENT
of
John Hewitt
In Support of
Port Improvements to Chetco I\l.i.ve.r. Ozegon

_April 18, 1962

My name is John Hewitt, and I own and operate a 40!
troll boat, the "ZILI.AH B", from Brockings. I have been a com~
mexcial fisherman for eleven years, and have reaided in Brookings
for nine years, I am also the owner of Hewitt!'s Anchorage located
on the wast side of the Chetco River, imrnediately south of the U, 8.
Highway bridge.

_About eighty percent of my annual catch is delivered to
the Halibut Producers Cooperative, a cooperative with coastwise
facilitiea, of which I am a membaer.

A compariscn of the fiah landing records at the Coop's
station in Brookings and Crescent City revealed that in 1961 the
members fishing out of Crescent City were on the grounds twenty=
elght days more than the memberas out of Brookings. The prime
reanon for not getting out at Brookings is insufficient depth in the
channel, and inadequate entrance protection, upe-cially c;n the
north side.

The size and type of my boat is representative of about
thirty such boats moored at Brookings. Our oparation consists of

94

144



tiollihg for salmon and nlbacore, from about May twenty~seventh
to the end of September, and fishing crabs during the winter months,
December through March,

The attached company log recoxds of a boat comparable
to mine, fishing from Creascent Gity for the period of December 15
to May 2 indlcate that the poundage landed at that port was 43%
greater than from my boat at Brookings., However, during the period
from Novemher 27 through December, -theso same two boats fished
side by nide from Brookings and the poundage landed was practically
the saine,

Our boats are tied to a plant production schedule and when
we miss a day's fishing, that production cannot be made up,

My boats gross earnings from November 27, 1960, to
October 30, 1961, waa $43, 000, Thirty thousand dollare of the before
mentioned figure was made on crab, And, 50% is taken off for boat
and crew -~ 20% for the boat and 30% for the crew =~ about 5% fox
gear. The balance is my net, Of the remaining $13, 000, 20% is
pald to the boat and 20% paid to a crew, leaving 60% to me, It is my
estimate that one-third of tha boats moocred at Brookings fall with«
in this same category, and a number of others could if the improvements
now being sought for the Chetco are made,

In addition to supporting the proposed improvements,
which will enhance the commercial fishing industry, I am partic-
ularly interested in the construction of the proposed dike {n the river,
which will narrow the river and in turn should cause a scouring action
on the shoal area located in front of my anchorage. !

.At.ta'ched are the Halibut Producers Cooperative log
records of the "ZILLAH B" fishing from Brookings, and the "JEANNIE
MARIE" fishing from Crescent City.

John Hewitt

95

uS



Record of
"ZILIAR BN
Fishing Dayas & Pounds Landed
From Novemher 26, 1960 to May k4, 1961
" Brookings, Oregon

Days Actumlly Powunds

Period Fished Landed
11-26=60 te 11-27-60 2 3,401
12-1-60 to 12-3-50 3 11,098
12-4=60 to 12-9-60 5 1,838
12-11=60 te 12-15-60 5 15,000
12-20-60 to 12~22-60 3 6,348
1-10-61 to 1-12-61 2 7,184
1-18-61 $o 1-21-61 h 12,897
1-22-61 to 1-29261 7 19,346
2-1-61 to 2-3-61 2 10,789
2-7-61 1 3,7%
2-16-61 to 2-18-61 3 11,754
2:19-61 to 2-22-61 i 8,221
2-28-61 to 3-3=61 b 13,030
34=61  to 3-12-61 2 h,736
3-27-61 to l~2-61 I 12,739
h-13-61 1 1,456
ly=-21-61 1 3,362
Slj=bl 2 —3.h3
TOTAL sk 163,460




Fishing Days & Pounds Landed
From November 26, 1960 to May 2, 1961
Cressent City, California

Record of

: Days Actually Pounds
Period Fished Landed
11«26«50 to 11-28-60 3 8,349
12-1=60 to 12-3=60 3 . 20,573
124=60 to 12-9-60 6 21,017
12-11-60 to 12=16=60 6 18,700
12-19~60 to 12-22-60 L 10,434
12=-26=60 to 12-29-60 I 6,745
1=9=61 to 1l=13=61 5 20,859
1-16=61 to 2-3-6; 19 96,179
2.5-61 to 2-T=61 3 16,053
2=12-61 to 2=18-61 5 18,286
2=19-6) to 2-24-61 . 6 19,942
2-28-61 to 3-3-61 L 8,799
3=7=-61 1 h,165
3=19=61 to 3-22-61 3 2,674
32761 to 3-29-61 3 3,073
3=30-61 to L=-7-61 3 7.056
4~8-61 to L=-23-61 5 20,390
h=25-61 to l-26-61 2 9,739
§-2-61 ‘ e 9,720
TOTAL 86 322,753

o7

40



U. S, ARMY ENGINKER DISTRICT, PORTLAND
CORPS OF ENGINTERSE
820 PrTYOCK BLOCK
PORTLAND 8, ORRGON

NPPEN-PR-) | 10 June 1963

Mr. Harry Howard
2205 -~ 2d
Eureka, California

Déar Mr. Howard:

We are presently preparing a report on proposed ilmprovements for navi-
gation at Cheteo River to include provision of an entrence channel 14 feet
deep at mean lower low water, and extension of the north Jetty out to the
rock plnnacle supporting the U, S. Coast Guard light,

From conversatlons with local fishermen 1t is our understending that
geversl commercial crafi, lnecluding yours, have sustained damege in navi-
gating the entrance chammel of Chetco River., Provision of a 1lh-foot
channel depth should eliminate the possibllity of further damege to the
commercial fishing craft using this harbor. Elimination of this damsge
is & benefit oceurring to the proposed improvement. In ¢rder to properly
evaluate these benefits and include the information in our report, we would
eppreciate your furnishing us the followlng information; (a) Name of your
boat; {b)} date that demage occurred; (c) deseription of desmege; (d) cost
of repairs; and (e) description of any difficulties now experienced in
using the project.

Your assistance in furnishing the above informatlon wlll help us
assess the economic benefits resulting from construdtlon of the proposed
improvement. A self-addressed envelope is inclosed for your convenience.

Sincerely yours,

1 Incl B. E., WILCOX
F¥invelope Chief, Engineering Divieion
98

s



49



U.S. ARMY ENGINEER DISTRICT. PORTILAND
CORPS OF ENGINEERS
428 PrrocK BLooKk
PORTLAND ¥, ORKGON

NPPEN-PR-1 10 June 1963

Mr. Chester L, Hall
1144 Vernon
Eureka, California

Dear Mr. Hall:

We are presently preparing & report on proposed improvements for navi-
gation at Chetco River to include provision of an entrance channel 14 feet
deep at mean lower low water, and extenslon of the noxth jetty out to the
rock pimnacle supporting the U. S. Coast Guard 1light.

From conversablons with local fishemmen it ie our understanding that
several commerclal craft, including yours, have sustained damage in navis
geting the entrance channel of Chetco River. Provision of a ili-foot
chonnel, depth should eliminate the possibility of further damage to the
comcrelnl fishing craft using this harbor. Elimination of this damage
is a benefit cccurring to the proposed lmprovement. In order to properly
evalunte these benefits and lnclude the information in our report, we would
appreclate your furnishing us the followlng information; (a) Name of your
boat; (b) date that damage occurred; (c) deseription of damsge; (d) cost
of repairs; and (e) deseription of any difficulties now experienced in
using the project. - '

Your assistance in furnishing the above information will help us
assess the economlec benefita resulting from construction of the pruposed
improvement. A self-addressed envelope 1s inclosed for your convenience.

Sincerely yours,

1 Inel B, E, WILCOX
Eavelope Chief, Engineering Division

Bzpr or- | 2y ,
/7—“ ' L AT Llilw 14444

' J‘M/MMV/M. ~/1H
T e Uettonet s /W/oé [Pz, ﬂ%




prconsld TG0 oy H Aol '

7%@%/@,%/
Jliee Tbirgflr [ wm ol T s
Mﬁ/&? Al totntl rrerr s

A2 _, «
¥ 224 ~72/

AN



SPORTHAVEN, INC,
' Box 126, Harbor, Oregon

STATEMENT
of

B. A, McVay, President

Supporting
Port Improvémehtu to Chetco River, Oregon

April 18, 1962

- My name is Archie McVay, I am onie of the owners of
Sporthaven, Inc. Before the jetties were constructed, I owned all
the flat land adjacent to the south side of the river, On this land I
donated easements to construct the South Jetty, a spoil area, and
a roadway to and from the jetty aite, After the jettles were con-
structed, Noble Ellison and ] formed a corporation, which we called
Sporthaven., We then leased a dragline and started excavating a samall
basin and constructed a protective dike just to take care of our own
charter boata. Before the middle of the firast surnmer, the area we
had dug was filled with commercial boats, and more wanted in, By
the fall of 1958 we had constructed a dock and fish hoist, and in a
limited way took care of the boats then using the Port.

By this time I could see that the business was growing
too rapidly for us to keep up with, so Sporthaven donated to the
Brookings Port Commission part of the basin already dug, plus an
additional 15 1/2 acres of ground. The Port Commission imme-
diately went ahead and dug more basin, but it soon became obvious
that it was beyond their means to keep ahead of the demand for
boat moorage space, ——

ﬁ the fall of 1959 we constructed a lumnber dock for

barges, and a fish unloading dock. Warrenton Sea Food Co, leased
80 feet of the fish dock and built a processing plant. Tom Lazio

102

YA



Fish Co. of Eureka, California leased the other 6V feet of dock at
which it receives fish and crab.

In 1961 Sporthaven donated an additional 7 1/2 acres of
ground 80 that a better long range plan could be formulated with
‘'some provision to take care of the sport boats that have been com-
ing into the river in ever increasing numbers.

On February 20 of this year a tariff was filed with the
Federal Maritime Commission which guarantees that the lumber
dock on our property is to he open to the public on an equal basis,
so that any barge company may use the dock facilities.

We have always cooperated with the Port of Brookings
in the past, and will continue to do so in the future, We can grant
additional easements for necessary access to any new improve-
ments being requeated here, Or, we can make additional spoil
disposal areas available if necessary,

_The immediate use, and the overloaded capacity of
facilities that we built for amall boats within the past few years
indicates the need for additional facilities just to take care of the
boats that want to use these facilities now, to say nothing of the
future,

Sporthaven fully supports the Port of Brookings in its
request for additional port improvements and we stand ready to
ashist in the future just as we have done in the past.

B.a hfl”()a;‘\

B. A. McVay

103

95



THE PORT OF BROOKINGS

BROOKINGS, OREGON

COMMLESIONE M

KARL OSTENDERG, Ow
FRANK AKIN

L. P, HEIN

LEO BHURTLEFPF
FRANK SUTTON

. January 10, 1964

The District Englneer
Corps of Englneers
Pittock Block
Portland, Oregon ‘
REt Chetco River, Oregon
Revlew Report 1963

Dear Sirs

On January 9th, 1963, representatives from this Port
conferred your staff regarding local partlcipation in
the project if recommended by the Corps of HEnglnesrs.
Your staff gave us a draft of proposed language which
describes the local participation expected from the Port
in this connection. 7This language read as followss

¥YAdoption of the project would be subject to the
provision that, prior to constructlon, local interests
agree to (a) provide without cost to the United States
all lands, easements, and rights-of-way required for
constructlion and subsegquent maintenance of the project
and of alds to navigation upon the request of the Chief
of Engineers, Including suitable areas determined by
the Chief of Engineers to be required in the general
public interest for initlal and subsequent disposal
of spoll, and necessary retaining dikes, bulkheads,
and embankments therefor or the costs of such retaining
works; (b) hold and save the United States free from
damages due to constructlon and subsequent malntenance
of the project; (¢) provide and maintain at local expense
adequate public terminals and transfer faclllties open
to all on equal terms; {d) provide and maintain without
cost to the United States depths in berthing and mooring
areas and local access channels serving the termlnals,
commensurate with the depths provided in related project
areas; (e) accomplish without cost to the United States
such alteraticns as required I1n sewer, water supply,
drainage, and other utility faclilities, as well as their
maintenance; and (f) contribute in cash 6.1 percent of
the cost of construction by the Corps of Englneers of the
small-boat access channel and that portion of the break-
water adjacent thereto, and that such contribution,

104

\SM



presently estimated-at $8,400, be paid in a lump sum
prior to commencement of construction.®

This 1s to advise you that at a speclal meeting of
this Port held on January 10, 1964, the above language
was approved and thls Port by resolutilon has and does

hereby agree to the requirements above quoted.

Respectful

rl Ostenberg, Pre

46-886 O-65-8 105 .

\RS



QAN PAGIT

1Sk



CHETCO RIVER, OREGON
Information Called for by
Senate Resolution 148, 85th Congress
Adopted 28 January 1958

1, Existing project description. - The existing project provides
for stabllizaetion of the channel through the bar at the mouth of Chetco
River by construction of jetties and by dredging. No specific channel
dimensions were authorized. The existing project was completed in 1959,

2, Navigatlon problem. - The prinecipal dlfficultles attending navi-
gation arise from inadequate channel depths and lack of space for turan-
ing, maneuvering, and mooring of barges, tugs, and boats. Due to the
presence of rock pinnacles in the entrance channel, with controlling
depth of 6 feet below mean lower low water, operators can only move
thelr tugs and barges through the river mouth safely during dsylight,
high tides. Movements of large fishing boats also are restricted to the
high stages of the tide. In addition to deleys incurred, vessels are
subjeected to the hazard of striking rock pinnacles. A number of tcommer-
cial fishermen have reported their boats striking the plbnacles, and a
lumber carrying barge was extenéive%y damaged in 1961, Inadequate” chan-
nel depths also prohibit the use of larger and more efficient navigation
equipment.

3. Plan of improvement. - The proposed lmprovement lnecludes the
following items: (a) An entrance channel 120 feet wide and 14 feet deep
at mean lower low water; (b} an extenslon to the north jetty about 450
feet in length, with an increase in elevation of the existing portion to
16 feet above mean lower low water; (c) a barge~and-tug maneuvering area
about 250 feet wide, 650 feet long. and 14 feet deep at mean lower lov
water; (d) a protective dike 1,800 feet long, located within the
river estuary; (e) a small-tost access channel 100 feet wide and 12 feet
deep at mean lower low water; (f) a barge slip about 200 feet wide, 70O
feet long, and 14 feet deep, to be provided by local Iinterests; and (g)
enlargement of the small-boat mooring area to L2-foot depth by local
interests. Greater entrance channel dimenslions then those specified
above were consldered; however, due to limlited wldth between exlsting
jetties the proposed dimensions are consildered to be the maximum attaln-
able without causing undermining or subsidence of the Jettles,

L. Estimated first costs, annual costs, and annual benefits based
on January 196l prices, & 50-year period of analysis, and an interest
'rate of 3 percent for ¥ederal and non-Federal investments are as follows:

107

\&



Estimated first cost of recommended improvement:

Federal $1,323,0 L
Non-Federal ET!OOO-

TOTAL T, 350,000
1 Does not include $23,000 for preauthorization studies

and local cash contribution of $3,000,
2 Includes cash contribution of $3,000.

Estimated annual costse: Federal Non-Federal Totel
Interest and amortizea-

tion $51, 420 $1,050 $52, k70

Maintenance 26,000 4) 26,000

TOTAL T, 420 1,050 T8, 570

( rounded to) _ _ $78, 500

Estimeted annual heneflts:

Transportation savings 134,500
Commercial fishing 137, 400
Recreationsl flshing 9,500
Reduction of damages 7,000

Harbor of refuge

5,000
TOTAT, 293, 100

Benefit-to-cost ratio: 3.7 to L.0

5. Apportionment of cost and local cooperation. - Local interests
would be required to eontribute 6.5 percent of the construction costs of
the small-boat access chaonel and that portlon of the dike adja-
cent thereto in recognlition of the recreational beneflts expected, which
are considered equally locel and general].. Recommended requirements for
local requirements are as follows: (r) Provide without cost to the
United B8tates all lands, easements, and rights-of-way required for con-
struction and subsequent maintenesnce of the project and of alds to navi-
gation upon the request of the Chief of Engloeers, including sultable
areas determined by the Chief of Engineers to be required in the general
public interest for initiel and subsequent dilsposal of spoll, and neces-
sary retalning dikes, bulkheads, and embankments therefor or the costs
of such retaining works; (b) hold and save the United States free from
damages due to construction and malntenance of the project; (c) provide
and maintaln at local expense adequate public terminals end trensfer
facilities open to all on equal terms; (d) provide and maintain without
cost to Lhe United States depths in berthing and mooring areas snd loeal
access channels serving the terminals, commensurate with the depths pro-
vided in related project areas; (e) accomplish without cost to the
United States such alterations as required in sewer, water supply, drain-
age, and other utility facllities, as well as thelr maintenance; and (£)
contribute in cash 6.5 percent of the cost of construction by the Corps
of Engineers of the smell-boet access channel and that portion of the

108

\SB



dlke adjacent thereto, and that such contribution, presently esti-

mated at $9,000 be paid-in a lump sum prior to commencement of construec-
tion. Net cost to the United States for the recommended improvements,
exclusive of alds to navigation, i1s $1, 308,000 for construction and :
$25,000 annually for additional maintenance, Local interests have the
financial ability to providﬂ the specified requirements of -local cooper-
ation.

6. Analysis for 100-year period of analysis. .- Following is an
analysis of estimated first cost, annual costs, and annual beneflis based
on January 1964 prices, a 100-year period of analysis, and an interest
rate of 3 percent for Federal and non-Federal investments.

Estimated first cost:

1

Federal $1,323,000§

Non-Federal 27,000~
TOTAL ' 1, 350,000

Does not include $23,000 for preauthorization studies
and local cash contribution of $9,000.
2 1Includes cash contribution of $9,000.

1=

Estimated annual  costs!

Federal:
Interest and amortization
at 0.03165 $hé,900
Malntenance 26,350
Total 68,250
Non~Federal:
Interest and amortization
at 0.03165 840
Maintenance 0
Total 840
Total annual costs =09, 000
(rfounded to) $69, 100

Estimated snnual benefits:

Transportation savings 13k, 500
Commercial fishing 137, 400
Recreational fishing 9,500
Reduction of damages 7,000
Harbor of refuge 2,000
TOTAL 293, 4oo
Benefit-to-cost ratlos k.2 to 1.0

7. Discussion. ~ The project is consldered amply justified on the
basls of studies and criterlia in the report. Proposed local cooperation
1s consistent with other similar projects.

O

109

\$9



R L T L T

CORPS OF ENGINEERS 4 I

i

e BT i e
mawbwnpd—mwhm
Wity i ks por hins Some by wd Y rew
& e 10 mire stwwn

E e

i

ll'l.[ll ‘.-w.rr!dlmc

T

w | 221 s o
‘f N

M freaveron B i Toa lravweh
i N 07 T8
17471, HiY) €'t froind

fen m{€4{4 L'Alamab'e
I +

RECOMMENDED SMALL BOAT
ACCESS CHANNEL 100 FE WiDE
BY 12 FEET OEEPATMEL W

RECOMMENDED DIKE
1800 FEET LONG.

-» l-—- Crarvigarh
wtn 0 a4 k-] t ) -] [ ] =4 mert ,/”u
I
SICTION C-C BROOKINGS
DANGE TURNING HASIN AND BIKE " I
| 1 O
»® In il [ t =
. @( NN R"”l PrAHH N
| MLLW :" R RN T, e Trenen
/,a,:!- s £ & Ground (1re 77 AT
Sris e
-x
sory » [ L] n [ ] In a3 [ -] M
SECTION B-B
sine
RECOMMENDED JETTY
EXTENSION 450 FEET LONG.
5 i | Map " .
& Creico B ver
Entrarce gh?
-5 o ]
. MiLW L1 " LIV
K TSon vv a Sk o ~
' Eudsing Materiot Cround ine - i
2> I " " e
[ L b
T ] ’ 2 i M) reTy o
SECTION A-A " a ..
JETTY EXTLRBIGN ’ >
" " L
TYPICAL SECTIONS N
ot -
-4
PLAN
peaLk (w PRET
™ ! L oy " »
a ] a |

1O



portmanager@ portofbrookingsharbor.com

From: Norris, Robin C CIV USARMY CENWP (USA) <Robkin.C.Narris@usace.army.mil >

Sent; Tuesday, March 29, 2022 12:41 PM

To: portmanager@portofbrookingsharbor.com

Cc: Speer, Gregory A CIV USARMY CENWP (USA)

Subject: Port of Brookings - email #2

Attachments: Chetco Improvement_Congressional Document_1979.pdf; Chetco River_Existing Project_

1979_Plate 1_zoom.pdf

Gary,

See attached for more documentation. See page 87 of the larger document under item #2 — it notes “Construction of
the protective dike, entrance channel, turning basin and smallboat basin on the sheltered side of the protective dike was
completed in 1969.” See also “Plate 1" that is referred to.

Sincerely,

Robin C Norris

Realty Specialist

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Portland District Real Estate Division {RE})
333 SW 1st Avenue

Portland, Oregon 97208

\Lo\



g8th Oongress, 1st Sesslon - PSTT'! [” T #l - - S8enate Document No. 96-10

q15 PAGAR. TocLamea

CHETCO RIVER, OREGON

LETTER

FROM
THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY

TRANSMITTING

A LETTER FROM THE CHINF OF ENGINEERS, DEPARTMENT OF THD

ARMY, DATED MAY 2, 1077, SUBMITTING A REPORT, TOGETHER WITH

ACCOMPANYING PAPORS AND AN ILLUSTRATION, ON CHETOO RIVER,

OREGON. THH REPORT HAS BEEN PREPARED IN RESPONSE TO A RESO-

ILUTION OF THE COMMITTERE ON PUBLIC WORKS OF THE UNITED
STATRES RENATE ADOPTED JULY 1, 1870

FEBRUARY, 1979.—Referred to the Senate Oommittee on Environment and Public Works

U.8. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE
WASHINGTON : 1878

oL



[Printed under authority of title 33, USC, section 701-1(a)]

W3



CONTENTS

Letter of Transmittal ......ccoecvivvcnninninnnnn,
Comments:
Office of Management and Budget
Governor of Oregon ... cererenan
Departments
Interior ..

Letter to the Secretary of the Interior .Ifﬁ:ZZZI'LIZIﬁ'.ﬁﬁﬁZZﬁfIZIIZ'.I'.Z"""""""'""""

........................

Commerce...

Letter to the Secretary of Commerce

Transportation ...
Health, Educatmn and Welfare
Environmental Protection Agency....
Reports:
Chief of Engineers...
Board of Engineers fcr Rwers and Harbors
District Engmeer
Syllabus...
Authonty
Purpose and Extent of Study

Environmental Setting and Natural Resources

a. Description ...

b. Chetco Point and entrance CONditions ...

¢. Tributary Area ..

d. Resources .........e

e. Adjacent ports..........

f. Population ...............

g. Transportation... —
h. Use of naﬂgatmn prc]ect

Bridges ..

Power ..

Prior Reports

Existing Pro_'|ect

Local Cooperation

Other Improvements

Terminal and Transfer Facﬂltles

Improvements Desired ...
a. Input from pubhc meetmg, 25 June 19‘74
b. Reasons for proposed modifications...
c. Capability of local cooperation ...

Existing and Prospective Waterborne Commerce

a. Existing waterborne commerce..

b. Prospective waterborne commerce R e

Vessel Traffic........... wreevenreraes

Existing Conditions ...,
g. Entrance chanmel........coeierineiinsiones
b. Jetties....cceernnies

ves
m

EZ2-008 © BD 29

....................................................................................

i. Published maps and charts " e,

FPage
vii

e



Report of the District Engineer—Continued

Future Conditions Without New Navigation ]'.mprovements
a. Future maintenance dredging program

b. Future dredging quantities ...

¢. Incremental cost and beneﬁt analysns

d. Baseline case..

Problem Identiﬁcation....................... T R

a. Public concerns ......

b, Problems and NEedS w.rremmermctmcsmni

Plan Formulation ...........

. Study objectives....

. Possible solutmns Lerereernener
Screening of alternatlves

ATy

. Evaluation of selected alternatives
1. Technical Criteria .

2. National Economic Development Crlterla

. Alternatives selected for further study ........................................................

................................................................

3. Environmental Quality Criteria .........
4, Socijal Well-Being and Regional Development Conmderatlons .........
5. Technical Criteria for Jetty Extension ..

f. Further screening of alternatives..

g. Alternatives retained for detailed stud;m B
h. Incremental costs and benefits of alternatlves

i Mazimized economic development plan ... .
j. Environmental quality PLAIL voviiirviniimr e i bbb sra e sbspanansaes

The Selected Plan .
a. General ..

~ R eXtenEmn
¢. Disposal of dredged materlal

Shoreline Changes ..
Aids to Navigation....
Estimate of First Cost

Estimates of Annual Charges e

Estimates of Benefits ..

8. General ...

................................................................

b. Lumber, plywood, and miscellaneous CArZ0......o..weniseressesseisrraesisesssarons

¢. Commercial fishing ..

d. Reduced vessel damage

e. Charter boats ..

f. Recreational boatmg

g. Reduction in annual mamtenance
h. Harbor of refuge ...

dredging oSS ..o

i. Area redevelopment.................... =

j+ SUIDINATY OF BENGIILS e

Comparison of Benefits and Costs
Proposed local cooperation...
Apportionment of Costs ... e
Coordination with Other Agenmes
Environmental Considerations...

..............................................................................

4. Environmental 1mpacts from prOJect

b. Social well-being....

o>



Report of the District Engineer—Continued

Discussion .......cvieiin T R 37
a. Tributary area . 37
b. Existing 1mprovements .................................................................................... a7
c. Success of existing project
d. Navigation Probhlems ... oo ssones 38
e. Annual dredging PrOZram ... s ssessesiessissssinsereastons 38
f. Selected plan of IMPrOVEMENIS .....cccivevirvircirese e s e rasesr o ssssvess a8
g. Accomplishments of the plan of improvements .........ccvvieicnrirenereenienens 39
h. Recommended plap 39
Statement of Findings ... 39
. Coordination ., 40
Envm::nmental conmderatlons 40
Social well-being conmderatlons 40
Economic CONSIAEIAtIONS v uriiirinmimmiirionie e ieiassieeesaeeesersassssssssssssissssnsans 41
Engineering considerationg .........cciieeeeeierieciesinerscrensinessiesiessasssrsssessssssnssens 41
Other consideratinn ... s s sesressrsivssssasssessserens 41
Conclusions .. 42
Recommendatmn 42
Recommendation of the Dlstnct Engmeer ............................................................... 43
Appendix: Project Design and Cost Estimates ..o, b6

o G TR

Final environmenta] SEALEINIEIE oo iecearesrssesiesssesiarsssssssssssssesssresssssstssessessessssssssnssoses 109

Statement of BNAINES i et s sen ooy O0%

\olo



pu¥- PGt

\o



LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

SECRETARY OF THE ARMY
WASHINGTON

Honorable Jennings Randolph
Chairman, Committee on Environment
and Public Works

United States Senate Yy ¢ o 1976
Washington, D. C. 20510

Dear Mr., Chairman:

I am transmitting herewith a favorable report dated 2 May 1977, from
the Chief of Engineers, Department of the Army on Chetco River, Oregon,
together with other pertinent reports. The report is in response to a
Senate Public Works Committee resolution adopted 1 July 1970.

The views of the State of Oregon; the Departments of the Interior;
Transportation; Commerce; and Health, Education, and Welfare; and the
Environmental Protection Agency are set forth in the inclosed com-—
munications, together with the replies of the Chief of Engineera where
appropriate. The enviroamental statement required by the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 has been submitted to the Environmental
Protection Agency.

The President, in his June 6§, 1978 water policy message to Congress,
proposed several changes in cost sharing for water resources projects to
allow states to participate more actively in project implementation
decisions. These changes include a cash contribution from benefiting
states of 5% of construction (first) costs associated with nonvendible
outputs and 107 of costs associated with vendible outputs.

Application of this policy to the Chetco River requires a
contribution from the State of Oregon of an estimated $236,200 in cash
(5% of 34,723,000 total estimated project first cost based on May 1978
price levels). Other items of local cooperation would not be affected by
this additional requirement. I recommend construction authorization for
the Chetco River project in accordance with the President's proposed
cost—sharing policy.

The Office of Management and Budget advises that there is no
objection to submission of the Chief of Engineers report to the Congress
or to authorization of the proposed project as amended to conform with
the President's water policy. However, it states that no commitment can
be made at this time as to when appropriations would be requested for the

vii



project, if authorized by the Congress, since this would be subject to
review in the President’'s annual budget process. A copy of the letter
from the Office of Management and Budget is inclosed as part of the
report,

Sincerely,
/) <2 7 -~
1 Incl Clifford L. Alexander, Jr.
As stated
viii

WA



PAE PAGE -8

APPENDIX A
PROJECT DESIGN AND COST ESTIMATES

1. INTRODUCTION, - Presented in this appendix is the formulation of
plans for improving navigation at the Chetco River entrance. To
assure that an optimum plan would be obtained, alternative plans were
formulated, in light of pertinent benefits and costs, both tangible
and intangible, and with regard to engineering and environmental
aspects of the problem, The plan of improvement ultimately selected

is believed to best respond to the problems and needs of local inter-
ests and the community.

2. EXISTING PROJECT, - The authorized Federal navigation project for
Chetco River, Oregon, provides for two rubblemound jettles at the mouth
of the river; an entrance channel 120 feet wide and 14 feet deep; a
barge turning basin 14 feet deep, 250 feet wide, and 650 feet long; a
protective dike 1,800 feet long to elevation +18 feet; and a small-boat
access channel 100 feet wide and 12 feet deep, (Mean lower low water,
MLLW, datum 1s the plane of reference for all depths and elevations.)

Construction of the jetties was completed in December 1957. Constructed
length of the north jetty was about 900 feet and the south jetty was
about 1,350 feet. In 1962, the outer 440-foot section of the south
jetty was repalred and raised in elevation to prevent movement of sand
and drift into the navigation channel. 1In 1968, the north jetty was
extended 450 feet in length and raised to elevation +16 feet. 1In spite
of thelr similar constructed length, the north jetty now extends about
500 feet farther out to sea than the south jetty does. Construction

of the protective dike, entrance channel, turning basin and small-

boat basin on the sheltered side. of the protective dike was completed

in 1969, The Port of Brookings is conatructing a new small-boat

basin at a site almost directly across from the entrance to the existing
basin. The project as it exists is shown on plate 1. '

3. HYDROLOGY. - Chetco River discharges into the Pacific Qcean approxi-
mately 1 mile east of Chetco Point, which lies 300 miles south of the
Columbia River entrance and 345 miles north of San Francisco Bay.

Tormed in the Klamath Mountailns at an elevation of 4,000 feet, Chetco
River flows about 58 miles to its point of discharge into Chetco Cove.
The drainage basin, 359 square miles, is comprised of forests. Some of
the area around the estuary is used for pasture and hay, with range lands
located upstream of the estuary. Most of the inland portion of the basin
is Siskiyou National Forest.

a, Annual rainfall averages from 80 inches along the coast to 120
inches near the headwaters. Monthly precipitation at Brookings averages
from less than an inch (July and August) to almost 14 inches (December
and January). The annual stream runoff pattern for Chetco River closely
follows the annual precipitation pattern: About 85 percent of the
annual runoff occurs during November through April, while only about

57

O



\LL

Yop fAEY nawin ¥

kY -h..‘_-‘_‘-
-
) _-i-.__ e
wiwwnivtis Able |t
LRl Y
W PIEE Wte ATTE

PATF Bepgy

wirm )
'

ALLoWM Ak
Dmanniy 3
-4 FLET WY T
-Le

LU LIS ALY

CHETEO AIYER, OREGON
HARBOR IMPROVEMENT




Eortmanager@Eortofbrookingsharbor.com =ﬁ= 3

From: Norris, Robin C CIV USARMY CENWP (USA) <Robin.C.Norris@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2022 10:55 AM

To: portmanager@portefbrookingsharbor.com

Cc: Speer, Gregory A CIV USARMY CENWP (USA)

Subject: RE: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Port of Brookings Boat Basin dike

Attachments: SF-299 OMB Control Number 0596-0249.pdf

Gary,

Since there wasn't originally an approval for the addition of the ramp on the dike, we are now needing to go through the
process to do that.

Now is the time for the port/commissioners to decide if they want to do any other work on the dike so it all can be
evaluated and processed for approval at the same time,

See attached form SF-299. Submit information related to the most recent ramp installation (2011?) as well as any other
planned wark in the near future (removal of the ramp and crab dock?)

The process to give a Letter of Consent takes a few months. As soon as | have the completed form back I'll get working
on it.

Let me know if you have any further questions.

Robin € Norris

Realty Specialist

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Portland District Real Estate Division (RE)
333 SW 1st Avenue

Portland, Oregon 97208

From: portmanager@ portofbrookingsharbor.com <portmanager@portofbrookingsharbor.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2022 12:54 PM

To: Norris, Robin C CIV USARMY CENWP {USA)} <Rchin.C.Norris@usace.army.mil>

Cc: Speer, Gregory A CIV USARMY CENWP (USA) <Gregory.A.Speer@usace.army.mi{>

Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Port of Brookings Boat Basin dike

Thank you Robin and Greg for digging into this matter.

Amongst the paperwork you have found, is there anything about authorizing a ramp on the dike? Or because its already
there its considered grandfather in? My commissioners will be asking me this question.

Thank you,

\ 12



STANDARD FORM 298 _
APPLICATION FOR TRANSPORTATION, UTILITY SYSTEMS, TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND FACILITIES FORM APPROVED

OMB Conirol Number: 0596-0249
ON FEDERAL LANDS AND PROPERTY Expiration Date: 02/28/2023

FOR AGENCY USE ONLY

NOTE: Before completing and filing the application for an autharization (easement, right-of-way, lease, licenee or permit), the | Application Number
applicant should completely review this package, including instructions, and schedule a pre-application meeting with
representatives of the agency responsible for processing the application, Each agency may have specific and unigue

requirements to be met in preparing and processing the applicalion. Many limes, with the help of the agency representative, Date Filed

the application can be compleied at the pre-applicalion meeting

1, Name and address of applicant 2. Name and address of authorized agenl if 3. Applicant telephone number and
different from item 1 email:

Authorized agent lelephone number
and email:

4. As applicant are you? {check ons) 5. Specify what applicalion is for: fcheck one)

a. [ Individual a. New authorization

b. Corporalion® b. D Renewing existing authorization number

c D ParinershipfAssociation® C. Amend existing authorizationnumber

d. State Government/State Agency d. E[ Assign exisling authorizationnumber

e Local Government e. [J Existing use for which no authorization has been received *
f Federal Agency f. [ Other

* If chacked, complete supplemental page * If checked, provide detalls under ftem 7

6. If an individual, or partnership, are you a citizen(s) of theUniled States? [] Yes [] No

7. Project description (describe in detail): () Type of use or occupancy, (e.g., canal, pipeline, road, telecommunications), (b) relaled structures and
facililies; (c) physical specifications (Length, width, grading, etc.), (d) term of daysfyears needed: () lire of year of use or operation; (f) Volume
or amount of product lo be transported; (g) duration and {iming of construclion; and (h) termporary work areas needed for aclivity/construction
{Attach additional sheets, if additional space /s needed.)

8. Attach a map covering area and show location of project proposal,

9. State or Local govemment approval: ] Aftached || Applied for Not Required

10. Nonrefundable application fee: Atlached O Not required O To be delermined by agency

11. Does project cross international boundary or affect intemational waterways? E[ Yes E] No (if "yes," indicale onmap)

12, Give slatement of your technical and financial capability o construct, cperate, maintain, and terminate syslem for which autherizalion is being
requesled.

V13



13a. Describe other alternative locations considerad,

b. Why were these alternalives not selected?

c¢. Glve explanation as 1o why it Is necessary 1o use or occupy Federal assets (lands or buildings).

14.

List authorlzations and panding applications filed for simllar projecis which may provide Information to the authorizing agency. (Specify number,
date, code, or name)

15.

Provide statement of need for projecl, Including the economic feaslbllity and flems such as: (a) cosl of proposal {construction, operalion, and
maintenance); (b) estimated cest of next best alternalive; and (c) expected public benefits.

16.

Describe probable effects on the population In the area, including the social and economic aspects, and the rural lifestyles.

17.

Describe likely environmental effects thal the proposed project will have on: (a) air qualily; (b} visual impact; (c) surface and ground water quality
and quantity; (d) the conlrol or structural change on any stream or other body of water; (e) existing noise levels; and (f) the surface of the land,
including vegelation, permafrost, soil, and soil stability; and, {g) historic or archaeological resources or properties.

18,

Describe the probable effects that the proposed project will have on (a) populations of fish, plant Iife, wildlife, and marine life, including threatened
and endangered species; and (b} marine mammals, including hunting, capturing, collecting, or killing these animals.

19.

State whether any hazardous material, as defined in this paragraph, would be used, produced, transperted or stored on or in a federal building or federal lands or would
be used In connection with the proposed use or accupancy, "Hazardous material’ shall mean (a) any hazardous substance under section 101(14) of the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERGLA), 42 U.5.C. § 9601(14); (b) any pollutant or contaminant under seclion 101(33}
of CERCLA, 42 U.5.C. § 9601(33); (c) any pelrcleum product ar its derivative, ineluding fuel oll, and waste oils; and (d) any hazardous substance, extremely
hazardous substance, toxic substance, hazardous waste, Ignitable, reactive or corrosive materials, pollutant, contaminant, element, compound, mixture, solution or
subsiance that may pose a presenl or patential hazard to human health or lhe environment under any applicable environmental laws. The helder shall not store any
hazardous materials at the site without prior written approval from the authorized officer, This approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. If the authorized officer
pravides approval, this permit shall inciude (or in the case of approval provided after this permit Is issued, shall be amended to Include) specific terms addressing the
storage of hazardous materials, including the specific type of materials fo be stored, the volume, the type of storage, and a spill plan. Such termis shall be propesed
by the halder and are subject to approval by the authorized officer.

20.

Name all the Federal Department(s)/Agency{ies) where this application is being filed.

| HEREBRY CERTIFY, That I am of legal age and aulhorized to do business in the State and that | have persanally examined the Information contained
in the applicafion and believe that the information submitted is correcl to the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Applicant Dale

Title 18, U.S.C. Section 1001, makes il a crime for any person knowingly and willfully to make to any department or agency of the United States any
false, fictilious, or fraudulent statements or representations as to any matter within its jurisdiction,

4



GENERAL INFORMATION
ALASKA NATIONAL INTEREST LANDS

This application will be used when applying for a right-of-way, permil,
license, lease, or certificate for the use of Federal lands which lie within
conservalion system units and Naticnal Recreation or Conservation Areas
as defined in the Alaska Nalional Interest lands Conservation Act.
Conservation system units include the National Park System, National
Wildlife Refuge Syslem, National Wild and Scenic Rivers System,
National Trails System, National Wilderness Preservation System, and
Natlonal Forest Monuments.

Transporialion ufility systems telecommunication installations
facility uses for which the application may be used are:

1. Canals, dilches, flumes, laterals, pipes, pipelines, tunnels, and clher
systems for the transportation of water.

2. Pipelines and other systems for the transportation of liqulds ather than
water, including oll, nalural gas, synthetic liquid and gaseous fuels, and
any refined producl produced therefrom.

3. Pipelines, slurry and emulsion systems, and conveyaor belts for
lransporlation of solid materials.

4, Systems for the transmission and distribution of electric energy.

5. Wired and wireless systems for transmission or reception of radio,
felevision, telephone, telegraph, and other electronic signals, and other
means of communications.

8. Improved right-of-way for snow machlines, air cushlon vehicles, and all-
terrain vehicles,

7. Roads, highways, railroads, tunnels, tramways, airports, landing strips,
docks, and other syslems of general transportation.

This application must be filed simultaneously with each Federal
departmenl or agency requiring authorization to establish and operate
your proposal.

In Alaska, the following agencies will help the applicant file an application
and identify the other agencies the applicant should contact and possibly
file with:

Department of Agriculture

Regional Forester, Forest Service (USFS)

P.O. Box 21628

Juneau, Alaska 99802-1628

Telephone: (907) 586-7847 (or a local Forest Service Office)

Department of the Interlor
Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA)
Alaska Regional Office

709 West 9ih Street

Juneau, Alaska 99802
Telephone: (907) 586-7177

Depariment of the Interior
Alaska Siate Office

Bureau of | and Management
222 West 7th Avenue #13
Anchorage, Alaska 99513
Public Room: 907-271-5960
FAX: 907-271-3684

{or a local BLM Office)

U.8, Fish & Wildlife Servica (FWS)
Cffice of the Regional Direcfor 1011
East Tudor Road Anchorage, Alaska
99503 Telephone: (807) 786-3440

National Park Service (NPS)
Alaska Regional Office

240 West 5lh Avenue
Anchorage, Alaska 98501
Telephone: (207) 644-3510

Nole - Filings with any Inlerior agency may be filed wilh any office noted
above or with the Office of the Secretary of the Interior, Regional
Environmental Officer, P.Q. Box 120, 1675 C Street, Anchorage, Alaska
99513.

Depariment of Transportation

Federal Avialion Administration

Alaska Region AAL-4, 222 Wesl 7th Ave., Box 14
Anchorage, Alaska 99513-7587

Telephone: (907} 271-5285

NOTE - The Deparlment of Transportation has eslablished the above
central filing point for agencies within that Depariment. Affected agencies
are: Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), Coast Guard (USCG),
Federal Highway Administralion (FHWA), Federal Rallroad Administration
(FRA).

OTHER THAN ALASKA NATIONAL INTEREST LANDS

Use of this form is not limited to National Interest Conservation Lands of
Alaska.

Indhvidual depariment/agencies may autherize the use of this form by
applicants for transportation, ulilily systems, telecommunication
inslallations and facilities on other Federal lands outside those areas
described above.

For proposals located outside of Alaska, applications will be filed at the
local agency office or at a location specified by the responsible Federal
agency.

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS
ftems not listed are self-explanatory)

7 Aftach preliminary sile and facility construction plans. The responsible
agency will provide instruclions whenever specific plans are required.

8 Generally, the map must show the seclion(g), tewnship(s), and
range(s) within which the project Is to be located. Show the proposed
location of the project on the map as accuralely as possible. Some
agencies require detailed survey maps, The responsitile agency will
provide addltional instructions.

9, 10, and 12 The responsible agency will provide additional instructions.

13 Providing information on alternate locations in as much detail as
possible, discussing why certain [ncations were rejected and why it is
necessary to use Federal assets will assisl the agency(ies) in
processing yeur application and reaching a final decision. Include
anly reasonable alternate localiens as related 1o current technaology
and economics.

14 The responsible agency will provide instruclions,

15 Generally, a simple statement of the purpose of the proposal will be
sufficient. However, major proposals located in crilical or sensitive
areas may require a full analysis with addltional specific informaticn.
The responsible agency will provide additional instructions.

16 through 19 Providing this information with as much detail as possible
will assisl the Federal agency(ies) in processing the application and
reaching a decision. When completing these items, you should use a
sound judgment in furnishing relevant information. For example, if the
project is not near a stream or other body of water, do not address this
subject. The responsible agency will provide additionalinsiructions,

Application must be signed by the applicant or applicant’s authorized
representative.

\' o



EFFECT OF NOT PROVIDING INFORMATION

Disclosure of ihe information is voluntary. If all ihe informalion is not provided, the proposal or applicaticn may be rejected.

DATA COLLECTION STATEMENT

The Federal agencies collect thls information from proponents and applicants requestiing a right-of-way, permit, license, lease, or cerlificalion for use of
Federal assets. The Federal agencies use this information to evaluate a proponent's or applicant's proposal to use Federal assels.

BURDEN STATEMENT

According o the Paperwork Reduclion Acl of 1885, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respand to a collection of
information unless it displays a valid OMB cantrol number, The valld OMB control number for this infermation colleclion is 0596-0249, The time required lo
camplete this information collection is estimated to average 8 hours per response, including the lime for reviewing instructions, searching exisling data
sources, gathering and malintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The authority to collet thls information is
derived from 47 U.S.C. 1455(c){3) and 16 U.5.C. 3210.

USDA NONDISCRIMNATION STATEMENT

The U.8. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age,
disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal,
or because all or part of an individual’s income is derived from any public asslstance. {Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with
disabilities who require alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audictape, elc.) should contacl USDA's TARGET
Center al 202-720-2600 (voice and TDD).

To file a complaini of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Clvil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 202560-9410 or call toll
free (866) 632-9992 (voice). TDD users can contact USDA through local relay or the Federal relay at (800) 877-8339 (TDD) or (B66) 377-8642 (relay volce).
USDA is an equal oppaortunity provider and employer.

The Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.5.C. 552a) and the Freedom of Information Act (5 U 5.C. 552) govern the confidentiality to be provided for information
received by the Forest Service.

Ve



SUPPLEMENTAL

NOTE: The responsible agency{ies) will provide instructions CHECKQEOPSEPR]ATE
| - PRIVATE CORPORATIONS ATTACHED FILED*

a. Articles of Incorporation

b. Corporation Bylaws

¢. A certification from the Slate showing the corporation is in good standing and is entitied to operate within the Stale

d Copy of resolution authorizing filing

&. The name and address of each shareholder owning 3 percent or more of the shares, together with the number and
percentage of any class of voting shares of the entity which such shareholder is authorized to vote and the name and
address of each affiliate of the entity togsther with, in the case of an affiliate controlled by the entity, the number of
shares and the percentage of any class of voting stock of that affiliate owned, directly or indirecily, by that entity, and
in the case of an affiliate which controls that entity, the number of shares and the percentage of any class of voting
stock of that entity owned, directly or indirectly, by the affiliate.

O Ooos
O |O0O0ad

f. If application is for an oil or gas pipeline, describe any related right-of-way or temporary use permit applications,
and ideniify previous applications.

g. If application is for an oil and gas pipeline, identify ail Federal lands by agency impacied by proposal.

Il - PUBLIG CORPORATIONS

a. Copy of law forming corporation

b. Proof of organization

c. Copy of Bylaws

d. Copy of resolution authorizing filing

&, If application is for an oil or gas pipeline, provide information required by item "1 - f and "l - g" above.

1l - PARTNERSHIP OR OTHER UNINGORPORATED ENTITY

a. Articles of association, if any

b. If one partner is authorized to sign, resolution authorizing action is

¢. Name and address of each participant, partner, association, or other

OoOool (Oooon O .
OooOoa (Oo0o0oo0 (0O

d. If application is for an oil or gas pipeline, provide information required by item "l - f* and "l - g" above.

*f the required information is already filed with the agency processing this application and is current, check block entitled "Filed." Provide the file
Identification information {e.q., number, date, code, name). If not on file or current, attach the requested information.

V1)



ACTION ITEM —- C

DATE: May 6, 2022

RE:

TO:

SDAO [nsurance Claim — Replacement of Broken Dock Pile

Honorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

A wooden dock pile was found broken at Basin 2 O-Dock finger 22. We submitted the
following incident report to SDAQ to see if the Port had any insurance coverage for
repairs.

SDAO adjuster requested three repair quotes from the Port. The Port contacted three
contractors that had prior experience doing similar projects. Billeter Marine, Legacy
Contracting and West Coast Contractors provided the quotes. This project would include
a barge, crane and one 12’ diameter steel pile 60’ long fusion bond epoxy coated.
Removal of the broken pile and installation of the new steel pile.

SDAQ/SDIS approved the claim for the repairs at Billeter Marine quote amount. Port
reconfirmed the price with Billeter Marine. The Port has already received the initial check
from SDIS for this repair. The Port will be responsible for the deductible amount.

A Public Improvement Contract would be needed with Billeter Marine to perform the
repair work. It would be a good idea to secure the repair costs now and order the piling
for the work to be completed during the in-water work period (October 15 through March
15).

DOCUMENTS

Port Incident Report with pictures, 5 pages
Contractor Quotes, 5 pages
SDAO Email Approval, 2 pages

COMMISSIONERS ACTION

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve repairing the broken wood piling in Basin 2 at O-Dock finger 22 and
authorize the Port Manager to prepare a draft Public Improvement Contract with Billeter
Marine to perform the work for Board approval.

Rte)



Port of Brookings Harbor
16330 Lower Harbor Road / PO Box 848

Board of Commissioners
Richard Heap, President
Joseph Speir, Vice-President

Brookings, Oregon 97415 Sharen Hartung, Secretary/Treasurer
Phone (541) 469-2218 Kenneth Range

Fax (541} 359-3999 Larry Jonas
www.portofbrookingsharbor.com

Incident Report

Date of lmcident; 1/24/22
Time:

Location of Incident: Basin 11 0 22

‘What Happen? Received a call from Mrs. Vanderpool that the wood piling next to her vessel is broken

Who was Involved?

Name: Kathryn Vanderpool
Address: 4000 Lower River Road
Phone Number: Grants Pass OR 97526

Witness (if any)
Name:

Address:

Phone Number:

Corrective Action:

Report Written By:
Name: Danielle King

Signature: / b M

7/

Reviewed By:

Safety Supervisor Danielle King X
Harbormaster Travis Webster 774
Port Manager Gary Dehlinger M

4






ﬁ\u

i 4]

{v ;| |~ i
li]! !}J ‘ll ;"‘

)
Iy

ﬂif - -Llj?‘l .jf‘.{iﬂ IAI
=Tt

b1
g
-
=




Port of Brookings Harbor
Location of Broken Pile
Basin 2 — Dock O, Slip 20-22

\SL



&3



Billeter Mari
520 3rd Cou

Coas Bay, OR 97420

ne, LLC
rt

CCB# 166653 S S

Office: 541-269-8600
Fax: 1-266-0532
www.bllletermarine.com

Billeter Marine Project Quote Date: 3/22/2022
To:|Port of Brookings Contact: [Travls Webster
Address;|P.0, Box 848 Phone:|{541) 469-2218
16330 Lawer Harbar Rd Email:

Brookings OR 97415

Project: Pil

Ing Replacement

Descriptioh of work:

Remove 1 existing wood plling on dock finger, Basin 2, O Dock per map provided, Install 1 new .5 x 12 x 60' Pipe Pile
with fusion band epoxy coating in same location. Disposal of existing wood plling by others.

Speclal lnspections
Testing - Including but not Hmited to, compaction, concrete, grout, rock,
asbestos, lead, water
Site \Itilities -Water, pawer, lighting or sanltary facllities
Bonds, payment or performance. If bahds requirad add 3%
i Ashestas or lead based palnt abatement
|landstaping

Dlver or tender for underwater Inspectfons ar work
Arcass to work site

tem # ftem Description Quantity | Unit | Unit Price Total Price

1 Pull Existing Pillhg 1| Each $400,00 $400.00
2 .5x12x50' Pipe Pile Epoxy Coated 60| LF $165,00 $9,900.00
3 100 Ton Truck Crane - Mobilization 1) LS £2,400.00 $2,400.00
4 45 Ton Crawler Crane - Maobilization 1 1Is 52,400.00 $2,400.00
5 Flex Float Mobilization from Seattle to Brookings and Back 1l LS $2,800.00 £2,200,00
6 Vibra Hammer Mobilization From Fife to Brookings & Back 1 LS $2,400.00 52,400.00
7 Small Tug Mobilization 1| s $500.00 $500.00
8 Flex Float Rent 1/MO0 513,950.00 513,550.00
g Vibro Hammer Rental 1|MQ $4,200.00 54,200.00
10 Small Tug Rental 3{DY 5350.00 51,050,00
11 Bulld up Barge, ioad Crane, Drive Pile, Tear Down & Load 3|DY $3,850,00f $11,550.00
12
13
14
15
16
17

Total Bid Price:]  $51,550.00

Not Included
;I PermI;s T o T e D}aﬂlnguf p|a;ls elther ariginal ar "as bul[t"-;.;;l!es; r;qﬁ}re;l‘gv.w.ni};ct B
Survay Contraet retainage
Englneering Traffle control

Page 1 of 2

\

8%



Rilleter Marine, LLC
520 3rd Court

Cooas Bay, OR 97420 www bllletermaring.com
CCB# 166653 e Date: 3/22/2022

Port of Broakings

P.O. Box 848 Brookings 1 Project: Plling Replacement

16330 Lower Harbor Rd

Office; 541-268-8600
Fax; 1-266-0532

Please sign and return one copy of this proposol to signify an acceptrance of this quote and jis terms and
conditions as stated or feel free to call me If you have any questions.

Motes:
1. Bllleter Marine, LLC reserves the rightto pass on any materfal price Increases that occur between the time this quote was given
and the time of construction,
2. Billeter Marihe, LLG is not [fable for any possible damages to underground utlfitles not located by others prior to our work.
3. Quote good If actepted In writlng within 15 days,

Payment Terms:

1. Any additional work will be bllled on a cost plus 10% basis,

2. Al materlal is guaranteed to be as specified. All wark Is to be completed 1 a workmanlike manner accerding to standard practices.

Any alteration or deviation from specifications Involving extra costs will be executed only upon written arders and will hezome an extra
charge over and above the agreed upon price. All agreements cantlngent upon strikes, accldents or delay heyond our control,
Ownerto carry firg, tarnado, and other necessity insurance. Our workers are fully covered hy Workmen's Compensatlan Insurance,

3, Billeter Marlng, LLC reserves the right ta make progress billings on projects with durations greater than 1 month. This conbract Js to be pald in
full wlthin 30 days from the date the work has been substantially completed. Interest at the rate of ONE & ONE-HALF {1-1/2%) PER MONTH
{1824 PER ANNUM) will be charged on all balances not paid when due, [nthe event legal action s necessary to enfarce the contract, the
prevailing party will be entltled to court costs and reasonable attarney fees,

4, The prevalling party Inany actlon orsuit is entitled to costs and attorney fees. This receipt evidences a purchase as provided for in the
ACCOUNT Plan Agreement between Bllleter Marine, LLC and the above-named Purchaser. All provisions and agreemenis contalned in the
Account Plan Agreemant, if applicable, are hereby incorporated by reference.

5. L herehy acknowledge that | have received the forms "Information te Qwners About Construction Liens", "Consumer Protection Natice" and
“notjce of Procedure”, as provided for by ORS 87.025 and as adopted hy the Bulldets Bouard

ACCEPTED CONHRMED
The ahove prices, specifications and conditions are
satlsfactory and are hereby accepted.

Billeter farine, LLC
Autharized Signature

Signature:

Printed Name:

Jeff Brown, Estimatoy
Date of Acceptance: / /20 jeff@hilletermarine.com

Page 2 of 2




AN7i22, 8:04 AM Part Qffice Mall - Port of Brookings Harbor - Broken Plling

M Gmaiﬂ Danielle King <danlelle@portofbreoakingsharbor.com>

Port of Brookings Harbor - Broken Piling

Chris Rau <ChrisR@legacycontractinginc.com> Wed, Mar 16, 2022 at 5:05 PM

Ta: Danielle King <daniells@portafbrookingsharbor.com>
Cc: Bids <Bids@legacycontraclinginc.com>, Travis Wehster <travis@portofbrackingsharbaor.com>

Danielle,

Soiry Tor the delay, we were waiting on piling pricing, Our supplicr quoted us a 3/8" wall instead of a 44" wall pilc initially,
Attached 18 our Lltem Price Summary which includes:

Mobilization to the Site with Crane and Floats

Remova! of 1 EA broken existing timber pile

Installation of | EA Coated 127 x ,500

Installation of Pile Cap

Demobilization from sile.
Pricing assumes we can pull the pile and does not inciude & diver if it breaks and has (o be cot at mudline,

Please let me know if you have any questions or nced more information.

[Quated laxt hidden]

E Port of Brookings » Broken Pile Replacement.pdf
64K

https:/imail.gengle.com/mailtu/o/tlk=aof5Ebeacadview=ptlsearch=all&kparmmsgld=riggi%3A 172750322 2572068076 &sIimpl=msg-f43A17 276032225,

1M

\eo



Legacy Contracting, Inc.

41850 Kingston Jordan Rd.
PC Box I

Stayton, OR 97383

1.s.

Item Price Summary

Phane; 503-749-1818
Fax: R8B-249-2203

Prajact Rama: BROKEN PILE REPLACEMENT Customer: PORT OF BROOKINGS-HARBOR
Job Numbar: Billing Addresa; 16408 LOWER HARBOR ROAD
Rlid As; BROOKINGS, OR 97415 USA
Estimator: Phone: 541-469-2218
Project Address: Contact:
Completion Date:
Description dob Cost10 Task1CID  Bid Quantity UM  UnitBid Price  Tota! Bid Price
1 - GENERAL EXPENSES 1.00 LS 4124,658.32 $124,658.32
E 2 - REMOVE AND REPLACE PILE 1.00 EACH $12,704.79 $17,704.79
Pay Items Total: $142 363,11
3162020 4:44:17 PM Page 1 of L

&N



Wesl Coasl Gonlraclors
61050 Highway 101
Coos Bay, Oreqgon 947420

p. 541.267.7689
f. 541.269,1600

westcoastcontractors.cem
UR Centractors Board £63710

Ch Contractors License 511500 Class A, B
WA Conlrattors Lleense Wes1C{199207

Building S$trong Foundations far a Better Future

April 4, 2022

Port of Brookings
16330 Lower Harbor Rd
Brookings Oregon 97415

Attn: Travis Webster travis@portofbrookingsharbor.com
RE. Port of Brookings Pile Replacement Dock O Slip 20-22

We ara pleased to quote the following ltems:

- Install 1 — New 12"x.5"x60'Steel Piles To Replace Existing Pile  $ 175,314.00
o Piles will be bare steel
o Remaoval and Disposal of Existing Wood Pile
o Access to assemble portable barge, equipment and materials will be
Provided by the Port (40°x60’ barge)
o Piles will be driven to full penetration or refusal with Vibratory Hammer

General Contractor/Owner is to provide a staging area and access to the work locations for our
equipment and materials. Above guoted price is based on straight-time labar.

Obstructions encountered during driving will be considered and billed for as a change in the
scope of work. Price is based on contractor and owner agreeing on a mutually agreeable
schedule,

Price based on a mutually agreeable schedule.
Prices Exclude;

« Permit

s Survey, Layout, & Staking

¢ Locate and/or relocate of utilities

« Engineering

s Traffic Control
TERMS:

Payment is due 30 days from date of invoice. Customer agrees to pay 1.5% interest per month
{18% APR) for late payment.

This Proposal Is good for 30 days.

Thank yeu for the opportunity to provids a proposal for this project. Please call if you have any
guestions.

Sincerely,

Chad Walker

\&B



portmanager@portofbrookingsharbor.com

From: Tim Bauer <thauer@sdao.com=>

Sent: Saturday, April 9, 2022 1:44 PM

To: portmanager@portofbrookingsharbor.com

Subject: GCPR2022069548 * Port Of Brookings Harbor - piling impact
Attachments: 2022.04.09.PBH.PMNT.pdf

I've attached the payment letter for the damaged piling. Payment should go out next week. Please send the support
when the contract is accepted and | can release the withheld amounts.

Tim Bauer

Executive General Praperty Adjuster
S|DJA|O

Direct:

INTERNSHIP  spalo
GRANT S

Application Deadline:
PROGRAM April 18, 2021

The content of this e-mail message and any attachments are confidential and may be legally privifeged, intended solely for the atdressee. If you are
not the intended recipient, be advised that any use, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this e-muail moay be unlowful. If you receive this
message in error, please natify the sender immediately and destroy the message and its attachments.

\eA



S D l q Special Districts
s Insurance Services

April 9, 2022

Port Of Brookings Harbor
Attn. Gary Dehlinger

PO Box 848

Brookings, OR 97415

SDIS Member: Port Of Brookings Harbor
Incident Date: 01/24/2022
Claim Number: GCPR2022069548

Gary,

Please find enclosed payment of $31,050.00 for the Actua! Cash Value of the piling damages less recoverable
depreciation and $5000 deductible. This amount is based on estimates, photos, and discussions. Per your coverage,
the depreciation is recoverable once the property is replaced and the expenses are incurred.

Replacement Cost - Piling $  51,500.00
Less recoverable depreciation $ (15,450.00)
Actual Cash Value S 36,050.00
Less deductible $  (5,000.00)
Total Claim 5 31,050.00
less prior payment

Balance Due S 31,050.00

To claim the recoverable depreciation, please provide support {(invoices, receipts, etc.) for the actual incurred
expenses to replace the property. Thank you for your assistance in resolving this claim.

Sincerely,

Tim Bauer

Executive Property General Adjuster
SIDJA|O

Administrators for SDIS and PACE

ADMINILISBSTERED By § P L CI1 AL oy sT1TRTCT S AB S OGCIATION OF O R E B O N

PILGLAING PO Bax 23879 | Tigard, Oregon 972€1 | mione B03-670-7066 | [0 Feice 1.-BR0-305-1736 | FAx 503-626-9817 | tMAL claims@sdao.com

www,sdag,eom

\®



INFORMATION ITEM — A

DATE: May 6, 2022
RE: Commissioner and Staff Communications and Relations
TO: Henorable Board President and Harbor District Board Members

ISSUED BY: Gary Dehlinger, Port Manager

OVERVIEW

¢ Board discussion.

DOCUMENTS

+ None

A\



